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PART I. BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Business
(A) Description of Business
1. Business Development

The Company, formerly United Paracale Mining Conyarvas incorporated on October 9, 1933
as a mining company.

On May 31, 1996, the Company's new set of stockdrsldexecuted deeds of assignment
transferring to the Company their investments iareh of stock of certain companies as full
payment for their subscriptions to 1.5 billion stwpf the Company’s capital stock. On June 18,
1996, the Securities and Exchange Commission apdrdkie assignment of shares and the
following amendments to the Company’s Articles médrporation: (a) change in the Company’s
corporate name to Solid Group Inc.; (b) changetsnprimary purpose to that of a holding

company; (c) change of the par value of its shams P.01 to P1.00; (d) the declassification of
its class A and class B capital stock; and (e)ithesase in its authorized capital stock from P20
million (divided into P1.2 billion Class A shareada0.8 billion Class B shares at P0.01 par
value) to P5 billion divided into 5 billion sharasP1.00 par value, all of one class.

On September 4, 1996, an additional 524,475,000aofipany’s shares of stock were offered to
the public and listed in the Philippine Stock Exute

On the November 21, 2002 special stockholders’ imgetthe stockholders approved the
acquisition of the shares and/or economic inter@stee Destiny Group (consisting of Destiny,
Inc. and subsidiaries (DI) and Destiny Cable, brad subsidiaries) from the Elena Lim family in
exchange for 1.026 billion shares of the Comparii war value of P1.00 per share.

In May 2003, the Company completed the acquisitibthe entire issued and outstanding shares
of DI, which is in the business of broadband muttitia services. The acquisition was approved
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) on May 2603. A notice of exemption for the
issuance of shares under the Revised SecuritiesvAgtfiled with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 6, 2003. Company sharefingt224,461,752 was proposed to be
issued in payment for the DI acquisition upon apatmf the listing of these shares with the
Philippine Stock Exchange. However, in 2004, ufwsther review of the assets and liabilities of
DI, certain receivables from and payables to relgiarties were removed from the valuation of
DI's net assets. The re-valuation resulted in aagban its financial position from a net asset to a
net liability of P23,201,010. The Company and DGteeed that the Company would no longer
issue shares of stock to DCI as payment for itsligtepn of DI, but instead assume the DI's net
liability which represents fair value of the ongoing busirafsBl including its existing cable
internet subscriber base which, in accordance thighpooling of interest accounting applied to
this transaction, was charged to additional paidaipital

The Company has twelve (12) wholly-owned subsielisas of December 31, 2012, as follows:



My Solid Technologies & Devices Corporation (My®Blivas incorporated on April 21, 2009 to
engage in the manufacture, sale, distribution, mahion of any type of digital communication
devices, communication technology, broadband andioatdeo equipment, gadgets and
accessories as well as undertake product reseacdtidevelopment. MySolid merged with
MyTel Mobility Solutions Inc. (MyTel), another whyglsubsidiary of the Company with similar
business, with MySolid as the surviving companfeafve June 1, 2013.

SolidGroup Technologies Corporation (SGTC) was lipomted on November 17, 1989 to
engage in the development and implementation obrinétion technology systems and
applications. On February 22, 2011, the Board ofddors and stockholders approved the
amendment of the SGTC's articles of incorporatiorchange its primary purpose. This was
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commissiodarch 22, 2011 and starting that date,
SGTC'’s primary purpose is to engage in, operatedect and maintain business of designing,
manufacturing, installing, importing, exporting, rketing, distributing or otherwise dealing in at
wholesale and retail prefabricated modular houskdffice units. SGTC was formerly a wholly-

owned subsidiary of SC. In 2007, SGTC became dlybwned subsidiary of the Company

when SC declared property dividend to the Comparikié form of its investment in SGTC.

Solid Video Corporation (SVC) was incorporated owtdber 12, 1984. SVC distributes
professional video equipment, accessories and isgppb broadcast networks and other
companies.

Solid Manila Corporation (SMC) was incorporatedJome 13, 1983. SMC is engaged in the
lease and development of the Company’s real egtaperties. SMC merged with Solid
Distributors, Inc. (SDI), another wholly-owned sigiary of the Company, on December 23,
2003, with SMC as the surviving company. Effectiamuary 1, 2012, SMC merged with Solid
Corporation, also another wholly owned subsididrthe Company engaged in the same business
of leasing real estate properties, with the SM@asurviving company.

Zen Towers Corporation (Zen) was incorporated oly &) 2005. Zen is engaged in the
development and sale of real estate properties.inital project is the Zen Tri-Tower
condominium located in Ermita, Manila.

Precos Corporation (Precos) was incorporated onk@ct31, 1989 to engage in real estate and
related businesses. Prior to 2004, Precos was @@fed by SC and 40% owned by Sony
International (Singapore) Ltd. (SONIS). In 2004edds reacquired as treasury stock the shares
held by SONIS, thereby making the Company a wholiyed subsidiary of SC. In 2007, Precos
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Companynn®€ declared property dividend to the
Company in the form of its investment in Precos.

Kita Corporation (Kita) was incorporated on Octolbefl994. Kita produced color TV sets under
the AIWA brand at its factory located inside thea®l Special Economic Zone. Kita ceased its
operations effective April 15, 2001 after its agneat with Aiwa expired in April 1, 2000 and
was no longer renewed. Kita merged with Clark fRlasvlanufacturing Corporation (CPMC), a
wholly owned subsidiary of SC, on April 2004, witita as the surviving company. After its
merger with CPMC, Kita resumed operations to camtinthe business of CPMC, which is
injected plastics manufacturing as well as thedeafsits property.  In December 2010, Kita
ceased the operations of its injected plastics fiaatwring business. Henceforth, Kita's revenues
principally come from the lease of its properties.



Solid Laguna Corporation (SLC) was incorporatedMay 15, 1995. SLC merged with Solid
City Industrial and Commercial Corporation (SCIC@),wholly-owned subsidiary of Solid
Corporation, on December 28, 2001 with SLC as thevieing company. SLC ceased its
consumer electronics manufacturing operations irceD#wer 2002 after its manufacturing
agreement with SPH expired in September 2002 argl ngh renewed. Subsequently, SLC’s
business is injected plastics manufacturing whicks whe business of SCICC prior to their
merger. SLC ceased the operations of the plagéction manufacturing business at the end of
2009 and operated as lessor of real estate. Sle@eahevith Omni Logistics Corporation (OLC),
another wholly owned subsidiary of the Companyeaffe January 1, 2012, with SLC as the
surviving company. After the merger, SLC resuméé business of OLC of providing
warehousing and logistics services to third partie®n March 19, 2012, SLC changed its
corporate name to Omni Solid Services, Inc.

Solid Electronics Corporation (SEC), which was mpavated on August 9, 1982. SEC operates
the repair and service centers for SONY brands waficaand video consumer electronics
equipment and MyPhone digital devices. SEC mergi@t AA Electronics Corporation
(AAEC), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Camnp and Solid Electronics Services Inc.
(SESI), a wholly owned subsidiary of SC on April 2004 with SEC as the surviving company.

Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL) was incorporated orahh 12, 2003 in the British Virgin Islands
and acquired by the Company on July 31, 2003. B&tdles and manages the placement of the
Company’s investible funds in foreign currency fixéncome financial assets and other
investments.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. (SMFI) was incorporatedSeptember 9, 1999. SMFI is engaged in
the financing and extension of business, appliamckeother loans.

Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) was incorporate@&eptember 22, 2000 to offer broadband
services. SBC obtained a congressional franchiseotstruct, install, establish, operate and
maintain telecommunications systems throughoutPthidippines under Republic Act No. 9116
which took effect on April 15, 2001. It has beeamged provisional authority to use its franchise
by the National Telecommunications Commission onilAp5, 2002. SBC was merged with
Destiny Inc. (DI) as approved by the Securities BRdhange Commission on August 26, 2005,
with SBC as the surviving entity. Henceforth, SB&Swamed the operations of DI of broadband
cable infrastructure and provides transport sesvitean affiliate engaged in cable television
operations. It also provides integrated multimesavices, among which are, VSAT, broadcast
uplink and leased line services. In 2007, SBCtetiathe marketing and distribution of mobile
phones. In 2010, My Solid Technologies & Devicespgdration assumed the importation of the
mobile phones from SBC while MyTel Mobility Solutis Inc. took over the distribution of
mobile phones from SBC. On May 11, 2012, SBC edténto an agreement with Skycable
Corporation for the sale/assignment and purchaseitsofwired and satellite assets and
broadband/internet subscriber base, (See Agresinenffter the sale of its assets, SBC
remaining business was acting as collecting agértky Cable until the SBC’s clients are
transferred to the latter.

Henceforth, the term “Company” would mean the Pe@ampany and/or any of its subsidiaries.



2. Business of Issuer

Principal Products and Services

The consumer electronics business of the Compaanf/@ecember 31, 2012 are:

() sale of mobile phones which generated sales of3B3llion (for 2,985,764 units) or
97% of sales in 2012, P2,908 million (for 2,022,14%ts) or 93% of sales in 2011 and P1,495
million in 2010 (for 739,721 units )or 92% of salam 2010; and (2) after-sales service for
principally SONY brands of consumer electronic pretd and My|Phone with its 37 company-
owned service centers throughout the Philippineksl®®2 independent authorized service centers
as of end of 2012 which generated service incone268 million or 32% of service revenues in
2012, P204 million or 30% of service revenues in2@&nd P203 million or 29% of service
revenues in 2010; and (3) warehousing, distribuéind product testing of consumer electronic
products with service revenue of P116 million o#dl8f service revenue in 2012, P84 million or
12% of service revenues in 2011 and P51 milliorv%r of service revenues in 2010 and (4)
subcontract or toll manufacturing of color TV séts other brand owner (i.e. TCL) which
generated tolling fee of nil in 2012 and 2011 ad@ Rillion in 2010 (for 47,959 units) or 2% of
service revenues;

Solid Broadband Corp. owns and operates a broadbahb infrastructure, which provides
broadband multimedia services such as data transgosices, high-speed cable internet access,
VSAT, broadcast uplink, leased line services antkotmultimedia services. The broadband
multimedia business reported revenues of P156amiilh 2012 or 25% of service income, P374
million in 2011 or 55% of service income in 2011dar391 million in 2010 or 56 % of service
income in 2010. As mentioned above, SBC sold wised and satellite assets and
broadband/internet subscriber base on May 11, 2@&fter the sale of its assets, SBC remaining
business was acting as collecting agent of Sky eC@larporation until the SBC's clients are
transferred to the latter. Sky Cable Corporatitao assumed to pay all cost and expenses in
connection with use and operation of the asseteRues arising from this activity amounted to
P91 million in 2012 or 14% of service revenues {@il2011 and 2010.)

The Company’s other business activities are: theeldpment and sale of industrial estates in
joint venture with Samsung Corporation of Korea ttevelopment of residential condominium
for sale and the development and lease of othdrestate properties, sale of prefabricated
modular houses, and sale of broadcast/professiopéhment and accessories.

The Company’s products are sold in the Philippind®evenues for the last 3 years, are as
follows: broadcast/professional equipment andessaries of P82 million or 2% of sales in
2012, P182 million or 93% of sales in 2011 and Phiition or 7 % of sales in 2010;
prefabricated modular houses of P39 million in 2@t@ P13 million in 2011 (nil in 2010).
Real estate sales amounted to P99 million or 2¥%ewénues in 2012, P126 million or 3% of
revenues in 2011and P207 million or 8% of revenng910.

Distribution

The broadcast/professional equipment and accesssralso sold directly to its corporate clients
such as broadcast stations.

The Company distributes through its subsidiariessamer electronic products and devices in the
Philippines. The MyPhone brand is distributed bySdlid Technologies and Devices
Corporation. As of December 31, 2012, MySoligied approximately 343 dealer accounts.



Status of any-publicly announced new product orviser

None.

Competition

The MyPhone brand celphones distributed by MyS®kd¢hnologies and Devices Corporation
competed with other brands in the Philippine markainly Nokia, Samsung, Sony Ericsson,
Motorola, Cherry Mobile, Torque and other grey nednhones.

The broadcast/professional equipment and accesstivég the Company sells competes with
other brands like Panasonic, JVC and Sharp.

The prefabricated modular houses that the Compaiats are standardized in design, modular
assembled, easy to assemble and disassemblelacateeand can also be stored easily. Its main
products are designed and manufactured using siglel frames and sandwich wall panels that
covers a wide range of applications such as termpoiffices, dormitories for construction sites,
municipal offices, residential settlements, schotdssrooms shops, temporary housing for
disaster relief and military camps, temporary bogd for exhibitions. It competes with Indigo
and Smarthouse.

The Company provides warehousing, and logisticgices mostly to electronics companies. It
competes with Fast Cargo, Yusen and Agility Logstimong others.

The broadband cable services that the Companysatifeough the Destiny hybrid fiber coaxial

cable infrastructure competes with cable compar8kyg, Cable and Cablelink in Metro Manila,

and to some extent with other market players intehecommunication industry such as PLDT,
Bayantel, Globe and Eastern. The cable televisimvice of Global Destiny Inc. operates

throughout Metro Manila via the Company’s broadbealle network infrastructure. It provides

value programming for various markets at competitimonthly service fee rates versus major
competitors Sky Cable and Cablelink. The MyDestittgrnet service is providing Internet users
a higher service level through its broadband teldgyoversus the prevailing dial-up system of
the some of ISP’s operating in Metro Manila. n May 11, 2012, , SBC sold its wired and
satellite assets and broadband/internet subsdrésar. (See Agreements)

Raw Materials, Parts and Components

The Company through its subsidiaries procures raterials for manufacture of its products and
finished products from a number of sources in thdigpines and foreign suppliers. It has an
existing contract through its subsidiary SolidGrolgchnologies Corporation, with a foreign
supplier, for the supply of prefabricated modulauses (See Agreements).

Broadband Facilities

The Company operates broadband cable infrastruessets in Metro Manila from its headend
located in Makati City, providing data transpordanultimedia services. The broadband cable
network is a complex data capable infrastructuiegusiFC (hybrid fiber and co-axial cables)

that covers most of Metro Manila. Planned andt &g one integrated and contiguous system,
the network’s fiber backbone inter-connects 5 hnlgey locations. The various video and data
services riding on this network are delivered tetomers in the 17 cities and municipalities that



compose Metro Manila over its 2,400 strand milesatfle. The network is capable of delivering
these services to 500,000 homes and other destisatiThe services include cable television,
Internet access and email services, virtual privegsvorks; file transfers and downloads, video
and audio streaming and Voice over Internet Protd¢01P). On May 11, 2012, SBC sold its

wired and satellite assets, (See Agreements).

Dependency of the business upon a single or fewess

The Company is not dependent on any single or festomners. There are no major existing sales
contracts.

Service
The Company provides through its subsidiariesy-@fdes service for all the consumer electronic
products it manufactures. As at December 31, 2(12as 37 service centers throughout the

Philippines and 122 independent authorized secgogers.

Related Party Transactions

The Company provides non-interest bearing cashraggto its subsidiaries for their working
capital requirements except for a loan granteddiidanila Finance Inc. Subsidiaries of the
Company generally depend on one another for supipdervices and lease of properties. (See
Item 12- Certain Relationships and Related Traiwmaxbf form 17-A)

Principal Terms and Expiration Dates of all Licenaed Agreements

* Memorandum of Understanding with Sony Philippirias, (Sony)

On July 1, 2003, Solid Electronics Corporation ($E€htered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with Sony for network suppfat Sony and Aiwa products. Under the
MOU, Sony authorized the Company to perform in-amty and out-of warranty services to
customers in the Philippines for a fee calculated percentage of Sony’s annual sales.

In-warranty services shall be rendered free of gdato customers. The actual cost of
replacement parts related to in-warranty servibed be shouldered by Sony. Also, Sony agrees
to pay the Company network support fee equal tool¥et sales for SONY products and 1% or
P50,000 per month whichever is higher for AIWA puots. In the first quarter of 2009, SEC and
Sony agreed to lower the network support feeset®d5%. Effective April 2009, SEC and
Sony agreed that the network support fees shalitlee fixed rate of P1.25 million per month.
The Agreement is effective unless revoked by arthefparties.



» Distributoship Agreement with Sony Corporation

Solid Video Corporation has a non-exclusive Distiidy Agreement with Sony Corporation of
Hong Kong Limited (Sony HK), a corporation orgamiznd existing under the laws of Hong
Kong. Under the agreement , SVC was designategbby HK as its non-exclusive distributor
of Sony products in the Philippines. In additi&V,C shall provide the customers in the
Philippines with repair and parts replacement sesjiincluding but not limited to repair and
parts replacement services rendered by SVC whigk@rered under the 12 month warranty
period at its own costs and expenses.

« Exclusive Distribution Agreement with Yahgee Modutouse Co., Ltd.

SolidGroup Technologies Corporation (SGTC) hasxatusive Distribution Agreement with
Yahgee Modular House Co., Ltd. , a corporation vizgd and existing under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China on June 10, 2011. Utldeagreement, SGTC is designated as the
exclusive distributor of its products under the Mylde brand in the Philippines. The agreement
is valid for three years.

» Agreement with Sky Cable Corporation

On May 11, 2012, the Solid Broadband CorporatidGsentered into an agreement with Sky
Cable Corporation covering the sale, assignmeshtramsfer of its assets, equipment, contracts,
permits, licenses and subscriber base of SBC ustk ioperation of its broadband business.
SBC received the amount of P1 billion as considemébr this transaction.

In addition, Sky Cable Corporation assumes to @@ 8ll cost and expenses in connection with
use and operation of the assets, until the Compapgration is transferred to Sky Cable
Corporation.

* Management Agreement with Sky Cable Corporation

For continuity of services to subscribers, SBC Skyg Cable Corporation agreed that the
management and administration of the Assets besatt to Sky Cable Corporation pending the
approval of the National Telephone Commission (N®fthe assignment of the Assets.

Sky Cable Corporation, as the manager of the Asseis given the overall power and
responsibilities to handle all aspects necessacqrtiy out the administration and operations of
the Assets and SBC, to accord the necessary aulitioithorizations, should the need arise.

The Management Agreement shall remain in effedt Deicember 31, 2013. If NTC’s approval
is not obtained by December 31, 2013, the terntseoManagement Agreement shall be
automatically renewed for two years from such deig thereafter automatically renewed for
another two years from the end of term of its resleuntil the Management Agreement is
terminated.

The Management Agreement shall be automaticaliyitexted on the date NTC approves the
transfer of the Assets in favor of Sky Cable Coation.



e Option Agreement

On May 11, 2012, the Company entered into an Ogtigneement with Sky Cable Corporation
to purchase its shares of stocks in SBC which aptiast be exercised not later than December
31, 2013. As of December 31, 2012, SCC has natisesl the option.

» Franchise
Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) obtained a caosgiomal franchise for 25 years to construct,
install, establish, operate and maintain telecomoations systems throughout the Philippines
under Republic Act No. 9116 which took effect onrihd4, 2001. SBC has been granted
provisional authority to use its franchise by thatiNinal Telecommunications Commission.

Need for any government approval

The assignment/ sale of the assets of Solid BroatiBarporation on May 11, 2012 to Sky Cable
Corporation is pending approval of the NationaleEelmmunication Commission.

Zen Tower Corporation is awaiting the approvallef Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB) its license to sell for the Tower 2.

Effect of existing and probable governmental retjoies on the business

None.

Research and development activities

The Company has not spent any significant amounefearch and development activities in the
last three years.

Costs and effects of compliance with environmelatab

The Company has complied with environmental lawsiaimal costs.

Employees
The Company and its subsidiaries have 392 reguiaployees as at December 31, 2012 as

shown in the table below. It estimates to have dfployees by the end of December 31, 2013.
There is no existing union as of December 31, 20IRere are no employees who would be on
strike nor have been on strike in the past thrgey€ars, nor are threatening to strike. The
Company has no supplemental benefits and inceatramgements with its employees other than
the regular Christmas bonus, thirteenth month pagformance incentives and leave conversions.

Number of employet

Managemel 20
Sales and Distributic 48
Operatiol 77
Service 121
Administratior 80
Financt 46

Total 392




Major Risks involved in the Businesses of the Camypa

The Company and its subsidiaries identify the majsks of the businesses by assessing the
business environment in which they operate. Mdgks and threats are addressed through the
corporate planning process, which defines apprtgpstategic directions and actions to be taken.
These directions and actions are managed by reguidit and management review of the
operations and financial results of the Company ismdubsidiaries. Significant issues, which
may arise as a result of the management reviewtharepresented to the Executive Committee
and the Board of Directors for resolution.

The Company has certain risks in its businessel asacfinancial risk associated with certain
long-term financial investments, specifically bond3§he Company relies on the advice and
research of major leading international financiahgultants on the handling of these financial
investments.

The Company’s business is continuously subjectpidrtechnology changes which may cause
inventory obsolescence. Also, certain infrastrietassets, particularly in the broadband
business, are subject to technological advanceshwtuld affect their economic life and the
cost of providing the service/ product to clientsustomers. The Company monitors
developments in technology advances that could&ffebusiness.

ltem 2. Properties

B. Description of Property

Certain properties owned by the Company throughubsidiaries are as follows:

Land Are: Current and Intende:
Location (insg. m.) Use

Laguna International Industrial Park,nan, 73,53.  Building for leas:

Laguna

La Huerta, Bicutan, Paranac 18,49( Office buildinc & warehouse

San Dionisio, Paranaq 6,69C  Warehouses for lea

San Antonio, Paranaq 4,05¢ Warehouses for lea

Valenzueli, Marulas, Bulace 10,49: Office Building and varehouse

Laguna International Industrial Park, Bini

Laguna 5,141  Building for lease

Pasong Tamo, Makati C 5,00C  Building (Under renovaon for
Hotel and Office use)

Natividac St., Ermita, Manil 4,50¢  Condominium tower und
construction (for sale)

Osmena Blv., Cebu Cit 3,85¢ Service center & office buildin
for lease

Outlook Drive, Baguio Cit 3,84¢ Land for leas

Brgy. Tabuco, Naga Ci 3,05¢ Raw land (Intended for sa

Tandang Sora, Quezon C 2,511 Office Building; (Future site of th

pilot project for modular
residential housing units)



1C

Barrio Pantal, Dagupan Ci 1,91¢ Raw land (Intended for sa

Barrio San Rafael, lloilo Ci 1,75( Service Center and Office buildi
for lease

J. Bocobo St., Ermita, anile 1,72¢ Office buildingand Hote

Brgy. San Roque, San Pablo ( 1,71« Service center and office buildit

Oliveros, Balintawak, Quezon C 1,40( Raw land (Intended for si)

Bacoor, Cavit 1,33¢ Office buildingfor leas:

Cabanatuan City, Nue\Ecija 1,212 Service center ai building for
lease

Brgy. San Rafael, Tarlac, Tar 1,00( Warehouse for lea

Calamba Premiere Industrial P 9,85: Industrial/ Commerci lots for
sale

Araneta, Quezon Ci 1,00(¢ Lanc (Intended for sale or lea:

Brgy. Parian, Prinza and Barandal, Cala  132,92¢ Raw Lant

Solid Corporation also owns a parcel of land in 8glalipapa and Pamaldan, Cabanatuan City,
Nueva Ecija with an area of 1,914,180 square meldris property is the subject of a case filed
by Solid Corporation on October 17, 1995 with Bepartment of Agrarian Reform Regional
Adjudication Board (RARAB) to declare the emancdipatpatents issued to several tenant
farmers of the said property and any patents tlat snbsequently be issued covering the same,
null and void on the ground that the requiremeffitBresidential Decree No. 27 have not been
complied with. The portion of the property that mag subject to litigation consists of 47,211
square meters. On February 6, 1997, the case Wastted for resolution. On June 26, 1997, the
RARAB ordered the processing of the Certificatéafid Transfer for issuance to the tenants. On
July 31, 1997, Solid Corporation appealed the RARAE8cision to the DAR’s Central
Adjudication Board (DARAB). The appeal was resolagtverse to Solid Corporation on January
31, 2002. Solid Corporation appealed the DARAB sieai to the Court of Appeals on February
11, 2002. The Court of Appeals dismissed the petitf Solid Corp. on March 1, 2002. In
November 2002, Solid Corporation withdrew its apgathe Court of Appeals preparatory to
negotiating with DAR and Landbank, which the CafrAppeals granted last June 28, 2004. No
amicable settlement was however reached. Thug] Soliporation filed for a Petition for Higher
Valuation of Land before the Provincial Agrarianf®en Adjudication Board of the Department
of Agrarian Reform in Cabanatuan City on Novemb&r 2007. The Department of Agrarian
Reform granted Solid Corporation’s petition andevedi Land Bank to re-evaluate the land
valuation based only on Republic Act No. 6657 (Twmnprehensive Agrarian Reform Program)
on September 28, 2012. Land Bank amended theti@iuand tendered an Amended Offer of
P14.97 million to Solid Corporation (or Solid MamiCorporation, the surviving company after
the merger of Solid Manila Corporation and Solidri&wation). Solid Manila Corporation
agreed to the offer and is complying the documantatequirements. Solid Corporation also
filed for a Petition for Retention of land with @& of the Regional Director of DAR on July 19,
2007. The petition of Solid Corporation was favdyadndorsed by Municipal Agrarian Reform
Officer to the Regional Director of DAR and reconmded a retention of 3.9 hectares. This is
pending the approval of the Regional Director admfil 2013.

Solid Manila Corporation also owns a property ilillRj Rizal with a land area of 645,193 square
meters. The Department of Agrarian Reform has mémt Solid Manila Corporation that this
property is within the coverage of the Comprehaengigrarian Reform Law which may result in
future litigation. Portion of the property that még subject to future litigation consists of
210,000 square meters. Solid Manila Corporation filad its opposition with the Provincial

Agrarian Reform Adjudication Board (PARAB) on theverage of the land under agrarian
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reform. On August 13, 1997, Solid Manila Corporatabtained a certification from the Office of
the Municipal Planning and Development Coordingf@itilla, Rizal) stating that the subject
properties belonging to Solid Manila Corporation sweeclassified for Agro-industrial &
Industrial use as per Sangguniang Bayan Resolttwrb dated March 6, 1980 and duly ratified
by the government’s Housing & Land Use Regulatooai (HLURB) under their Resolution
No. R-42-A-3 series of 1981, which was adopted ebr&ary 11, 1981. Thus, according to
company's legal counsel, the said properties ammpk from CARP coverage under the
provisions of Department of Justice opinion No. #e Company's legal counsel believes that
the Board will declare the CARP coverage of thejesttbproperties void since Solid Manila
Corporation was clearly denied due process of l&awthe meantime, Solid Manila Corporation
filed for exemption in January 14, 1999 and saipliaption has been indorsed to Center for Land
Use Policy Planning Implementation (CLUPPI) -2 DARreau of Agrarian Legal Affairs on
March 8, 1999. Solid Manila Corporation’s applioatfor exemption was however subsequently
withdrawn. In lieu of the withdrawal, Solid Manil@orporation filed a Protest before the
Department of Agrarian Reforms on the Notice of €age for TCT Nos. 25264, 25265, 25267 ,
26578 and 25268. It likewise filed a Petition faghier Valuation before the Provincial Agrarian
Reform Adjudication Board last June 24, 2009 on litecovered by TCT 25264 which is
pending resolution as of April 2013. Solid Manilar@. was able to secure a retention on the
Pillilia lot covered by TCT No. 25265 while the raming area of around 3 hectares more or less
was subjected to the Voluntary Land Transfer Pnogod the Dept. of Agrarian Reform to the
Solid Manila Corporation's recognized farmers-bigiefies. The Pillilia lots covered by TCT
Nos. 25267, 25264 and TCT No. 25268 were likewiggested to the Voluntary Land Transfer
Program by the Dept. of Agrarian Reforms and disted to the recognized farmer-beneficiaries
of Solid Manila Corp. On the Pillilia lot covereg¢t BCT No. 26578, the Regional Director of the
Department of Agrarian Reform granted our petition exemption for TCT No. 26578 on
January 30, 2012.

There are two other cases involving certain progef Solid Manila Corporation. Its titles to
the Balintawak, Quezon City property with land apg81,423 square meters, currently used as a
service center and office building, are sought éodnnulled in a civil action filed on 25th
September, 1990, with the Regional Trial Court Brari20 on the ground that another title
covers the same area claimed by Lilia Sevilla eCal July 14, 1995, the in-house counsel
assumed the case. On January 20, 2003, the RTCHB129 rendered a decision in favor of Lilia
Sevilla annulling seven titles of Solid Manila Corgation to wit-- TCT Nos. 12729 up to 12736.
SMC filed an appeal with the Court of Appeals. T@mpany's legal counsel believes that the
titles of Solid Manila Corporation will prevail ov¢ghose of the claimants on the grounds that the
titles of the claimants are being sought to beifiedl and voided by the government itself. The
government’s case filed by the Land RegistratiothArity (which is represented by the Office of
the Solicitor General) before the Regional Triau@dRTC) Branch 122 was for the annulment
of claimant’s title. Solid Manila Corporation filedn intervention in the government’s case
despite opposition by Lilia Sevilla et.al. The Coalfowed Solid Manila Corporation to intervene
in the government’s case. Pending the incidentluérathird party intervenors, the Department of
Justice recommended the dismissal of the Regidtddemds (ROD) and Deputy ROD of
Caloocan based on inquiry of the antecedent facthe case. In November 2000, the RTC
Branch 122 rendered a decision in favor of the guwent, thus nullifying the land titles of Lilia
Sevilla et. al., who subsequently appealed thesdetiof RTC Branch 122 to the Court of
Appeals. SMC consolidated these cases as of Fgt2084. Lilia Sevilla et. al. filed a motion
for reconsideration to the Court of Appeals’ ordemsolidating these cases. The Court of
Appeals had received the memoranda of the respeptivties of Lilia Sevilia, the Government
and Solid Manila Corp. and had raffled the casarntother division for the promulgation of the
decision. This case is now submitted for decisidrere is no decision as of April 2013.
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Plant and equipment

The Company through its subsidiary owns plant apdpement for its broadband operations (See
Broadband Facilities). The plant and equipmentofmadband operations are located in Makati
City and in the various hub sites in Metro Manilan May 11, 2012, SBC sold its wired and
satellite assets, (See Agreements).

Franchise

A Company's subsidiary, Solid Broadband Corporati@BC), obtained a congressional
franchise to construct, install, establish, operatel maintain telecommunications systems
throughout the Philippines under Republic Act N&1® which took effect on April 15, 2001.
SBC's applications for provisional authority to uge franchise was approved by the National
Telecommunications Commission on April 15, 200he Tompany uses the Destiny broadband
infrastructure in operating the franchise.

Mortgage, lien or encumbrance and limitation on emship or usage on the properties

Except for the above third party claims filed agaithe Company’'s subsidiaries as disclosed
above, there are no other mortgage, lien or encamglerand limitation on the ownership or usage
on the properties.

Lease agreements

The Company through its subsidiaries has entetedcirtain lease contracts with several lessors
for the following properties:

Locatior Annual Ren Expiration Dat
(In Thousand Pesos)

Clark, Pampanc 7,717 March and August 20:
Metro Manile 27,46%* December 2C2

Metro Manile 9,952  August 201.

Orbital spac 11,522 August 201,

* With increase after every five years on the leastand and 10% annual increase on lease of
the improvements after the first five years.

** Represents lease of poles for the operationadile television in Metro Manila. The contract
was assigned to Skycable Corporation after theafate assets on May 11, 2012.

*** Represents lease of internet connection. Toetact was assigned to Skycable Corporation
after the sale of its assets on May 11, 2012.

****x Represents lease of transponder for telecomitation and satellite uplink services. The
contract was assigned to Skycable Corporation #ftesale of its assets on May 11, 2012.
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The above lease contracts are renewable upon nagregment of the parties.

Also, the Company through its subsidiaries, pritgagolid Manila Corporation and Kita
Corporation, leases out to tenants certain reategiroperties as summarized below. These
leases are renewable on terms mutually acceptalte tparties.

Location Annual Ren Expiration Dat
(In Thousand Pesos)

Bacoor, Cavit 4,15¢ Juy 31, 201:

Balintawak, Quezon Ci 21,89: Various up to Septemtk, 201¢
Cagayan de O 1,84z Various up to Janua 31, 201t
Chino Roces Ave, Makati Ci 13,54¢ Various up tcJuly 6, 201

Clark, Pampanc 28,577 Various up tcJune 15, 201
lloilo 1,621 Various up tcSeptember 14, 20
Laguna International Industri 40,462 Various up toJune 30, 201

Park, Binan, Laguna

Laguna International Industri 3,375 April 30, 2013

Park, Binan, Laguna

La Huerta, Bicutan, Paranac 5,81( Various up to March 31,20
Ermita, Manile 7,98% Various up to February 20
Ermita, Manile 4,761 Variousup to December 14, 20
San Dionisio, Paranaque C 1,17 February 14, 201

Properties the Company intends to acquire in thé tmelve months

The Company estimates capital expenditures forydse 2013 to amount to P500 million for
various real estate development and/ or renovati@olid House Building. The purchase and/or
construction of these capital expenditures willflmanced primarily through the funds of the
Company.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

C. Legal Proceedings

As discussed Item 2 (See Properties), certainidiabes of the Company are involved in
litigation or other proceedings affecting theirpestive titles to real estate property and certain

other litigation in relation to property, the outece of which could individually or taken as a
whole, not adversely affect the financial resutiserations or prospects of the Company. The
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Company does not believe any such litigation wdlvd a significant impact on the financial
results, operations or prospects of the Company.

Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecugtHolders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of tharigg holders during the fourth quarter of the
fiscal year covered by this report.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Iltem 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Relaed Stockholder Matters

A. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant's Common Equity and Related
Stockholders Matters

(1) Market Information

(@) Principal Market

The principal market for the registrant’'s commoniggis the Philippine Stock Exchange

® The registrant's common equity is listed anddid only at the Philippine Stock

Exchange. The high and low sales prices for eadlter within the last two years are as follows:
Stock Prices

High (P) Low (P)

201z

First quarte 1.37 1.1C
Second quart 1.6¢ 1.22
Third quarte 2.71 1.3¢
Fourth quarte 2.2C 1.8t
2011

First quarte 1.4¢ 0.82
Second quart 1.3¢ 1.0C
Third quarte 1.7¢ 1.11
Fourth quarte 1.3¢ 1.0¢

(ii)
Not applicable. The principal market is the Plulipe Stock Exchange.

(b) The Company share was trading at P2.08 as ot 26, 2013 (the latest practicable
trading date).

(c) Notapplicable. This reportis not filedriglation to registration of securities.

(2) Holders
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The number of shareholders of record as of DeceBhe2012 was 4,482. Common shares
outstanding as of December 31, 2012 were 1,821)88Z%hares. Total issued shares as of
December 31, 2012 were 2,030,975,000.

Top 20 stockholders of the Company’s common stecfdecember 31, 2012:
No. of Share: % to Total

Name of Stockholder Held Outstanding
1. AA Commercial, Inc 583,377,81 32.0¢
2. AV Value Holdings Corporatic 499,999,99 27.4¢
3. PCD Nominee Corpotion (F) 326,610,74 17.9:
4, Lim, David S 179,488,59 9.8t
5. Lim, Vincent S 71,887,18 3.9t
6. Lim, Jason ¢ 65,176,16 3.5¢
7. PCD Nominee Corporation (N 46,307,66 2.5
8. Chua, Willington Chua &/or Constanti 11,610,00 0.6
9. Chua, Conantino &/or Willington &/or Georg 1,750,001 0.1C
1C. Hottick Development Corporatis 1,408,001 0.0¢
11. Chua, Willingtor 1,110,00! 0.0¢
12. Paz, Vensa 1,065,001 0.0¢
13. Lucio W. Yan &/or Clara Yai 1,000,001 0.0t
Columbian Motors Corporatic 1,000,00( 0.0t
14, Juan Go Yu &/or Grace Chu" 94(,00C 0.0t
15. Ong, Victori¢ 632,00( 0.0¢
16. Union Properties, In 625,00( 0.0¢
17. Lim Florencio | 600,00( 0.0¢
18. Lim, Julic 590,00( 0.0z
19. Castillo Laman Tan Pantaleon & San Jose 536,00( 0.0¢
Offices
20. Jacinto, Ray £ 500,00 0.0z
GMA Farms Inc 500,00( 0.0z

b. Not applicable. This report is not filed in akbn to registration of securities or any
acquisition, business combination or other reogtin.

c. Not applicable. This report is not filed in id@a to any acquisition, business combination or
other reorganization.

d. Not applicable. This report is not filed idatton to registration of securities.
3) Dividends

a. In 2012, cash dividends amounted to P0.06 per shastockholders of record as of October
31, 2012. None were declared in 2011 and 2010.

b. The Company’s retained earnings as of DeceBibe2012 included undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and unconsolidated investees, whieh raot currently available for dividend
declaration until such time that the subsidiariagendistributed them. The Company’s retained
earnings is also restricted for the cost of 209,@@3 treasury shares amounting to P115.6 million
as of December 31, 2012.
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(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Seeariti

There was no sale of unregistered or exempt sauitit 2010 to 2012.

a. Securities Sold.

No securities were sold by the Company from 20120t2.

b. Underwriters and Other Purchases

Not applicable. There were no securities were bglthe Company from 2010 to 2012.
c. Consideration

Not applicable. There were no securities were bglthe Company from 2010 to 2012.
d. Exemption from Registration Claimed

Not applicable. There were no securities were bglthe Company from 2010 to 2012.
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Item 6. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis anRif Operation

A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan dperation

(1) Plan of Operation

Not applicable. The Company have revenues fromatipas in each of the last two fiscal years.
(2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Full Fiscal Years

Key Performance Indicators

The following key performance indicators were idfied by the Company: asset turnover,
revenue growth, operating expense ratio, earningfr® interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA), earnings per share, curmatip and debt to equity ratio.

Revenue growth was determined as follows: revefurethe current year less revenues for last
year or change in revenues divided by the reveofit®e previous year.

Asset turnover was computed based on the reverareede during the year divided by the
average total assets.

Operating expense ratio was calculated as folloggerating expenses for the period divided by
revenues for period.

EBITDA was determined by adding back interest egpedepreciation and amortization charges
to income before tax on continuing operationstieryear.

Earnings per share was computed based on the gwhénor loss for the period divided by the
weighted average shares outstanding during the year

Current ratio was computed as follows: total curi@ssets as of end of the year divided by total
current liabilities as of end of the year.

Debt to equity ratio was computed by dividing tbtat liabilities (excluding amounts due to
related parties) as of end of the year by the &xalty as of end of the year.

Key performance indicators for 2012, 2011 and 2010 are asfollows:

December 31, 20: Dec. 31, 201 Dec. 31, 201
Revenue growth 18% 53% 17%
Asset turnover 40% 37% 26%
Operating expense 14 % 16% 19%
ratio
EBITDA P1,574 million P660 million P452 tidin
Earnings (loss) per P0.68 P0.24 P0.13
shart
Current ratio 3.14:1 2471 2.81:1

Debt to equity ratio 0.33:1 0.36:1 0.29:



18

2012

The Company recorded revenue growth of 18% in 2Qfénst 53% in 2011. The improvement
in revenues was principally driven by the distribotbusiness segment as the my|phone business
increased its sales with the introduction of newdetdineup; and, the investing and financing
business segment’s higher revenues from additfonal placements.

Asset turnover stood at 40% in 2012 from 37% it2Principally from higher revenues of the
distribution segment.

Operating expense ratio was lower at 14% in 206 fr16% in 2011. The improvement was
mainly due to higher revenues reported for the.year

EBITDA reached P1,574 million in 2012 as comparéith w660 million in 2011. The Company
reported one-time gain on sale of assets of P28ibmand gain on reversal of asset impairment
of P437 million from the sale of assets by the Hhazand segment. Moreover, profits on the
my|phone business improved as it increased satbsnanaged its inventory levels and earnings
of the investing and financing business segmem frdditional fund placements.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.68 in 2012 frOm24P in 2011 primarily from higher
reported profits in 2012.

Current ratio stood at 3:14:1 as of December 8124rom 2.47 :1 as of December 31, 2011 as
the Company’s liquidity position improved from theceeds of the sale of the broadband assets.

Debt to equity ratio stood at 0.33: 1 as of Degen81, 2012 from 0.36 : 1 as of December 31,
2010 primarily due to improved equity position thear.

2011

The Company posted revenue growth of 53% in 28117% in 2010. Revenues improved
by 53% in 2011 as sales of digital products ofdistribution segment doubled in 2011.

Asset turnover was 37% in 2011 from 26% in 2@k¥en by higher revenues of the
distribution segment in 2011.

Operating expense ratio stood at 16% in 2011 &d ih 2010. The improvement was mainly
due to higher revenues for the year.

EBITDA amounted to P660 million in 2011 againsbP4million in 2010. The increase was
mainly due to higher operating profit from thistdbution and real estate segment.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.24 in 2011 ¥é?8ul3 in 2010 mainly from higher net
income for the year.

Current ratio stood at 2.47 :1 as of December2811 and 2.81 : 1 as of December 31, 2010
mainly due to higher current liabilities.

Debt to equity ratio stood at 0.36 : 1 as of Degen81, 2011 from 0.29 : 1 as of December 31,
2010 primarily due to higher liabilities.
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2010

Revenue improved by 17% in 2010 vs. revenue traxf 44% for the same period in 2009.
Revenue improved by 17% in 2010 but not as higm&009 mainly due to lower real estate
sales offset by higher sales of the trading anddisand segments in 2010.

Asset turnover improved to 26% in 2010 from 2422009 principally from higher revenues of
the trading and broadband segments.

Operating expense ratio was higher at 19% in 2@hdpared with 15% in 2009 mainly due to
higher operating expenses of the trading segment.

EBITDA amounted to P452 million in 2010 againsBB3million in 2009. The increase was
mainly due to higher operating profit during tfear.

Earnings per share amounted to P0.13 in 2010 sé?8ul2 in 2009 mainly from higher net
income in 2010.

Current ratio stood lower at 2.81 :1 as of Decan®ie 2010 from 3.94 : 1 as of December 31,
2009 mainly due to higher current liabilities fréoans incurred for the Golden Hill Project.

Debt to equity ratio was higher at 0.29 : 1 aBe€ember 31,2010 from 0.23 : 1 as of December
31, 2009 primarily due to higher liabilities.

Results of Operations 2012

Revenues amounted to P4,890 million in 2012, imipgpby 18% from P4,149 million in 2011
as discussed below.

Sale of goods amounted to P3,959 million in 20Lp, by 26% from P3,135 million in 2011
mainly as sales of digital products improvedwtite introduction of new model lineup and also
from higher sales of prefabricated modular houses.

Service revenue amounted to P630 million in 20&g&h P682 million in 2011 as its revenue
declined due to broadband’s sale of assets andriodas base in May 2012.

Rental income amounted to P 136 million in 201dfrP157 million in 2011, lower by 13%
principally due to decrease in occupied spaceh@aSbmpany terminated certain lease contracts
since the Solid House Building was renovated.

Sale of real estate amounted to P 98 million illZ20ower by 22% from P126 million in 2011
since there was no sale of industrial lot for 2012.

Interest income amounted to P 64 million in 20d2higher by 35% from P47 million in 2011
mainly from higher investible funds as the Compamproved its cash position from the
proceeds on the sale of the broadband assets.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted @&6P3nillion in 2012, or an increase of 16%
from P3,159 million in 2011 as discussed below.
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Cost of sales amounted to P 3,092 million in 20&@her by 22%, from P2,524 million in 2011
in relation to the increase in sales.

Cost of services amounted to P 488 million in 2&b2n P499 million in 2011 in relation to
service revenue.

Cost of rentals amounted to P35 million in 20X2aadecrease of 11% from P39 million in
2011 principally due to lower rental and other tne=d.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P 45 million2012, lower by 52% from P95 million in
2011. The decline was mainly in relation to lowale of real estate.

Gross profit amounted to P1,228 million in 201@nfrP989 million in 2011. The increase was
principally due to higher revenues.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to Riillibn other operating income in 2012
against P412 million other operating expensestl2as explained below.

General and administrative expenses amounted #3Rlllion in 2012 from P366 million in
2011. The decline was principally due to lower ragiag expenses of the broadband segment
after it disposed of its assets.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P 36llianiin 2012, higher by 30% from P278
million in 2011 mainly from higher commissions.

Gain on sale of assets of 267 million in 2012 repnés the one-time gain from the sale of
broadband assets (none in 2011).

Other operating income- net amounted to P553 millio 2012 from P232 million in 2011
principally due to one-time gains on reversal aedsmpairment of P437 million from the sale of
the broadband assets.

Operating profit amounted to P 1,345 million in 2(flom P577 million in 2011, improving by
133% from higher gross profit and other operatiipme and gain of sale of asset as discussed
above.

Other income (charges) amounted to P 172 millian ga 2012 against P3.5 million loss in 2011
mainly from the following:

Finance income amounted to P163 million in 201éhpared with P64 million in 2011. The
increase was principally contributed by reversafsiropairment loss on trade and other
receivables of the broadband segment.

Finance costs amounted to P49 million in 2012 caagbavith P89 million in 2011 primarily due
to lower impairment losses on trade and other vabéés and foreign currency losses.

Other gains amounted to P57 million in 2012 vef@R2% million in 2011 primarily due to gain
on derecognition of liabilities.

Income before tax reached P1,517 million in 2@2higher by 165% from P573 million in
2011 mainly due to higher operating profit as exmd above. The sale of assets of the
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broadband segment posted P267 million one time-gaisale of assets and P437 million reversal
of impairment allowances.

Tax expense amounted to P276 million in 2012 fRiB9 million in 2011 due to higher pre-tax
income.

Profit from continuing operations amounted to P1,2dillion in 2012 against P434 million in
2011 due to the factors discussed above.

Loss from discontinued operations in 2011 represtises on the remaining plastic injection
operations as it disposed its remaining stocks€nnr012).

Net profit for the year reached P1,241 million 812 against P430 million in 2011.

Net income attributable to equity holders of theepa amounted to P1,244 million in 2012
against P439 million in 2011 as discussed above.

Net loss attributable to minority interest amountedP2 million loss in 2012 compared with P9
million loss in 2011. The share in losses for@&atden Hill project in Nanning, China was offset
by interest income on placements of the real esegeent.

Financial Position 2012

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P3,019 oméis of December 31, 2012, up by 76%
from P1,720 million as of December 31, 2011. Cas&s mainly provided from investing
activities mainly from the proceeds on the saleasdets of the broadband segment and from
operating activities principally from decreaserimentories, collection of customers’ deposits and
advances and it was used for financing activitiesarily for payment of interest bearing loans
and dividends.

Trade and other receivables reached P1,287 mid®mf December 31, 2012 against P1,137
million as of December 31, 2011. The increase waxipally due to higher receivable position
of the distribution segment.

Advances to related parties was P21 million aBedfember 31, 2012 compared to P128 million
as of December 31, 2011 principally from collectiarfi advances during the year.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slevas nil as of December 31, 2012 versus P70
million in 2011 due to disposal of these investraent

Available-for-sale financial assets was nil as afcBmber 31, 2012 from P51 million as of
December 31, 2011 mainly due to disposals madegltire period.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amoutatd®B91 million as of December 31, 2012,
compared with P564 million as of December 31, 2841the Company improved its inventory
position in the distribution segment.

Real estate inventories amounted to P2,011 milasnof December 31, 2012 from P1,675
million as of December 31, 2011. The increase pvamarily due to continuous construction of
Golden Hill Project.
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Other current assets amounted to P252 million aBemfember 31, 2012 compared with P267
million as of December 31, 2011, or a decreas®Wf was mainly due to lower input VAT and
creditable withholding taxes.

Total current assets reached P6,984 million asaxfeinber 31, 2012 from P5,616 million as of
December 31, 2011 as discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivable amountd®b&0 million as of December 31, 2012 from
P669 million as of December 31, 2011. The decrease principally due to lower translated
value of the foreign-currency receivables aridirgn the appreciation of the Philippine peso
against the US dollar.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetedtat P9 million as of December 31,
2012 against P 7.8 million as of December 31, 2@hlincrease of 15% principally from
fair value gains of club shares.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,04#liomas of December 31, 2012 from
P1,386 million as of December 31, 2011, a decrefs24% mainly due to sale of assets of the
broadband segment.

Investment property amounted to P4,017 milliomaBecember 31, 2012 and P3,864 million as
of December 31, 2011. The increase was due tedhie gains recognized this year.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P73 milloonfeDecember 31, 2012 and P79 million as
of December 31, 2011. The decrease was principakyto claims and refund by the broadband
segment.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P63 milloafdecember 31, 2012 and P69 million as of
December 31, 2011, a decrease of 10% principally ttulower allowances for inventory
obsolescence and provision for warranty.

Other non-current assets amounted to P22 millicof &=cember 31, 2012 and 2011. There was
no material variance for this account.

Total non-current assets amounted to P 5,863 millie of December 31, 2012 from P6,100
million as of December 31, 2011 as discussed above.

Total assets reached P12,848 million as of Decemisdr, 2012 from P11,716 million as of
December 31, 2011 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P571 milliomfa®ecember 31, 2012 from P779 million as
of December 31, 2011, a decrease of 27% pringipak to payment of loans during the year.

Trade and other payables amounted to P628 millmrofaDecember 31, 2012 against P592
million as of December 31, 2011, higher by 6% puiity due to higher trade payables incurred
for the Golden Hill Project.

Customers’ deposits amounted to P881 million aBedember 31, 2012 versus P686 million as
of December 31, 2011, an increase of 28% due ditiadal collection of deposits from real
estate and prefabricated modular houses buyers.
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Advances from related parties amounted to P11 anilks of December 31, 2012 from P107
million as of December 31, 2011, lower by 89% dupdayments made during the year.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasts amounted to P68 million as of December
31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. There was no neawsior this account.

Income tax payable amounted to P65 million as ofdbeber 31, 2012 from P43 million as of
December 31, 2011 mainly due to higher tax expenses

Total current liabilities stood at P2,227 millios ef December 31, 2012 from P2,277 million as
of December 31, 2011 as explained above.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P16omihs of December 31, 2012 from P15
million as of December 31, 2011 from additional a&fs.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P 12iarmillas of December 31, 2012 and P6 million
December 31, 2011. The increase was due to unfunetr@ément benefit obligation of the
distribution segment.

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P 920lioml as of December 31, 2012 and P861
million as of December 31, 2011. The increase wasguily from provision for fair value gains
on investment property.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P948 iwoill as of December 31, 2012 from P882
million as of December 31, 2012 and December 31120

Total liabilities amounted to P3,176 million asm&cember 31, 2012 from P3,160 million as of
December 31, 2011.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen#i, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 roilias of December 31, 2012 and December
31, 2011.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Dbee 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Revaluation reserves amounted to P46 million IessfaDecember 31, 2012 from P29 million
loss as of December 31, 2011 due to other compseleimcome for the period mainly from
currency differences on translating financial steats of foreign operations offset with
reclassification adjustments for losses recognizgmtofit or loss.

Retained earnings amounted to P2,758 million aPetember 31, 2012 from P1,623 million as
of December 31, 2011 as a result of net incomedandend declaration during the period.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Rgramounted to P9,269 million as of December
31, 2012 from P8,151 million as of December 31,120de to higher retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P402 million as ofd@mber 31, 2012 and P405 million as of
December 31, 2011. There was no material varifordhis account.
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Total equity amounted to P9,671 million as of E&mber 31, 2012 from P8,556 million as of
December 31, 2011.

Results of Operations 2011

Revenues reached P4,149 million in 2011 from P2, /@ion in 2010, improving by 53%
driven by strong sale of goods of the disbribusegment as discussed below.

Sale of goods amounted to P3,135 million in 20fésting growth of 93% from P1,622 million
in 2010 as digital products sales doubled in 2011.

Service revenue amounted to P682 million in 20dinf P694 million in 2010. There was no
material change for this account.

Sale of real estate amounted to P 126 million ih12@own by 39%, from P207 million in
2010. This was principally due the lower salenaluistrial lots for the period.

Rental income amounted to P157 million in 201hfi@121 million in 2010, improving by 30%
principally due to more space rented out.

Interest income amounted to P47 million in 2011wddy 24% from P63 million in 2010
mainly from lower investible bonds.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted G2 3nillion in 2011 or up by 68% from P1,875
million in 2010 as discussed below.

Cost of sales amounted to P2,524 million in 201htweip from P1,225 million in 2010, or
higher by 106% in relation to higher sales.

Cost of services amounted to P499 million in 20y 8% against P460 million in 2010 from
higher direct charges on broadband maintenanceemeciation.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P95 milliog0d1, lower by 37% from P151 million in
2010. The decrease was mainly in relation to lcvede of real estate.

Cost of rentals amounted to P39 million in 2011nfr&38 million in 2010, up by 3%. The
increase was principally due to higher taxes.

Gross profit amounted to P989 million in 2011, imypng by 19% from P834 million in 2010
principally due to higher revenues.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted toP4ill@mmin 2011 compared with P421
million in 2010 as explained below.

General and administrative expenses amounted toRidB6n in 2011 versus P281 million in
2010, or higher by 30% principally due to highergonnel and warranty costs.

Selling and distribution costs amounted toP278iomllin 2011, or an increase of 22% from
P227 million in 2010, mainly from higher advsirig costs .
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Other operating income amounted toP232 million2versus P87 million in 2010, or an
increase of 166%. This was primarily due to higaé value gains on investment property.

Operating profit improved by 40% to P577 million 2011 from P412 million in 2010 from
P374 million in 2009 mainly from higher gross praind other operating income.

Other income (charges) amounted toP3.5 million 1as8011 or an increase of 92% from P46
million loss in 2010 mainly from the following:

Finance costs amounted to P89 million in 2011 &8&8 million in 2010 There was no material
variance for this account.

Finance income amounted to P61 million in 2011, loyp 58% compared with P38 million in
2010 mainly due to the higher interest income flagher placements of the real estate segment,
higher impairment reversals, interest income framarfcing the condominium units and foreign
currency gains.

Other gains amounted to P24 million in 2011 ver8A@s/ million in 2010 principally due to
income from common usage area.

Income before tax reached P573 million in 20Xlhigher by 56% from P366 million in 2010
mainly due to higher operating profit as explaiabove.

Tax expense amounted to P139 million in 2011 fRh22 million in 2010 principally due to
higher pre-tax income of certain subsidiaries.

Profit from continuing operations amounted to PA8Hion in 2011 from P243 million in 2010
mainly from higher operating profit as explainedwad.

Loss from discontinued operations amounted to R8lBn loss in 2011 versus P17 million in
2010 as the Company continued to dispose its rengastocks.

Net income amounted to P430 million in2011 aga227 million in 2010 due to the factors
discussed above.

Net income attributable to equity holders of theepaamounted to P439 million in 2011 against
P229 million in for the same period of 2010 asdésed above.

Loss attributable to minority interest amountedP®million in 2011 compared with P2 million
in 2010 primarily due to expenses of the Golden ptibject in Nanning, China.

Financial Position 2011

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P 1,72@médk of December 31, 2011, higher by 6%
from P1,620 million as of December 31, 2010. Cass wnainly provided from operating
activities primarily from advances from customersthe Golden Hill project.

Trade and other receivables reached P1,137 mili® of December 31, 2011 against P890
million as of December 31, 2010, or higher by 28dfcipally due to higher trade receivables on

digital products. Trade customers are generatgbtished and stable companies with reasonable
assurance of collectibility of their accounts. MNtheless, trade accounts are periodically
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reviewed to assess the possible losses from néectioh and allowance is provided for possible
losses on accounts which are considered doubtitblction.

Advances to related parties amounted to P128 milis of December 31, 2011 from P201
million as of December 31, 2010 principally duetdliections received.

Financial assets at fair value through profit aslamounted to P70 million as of December 31,
2011 versus none in 2010 principally from purchasade during the year.

Available-for-sale financial assets amounted to P&illion as of December 31, 2011 from P138
million as of December 31, 2010 mainly due to dggs made for the period.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amouiatétb64 million as of December 31, 2011,
increasing by 44% compared with P392 million &®ecember 31, 2010 mainly from higher
merchandise and finished goods for digital products

Real estate inventories amounted to P1,675 millisnof December 31, 2011 from P1,328
million as of December 31, 2010 or higher by 26%he increase was mainly due to additions
made during the period offset by real estate sold.

Other current assets amounted to P267 millionf @oember 31, 2011 and P242 million as of
December 31, 2010 or a increase of 10% principfatign higher prepaid expenses, creditable
withholding taxes and advances to suppliers anttactors.

Total current assets reached P5,616 million asexfeinber 31, 2011 from P4,813 million as of
December 31, 2010 as discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivable amount&b&® million as of December 31, 2011 from
P640 million as of December 31, 2010 mainly froighler cash surrender value of investment in
life insurance.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetodtat P7 million as of December 31, 2011
against P12.1 million as of December 31, 2010 fdaaline in market value of shares.

Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,38#liomas of December 31, 2011 from
P1,396 million as of December 31, 2010. There meamaterial variance for this account.

Investment property amounted to P3,864 millioofaBecember 31, 2011 and P3,646 million as
of December 31, 2010 mainly due to fair value gaimsnvestment property.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P79 millsoofddecember 31, 2011 from P74 million as
of December 31, 2010, increasing by 6% from coutidms during the year.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P69 millmmfaDecember 31, 2011, higher by 113%
from P32 million December 31, 2010 mainly on high&luation allowance on inventories.

Other non-current assets amounted to P22 mill®oefaDecember 31, 2011 or a decrease of
10% from P24 million as of December 31, 2010 flomer prepaid insurance.

Total non-current assets amounted to P6,100 mildie of December 31, 2011 from P5,828
million as of December 31, 2010 as discussed above.
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Total assets reached P11,716 million as of Decemi3d, 2011 from P10,642 million as of
the December 31, 2010 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P779 millionfd3ecember 31, 2011 from P989 million as
of December 31, 2010 due to payments made to baskhey matured in 2011 offset with loan
availments from related parties.

Trade and other payables amounted to P592 millimrof December 31, 2011 against P413
million as of December 31, 2010, up by 43% prinyadilie to higher trade payables.

Customers’ deposits amounted to P686 million in12pdincipally due to deposits received for
the pre-selling of the condominium units of Golditi Project in Nanning, China.

Advances from related parties amounted to P107iomias of December 31, 2011 from P168
million as of December 31, 2010 due to repaymehéglvances made during the year.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeosts amounted to P68 million as of December
31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. There was no nmentdior this account.

Income tax payable amounted to P43 million as ofdbeber 31, 2011 from P44 million as of
December 31, 2010. There was no material changaifoaccount.

Total current liabilities stood at P2,277 millias of December 31, 2011, higher by 33% from
P1,713 million as of December 31, 2010 as expthatsove mainly due to higher trade and other
payables.

Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P1bilion as of December 31, 2011 and P15.2
million as of December 31, 2010. There was nceenwltchange for this account.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P6 millass of December 31, 2011 from P3 million
December 31, 2010 mainly from unpaid contributions.

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P861 imillas of December 31, 2011 and P798
million as of December 31, 2010, higher by 8% gpally arising from fair value gains on
investment property for the year.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P882 limil as of December 31, 2011 from P817
million as of December 31, 2010.

Total liabilities amounted to P3,160 million as@®cember 31, 2011 from P2,530 million as of
December 31, 2010 as discussed above.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen#i, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 ioilas of December 31, 2011 and December
31, 2010.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Dbee 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
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Revaluation reserves amounted to P29 million IesefeDecember 31, 2011 from P43 million
loss as of December 31, 2010 due to other compsalerincome for the period consisting
mainly reclassification adjustments for losses ge@ed in profit or loss for the year and
translation currency adjustments, offset by faiue losses on available for sale financial assets

Retained earnings amounted to P1,623 million aDetember 31, 2011 from P1,183 million as
of December 31, 2010 as a result of net incomenduhie period.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Rgramounted to P8,151 million as of December
31, 2011 from P7,697 million as of December 31,20de to higher retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P405 million as ofdember 31, 2011 from P414 million in
December 31, 2010 primarily from share of minoiityet loss.

Total equity amounted to P8,556 million as of E&mber 31, 2011 from P8,111 million as of
December 31, 2010.

Results of Operations 2010

Revenues reached P2,709 million in 2010, or higlge 17% from P2,323 million in 2009 as
discussed below.

Sale of goods amounted to P1,622 million in 20d@roving by 44 % from P1,124 million in
2009 mainly due higher volume of sales of thetdigiroducts.

Service revenue amounted to P694 million in 2Q§® by 10% from P630 million in 2009
principally higher broadband revenues as a resiticoease in subscribers in 2010.

Sale of real estate amounted to P207 million BilQ? or lower by 43% from P360 million in
2009. This was principally due the lower salenalistrial lots for the period.

Rental income amounted to P121 million in 2018lahtly higher by 8% from P112 million in
2009 principally due to more space rented out.

Interest income amounted to P63 million in 20110down by 34% from P95 million in 2009
mainly from lower yield of the placements and &ts@009, the Company earned interest income
from the amortization of discounts on held to migguinancial assets versus none in 2010 as a
result of the reclassification of these financeEdets to available for sale.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted & B1million in 2010, or higher by 15% from
P1,624 million in 2009 as discussed below.

Cost of sales went up to P1,225 million in 2000 higher by 44%, from P849 million in 2009 in
relation to the increase in sales.

Cost of services amounted to P460 million in 20d@lmost the same level as last year of P458
million in 2009.

Cost of real estate sold amounted to P151 miliio@010, or a decrease of 46% from P282
million in 2009. The decrease was mainly in relatio lower sale of real estate.
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Cost of rentals amounted to P38 million in 201@nf P33 million in 2009, or an increase of
15%. The increase was principally due to highésida services

Gross profit amounted to P834 million in 2010nfird?699 million in 2009, up by 19%
principally due to higher revenues and higher giraargin of the broadband segment.

Other operating expenses (income) amounted to Pd#lion in 2010 against P325 million in
2009 as explained below.

General and administrative expenses amounted t&@ R28lion in 2010, or up by 12% from
P250 million in 2009 principally due to higheropision for warranty and others.

Selling and distribution costs amounted to P22Tianiin 2010, up by 134% from P97 million
in 2009 mainly from higher commissions, persoramal advertising costs .

Other operating income amounted to P87 million20.0, increasing by 283% compared with
P22 million gains in 2009. This was primarilyedto higher fair value gains on investment
property and return on retirement plan assets 1920

Operating profit amounted to P412 million in 20i@m P374 million in 2009, or a increase of
10%, mainly from higher gross profit.

Other income (charges) amounted to P46 millios Ia% 2010 against P82 million loss in 2009
mainly from the following:

Finance costs amounted to P88 million in 2010, eksing by 26% against P118 million in
2009 mainly due to the losses on the sale of fareigrrency denominated financial assets in
2009, none in 2010. Impairment losses on findrcsets was however incurred in 2010.

Finance income amounted to P38 million in 2010, loyp 12% compared with P34 million in
2009 mainly due to the reversal of impairment lessgtrade and other receivables.

Other gains amounted to P2.7 million in 2010 verBd.6 million in 2009 principally due to
income from common usage area.

Income before tax reached P366 million in 20Xthigher by 25% from P292 million in 2009
mainly due to higher operating profit as explaiabove.

Tax expense amounted to P122 million in 2010 fi®®3 million in 2009 principally due to
higher pre-tax income of certain subsidiaries.

Profit from continuing operations amounted to P&iBion in 2010 from P228 million in 2009
as a result of the higher profit in 2010.

Loss from discontinued operations amounted to Pilliomin 2010 vs. P2 million in 2009. In
2009, the Company started phasing out its plasjection manufacturing business which had
been incurring operating losses.

Net income amounted to P226 million in 2010 and®0espite higher revenues in 2010 mainly
due to higher tax expense in 2010.
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Net income attributable to equity holders of theepaamounted to P229 million in 2010 against
P203 million in in 2009 as discussed above.

Net income attributable to minority interest amaehto P2.6 million in 2010 compared with
P23 million income in 2009 due to higher earnimgs the industrial estate business of the
Company in 2009 .

Financial Position 2010

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to P 1,62m@méls of December 31, 2010, up by 28%
from P1,263 million as of December 31, 2009. Casis provided from financing activities
mainly from proceeds of loans and used for opegadictivities for increase in receivables and
inventories. It was also used for investing atihgi for acquisition of property and equipment.

Trade and other receivables reached P890 madlsonf December 31, 2010 against P501 million
as of December 31, 2009, or higher by 78% pridlgipdue to higher receivable for digital
products. Trade customers are generally estadligimel stable companies with reasonable
assurance of collectibility of their accounts. Mtheless, trade accounts are periodically
reviewed to assess the possible losses from néectioh and allowance is provided for possible
losses on accounts which are considered doubtitbligction.

Available-for-sale financial assets stood at P18ilion as of December 31, 2010, lower by 55%
from P305 million as of December 31, 2009, mafndyn disposal of financial assets.

Merchandise inventories and supplies - net amoumtét892 million as of December 31, 2010,
increasing by 371% compared with P83 million afetember 31, 2009 mainly from higher
merchandise and finished goods for digital products

Real estate inventories amounted to P1,328 millisnof December 31, 2010 from P1,046
million as of December 31, 2009 or higher by 27%he increase was mainly due to additions
made during the period offset by real estate sold.

Advances to related parties amounted to P201 milis of December 31, 2010 from P504
million as of December 31, 2009 or lower by 60%.ertain advances as at December 31, 2009
were mainly provided to MyTel Mobility Solutionsdn(MyTel) for working capital purposes.
The acquisition of MyTel was consummated in Jan2&30. The said advances were included
and eliminated in the consolidated financial staetsin 2010.

Other current assets amounted to P242 million faBDexember 31, 2010, lower by 19%
compared with P299 million as of December 31, 2@@@cipally from lower advances to
suppliers and contractors.

Total current assets amounted to P4,813 millioof &ecember 31, 2010 from P4,003 million as
of December 31, 2009 as discussed above.

Non-current trade and other receivable amounteB640 million as of December 31, 2010
from P679 million as of December 31, 2009 or lo6% mainly from lower non-current trade
receivables on real estate sales and finance adaesy.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assetodtat P12 million as of December 31, 2010
against P8 million as of December 31, 2009 or arefmse of 51% mainly from club shares.
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Property, plant and equipment amounted to P1,39#liomas of December 31, 2010 from
P1,397 million as of December 31, 2008 or almostsiime level.

Investment property amounted to P3,646 milliomBecember 31, 2010 from P3,617 million
as of December 31, 2009 or almost the same level.

Retirement benefit assets amounted to P74 millmofaDecember 31, 2010 or higher by 63%
from P45 million December 31, 2009 mainly from wdmutions made during the year and lower
unrecognized actuarial gains.

Deferred tax assets - net amounted to P32 milisrof December 31, 2010, higher by 20% from
P27 million as of December 31, 2009 principally doi¢ax assets from temporary differences.

Other non-current assets amounted to P24 millonfdDecember 31, 2010 and December 31,
2009 or almost the same level.

Total non-current assets amounted to P5,828 milis of December 31, 2010 from P5,801
million as of December 31, 2009 as discussed above.

Non-current assets held for sale stood at noneeasmber 31, 2010 from P12 million as of end
of 2009 mainly due to sale of equipment.

Total assets reached P10,642 million as of Decemi3d, 2010 from P9,817 million as of the
December 31, 2009 as discussed above.

Interest-bearing loans amounted to P989 millimwfaDecember 31, 2010, higher by 136% from
P419 million as of December 31, 2009 principallyedi» additional loan availments for the
Golden Hill Project in China offset by payment ofree loans.

Trade and other payables amounted to P413 millimrof December 31, 2010 against P322
million as of December 31, 2009, up by 28% prinyadiie to higher trade and accrued expenses,
refundable deposits, advances from customers.

Advances from related parties amounted to P168amilis of December 31, 2010, down by 16%
from P201 million as of December 31, 2009 due tnmnts made.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeosts amounted to P68 million as of December
31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. There was no nmentdior this account.

Income tax payable amounted to P44 million as ofdbeber 31, 2010 from P4 million as of
December 31, 2009 mainly from due to higher piionigor income tax.

Total current liabilities stood at P1,713 millias of December 31, 2010, higher by 69% from
P1,016 million as of December 31, 2009 as explaatex/e mainly due to higher interest bearing
loans and trade and other payables.

Non-current interest bearing loans amounted to rmenef year-end 2010 from P135 million as
of December 31, 2009 principally due to reclasatfan of non-current loans to current for
financial statement presentation since Fil-Dragas wot able to comply with the debt to equity
ratio covenant.
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Non-current refundable deposits amounted to P18iomias of December 31, 2010, higher by
37% from P11 million as of December 31, 2009 tydirom additional deposits received.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to P3 millms of December 31, 2010 , up by 110%
from P1 million as of December 31, 2009 mainly frbigher present value of obligation.

Deferred tax liabilities -net amounted to P798 lionl as of December 31, 2010 from P825
million as of December 31, 2009 from lower accurteddair value gains as of year-end.

Total non-current liabilities amounted to P817 limil as of December 31, 2010 from P973
million as of December 31, 2009.

Capital stock stood at P2,030 million as of Decen8i, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Additional paid-in capital amounted to P4,641 roiflias of December 31, 2010 and December
31, 2009.

Treasury shares amounted to P115 million as of Dbee 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

Revaluation reserves amounted to P43 million lessfaDecember 31, 2010 from P101 million

loss as of December 31, 2009 due to other compséheimcome for the period consisting of

currency differences on translating financial staets of foreign operations, fair value gains on
available for sale financial assets and reclasgifio adjustments for losses recognized in profit
or loss.

Retained earnings amounted to P1,183 million aBetember 31, 2010 from P954 million as of
December 31, 2009 as a result of net income dihiageriod.

Total equity attributable to Equity holders of Rgramounted to P7,697 million as of December
31, 2010 from P7,409 million as of December 31,200e to higher retained earnings.

Minority interest amounted to P414 million as ofdember 31, 2010 from P417 million in
December 31, 2009 primarily from share of minoiityet income.

Past and future financial condition and results of operations, with particular emphasis on the
prospects for the future.

The Company maintained a strong financial condiiershown in its balance sheets for those periods
so that it was always poised to take advantagewveistment opportunities that would contribute $o it
overall business strategy. In 2012, the Compamgladed the sale of the broadband assets of Solid
Broadband Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiaryhaf Company. The sale further strengthened
the Company’s financial position with the sale pding a P1 billion proceeds. It increased itattot
assets to P12.8 billion in 2012 from P11.7 billior2011 and P10.64 billion in 2010. It increastsd
equity to P9.65 billion in 2012 from P8.56 billian 2011 and P8.11 billion in 2010. It has
maintained a low debt to equity ratio of 0.33:12012 from 0.36 : 1 in 2011 and 0.29:1 in 2010 and
even a lower gearing percentage (computed as dimlagebt divided by total equity) of 6% in 2012
from 9% in 2011 and 12% in 2010 resulting frormimial financial borrowings thereby reducing its
credit risk (the risk of default in payment of Ieario minimal level. Additionally, the company kep
significant amounts of cash and cash equivalerdsshort-term cash investments as part of its ctirren
assets to maintain its liquidity such that its euntrratio had always exceeded the conservativeofule
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thumb of 2 : 1 by achieving a current ratio ofl81 in 2012 from 2.47:1 in 2011 and 2.81:1 in
2010.

The Company will continue to maintain its strongaficial condition in the future. Although its low
debt load provides the company with substantiak delpacity to borrow funds to finance future
projects/investments, management has set a limifinancial borrowings to a maximum gearing of
50% of equity.

The results of operations of the Group for the yaradted December 31, 2012 was a net income of
P1,241.6 million from P430.3 million in 2011 and28.70 million in 2010, translating to earnings
per share of P0.68, P0.24 and P0.13 in 2012, 20d12@10, respectively. The broadband asset sale
contributed a one-time gain on sale of assets 67 R2d gain on reversal of asset impairment of P437
million. Moreover, the improved earnings was achikby strong revenue growth and earnings of the
digital products of the distribution business segnand also of the investing and financing business
segment in 2012.

The Group expects its consolidated operationsottimue to be profitable in the future as robust
growth is projected in its distribution businesgraent as new products and models are introduced
and as brand equity continues to grow. This gratdirection is consistent with the Company’s
conscious effort to continue leveraging on itsdristl core competence in consumer electronics and
similar products. The number of mobile phone ugetthe country has more than doubled in just a
few years and is expected to further increase enytbars to come. The Company will capitalize on
the rising demand of mobile phone and continue gtiver mobile phones of high quality and
competitive prices and continue to grow my|phoneketashare. It has partnered with a mobile and
web application development company which will esolely develop Filipino-made applications to
its roster of mobile phones to support its committrie deliver and redefine consumer expectations
from the fast-phased mobile revolution. Moreoverreal estate business segment will continue to
be a significant value driver in the future andjthwconstant revenue streams, provide a significant
hedge against possible downturns in the other besisegments. The construction of Tower 2 of the
condominium project was competed in 2012 and ajrestdrted providing revenues in 2012. The
Company expects Tower 2 to improve sales in 20k8.May 2011, the Company launched the
My|House brand and sold prefabricated modular égugsing the modular building technology of
Yahgee Modular House Co., Ltd. of China. On iisdtlyear, the Company expects sales to hit the
P100 million mark. In 2012, the Company starteditot project of modular residential housing anit
in Tandang Sora, Quezon City called My|Rainbow &laclow-rise condominium project using the
same modular insulated steel housing technologhie froject aims to provide affordable modern
urban housing for the working-class Filipinos. htigh the project had minor setbacks in 2012, it is
expected to proceed in May 2013 and to be compisitdn the year. The Company also started the
renovation of Solid House Building in 2012 with rcted capital expenditures of about P300 million.
It started development of a Business Hotel andchE@enter consisting of 157 rooms to be named
Green Sun Hotel and expects to generate reven @& i

i.
Known Trends or Demands, Commitments, Events oedainties that will impact Liquidity.

The Company is not aware of any known trends, desjacommitments, events or uncertainties
that will materially impact on its liquidity.

ii. Events that will trigger Direct or Contingent Firéad Obligation that is material to the
Company, including any default or accelerationrobhligation.

As discussed in Notes of the financial statementieu Contingencies, certain subsidiaries of the
Company are involved in litigation or proceedinti® outcome of which could individually or
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taken as a whole, not adversely affect the findneaults, operations or prospects of the
Company. Except of these contingencies, the Comjmmpt aware of other events that will
materially trigger direct or contingent financidligation.

iii. Material Off-Balance Sheet Transactions, Awgaments, Obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationshipstted Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the rempperiod.

The Company has no material off-balance sheetactiosis, arrangements, obligations and other
relationships with unconsolidated entities or othersons created during the period that is not
included in the financial statements.

iii. Material Commitments for Capital Expenditures, ¢femeral purpose of the Commitment
and Expected Sources of Funds

The Company estimates capital expenditures forytdse 2013 to amount to P500 million for
various real estate development and/ or renovati@olid House Building. The purchase and/or
construction of these capital expenditures willflmanced primarily through the funds of the
Company.

V. Known Trends, Events or Uncertainties that willpact Sales/Revenues/Income from
Continuing Operations

On November 23, 2009, the Company’s managemerntodest in public its plan of phasing out

its unprofitable plastic injection manufacturingsiness which includes Kita Corporation (Kita)
and Solid Laguna Corporation (SLC). SLC ceasesl dperations of the plastic injection

manufacturing business at the end of 2009. Alsita Keased the operations of its injected
plastics manufacturing business in December 20I0ta and SLC plastic injection business are
expected to reduce about 1% and 5% of revenueseatdsely while the Company does not
expect any reduction in income.

On May 11, 2012, Solid Broadband Corporation (SBGI its wired and satellite assets and
broadband/internet subscriber base.  After the chits assets, SBC remaining business was
acting as collecting agent of Sky Cable until tlBCS clients are transferred to the latter. SBC
broadband business is expected to decrease abibubfli@venues and income.

Vi. Significant elements of Income or Loss thiat mot arise from Continuing Operations
In 2012, Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) soldhgsets. The disposal of the assets of SBC

contributed to a one time gain on sale of asse8267 million and gain on reversal of asset
impairment of P437 million.
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Vii. Causes for any Material Changes from PerioBedod

On May 11, 2012, Solid Broadband Corporation (SB®)d its wired and satellite assets and
broadband/internet subscriber base. The dispdthk assets of SBC contributed to a one time gain
sale of assets of P267 million and gain on revakasset impairment of P437 million.

Balance Sheet Items (2012 vs. 2011)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 76% increase to P3ytillidn from P1,720 million

Mainly provided by investing activities mainly froproceeds on the sale of assets of the broadband
segment and from operating activities principatlynfi decrease in inventories, collection of cust@ner
deposits and advances and it was used for finaragtigities primarily for payment of interest bewyi
loans and dividends. This account stood at 24%jpescentage of total assets for years 2012 and. 2011

Trade and other receivables — 13 % increase to L Rillion from P1,137 million

Mainly from increase in trade receivables on digiteducts. This account stood at 10% as a peagent
of total assets in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Advances to related parties — 83% decrease to Allibmfrom P128 million

Principally from collections of advances madghis account stood at 0.16% and 1% as a percentage of total
assets in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Financial Assets through fair value and loss — 1086rease from P70 million

Financial assets at fair value through profit msl@amounted to nil as of December 31, 2012 versQs P
million in 2011 mainly due to disposals made dutimg period

Available-for-sale financial assets — 100% decrefasm P51 million

The decrease was principally due to disposal @ffiiel assets. This account stood at nil and 4% as
percentage of total assets in 2012 and 2011, rixgplyc

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 31 % desgréa P391 million from P564 million

Mainly due improved inventory position in the dilsttion segment. This account represented 3% and 5%
as a percentage of total assets in 2012 and 2€4dectively.

Real estate inventories — 20% increase to P2,0lliomfrom P1,675 million

The increase was mainly due to construction of @oldill Project. This account stood at 10% and 14%
as a percentage of total assets in 2012 and 2€4dectively.

Other current assets — 6% decrease to P252 miftiom P267 million
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Mainly due to lower input VAT and creditable witHdimg taxes. This account stood at 2% as a
percentage of total assets for years 2012 and 2011.

Non-current trade and other receivables — amoumded630 million as of December 31, 2012, decreased
by 6% from P670 million as of December 31, 2011.

Mainly due to lower translated value of the fore@nrency receivables. This account stood at 7% as
percentage of total assets for years 2012 and 2011.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets5%.increase in 2012 to P9 million from P7.8 million

Mainly from fair value gains of club shares. Thizaunt stood at nil and 0.007% as a percentagetaf t
assets for 2012 and 2011.

Property, plant and equipment — 24% decrease t048.million from P 1,386 million

Mainly due to sale of assets of the broadband setgme&his represented 8 %% and 12% as a percentage
of total assets in 2012 and 2011.

Investment property — P4,017 million from P3,864iom

Mainly from fair value gains for the year. This aoat stood at 31% and 33% as a percentage of total
assets in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Retirement benefit assets - 8% decrease to P7®mfllom P79 million

Decrease was mainly due to claims and refund bybtbadband segment.This represented 0.57% and
.67% of total assets in 2012 and 2011, respectively

Deferred tax assets —net - 10% decrease to P@®mftom P70 million

Mainly due to lower allowances for inventory obsalence and provision for warranty. This account
stood at 0.49% and 0.60% of total assets in 2042841 respectively.

Other non-current assets — no change
This represented 0.17% and 0.19% as percentagtat@ssets in 2012 and 2011 respectively.
Interest-bearing loans — 27% decrease in 2012 td1Pillion from P779 million

Mainly due to payments of loan during the yearisTdccount stood at 4% and 7% as a percentage of
total liabilities and equity in 2012 and 2011, resjvely.

Trade and other payable —6% increase to P628 milfrom P592 million

Increase was due to higher trade payables inctoreitie Golden Hill Project. This account stoodb%
as a percentage of total liabilities and equit2®12 and 2011.

Customers’ Deposit — increase to P881 million fi@686 million
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Principally due to additional collection of depgsftom real estate and prefabricated modular houses
buyers

Advances from related parties — 89% decrease torRillibn from P107 million

The decrease was due to payments made during theel p@&his account stood at 0.09% in 2012 and
0.9% in 2011 as a percentage of total liabilitied aquity.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeaosts — no change

There was no movement during the period. This attcapresented 0.53% and 0.58% as a percentage of
total liabilities and equity in 2012 and 2011, resjvely.

Income tax payable —50% increase to P65 millionoaecember 31, 2012 from P43 million as of
December 31, 2011.

Mainly due to higher tax expenses. This accourst pegged at 0.50% and 0.37% of the total liakslitie
and equity in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Non-current refundable deposits — amounted to Riiion from P15.6 million

No material change. This represented 0.12% and®®.dBthe total liabilities and equity in 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Retirement benefit obligation — 106% increase t@ Rillion from P6 million

Mainly from unfunded retirement obligation of thistdibution segment. This account stood at 0.97% an
0.05% of the total liabilities and equity in 2012da2011, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities — 7 % increase to P920lmil from P861 million

The increase was principally from provision forrfaalue gains on investment property. This account
stood at 7% as a percentage of total liabilities equity for 2012 and 2011.

Capital stock — no change
This account stood at 16% and 17%of total liabgited equity for 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change

This account represented 36 % and 39% of totalitiab and equity for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Treasury Shares — no change
This account represented 1% and 10% of total ltesland equity for 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Revaluation reserves —amounted to (P46 millionnf{®29 million)

Principally due to other comprehensive income fog period consisting of currency differences on
translating financial statements of foreign operat offset with reclassificationadjustments fosdes
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recognized in profit or loss. This account stobd86%% and 0.25% total liabilities and equity2il2
and 2011, respectively.

Retained earnings — 70% increase to P2,758 mifliom P1.623 million

As a result of net income and dividend declaratioming the period. This account stood at 21% and
13.85% of total liabilities and equity in 2012 &20@fl1, respectively.

Income Statement Items (2012 vs. 2011)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Sale of goods — 26% increase to P3,959 million fR811.35 million

Primarily because sales of digital products impcbwdth the introduction of new model lineup andoals
from higher sales of prefabricated modular hous20it?. As a percentage of total revenues, thisuattco
represents 81% and 76% in 2012 and 2011 , resphcti

Service revenue —8% decrease to P630 million fré82Rmillion

Principally due to broadband’s sale of assets abdciber base in May 2012.

Sale of real estate — 22% decrease to P98 miliomfP126 million

Principally since there was no sale of industrigs Ifor 2012. As a percentage of total revenuss, t
account decreased to 2% in 2012 and 16% in 2011.

Rental income — 13% decrease to P136 million frdaPmillion

Principally due to decrease in occupied spacebea€bmpany Terminated certain lease contracts since
the Solid House Building was renovated. As a paeggn of total revenues, this account represents 3%
and 4% for years 2012 and 2011.

Interest income — 35% increase to P64 million fil@4Y million

Mainly from higher investible funds as the Compamproved its cash position from the proceeds on the

sale of the broadband assets. As a percentagéabfréwenues, this account represents 1% in 2042 an

.01% in 2011.

Cost of sales - 22% increase to P3,092 milliomfP2,524 million

Mainly in relation to higher sales. As a perceptaf total sales, this account represented 63%012 2
and 61% in 2011.

Cost of services - 2% decrease to P488 milliomff499 million

Principally in relation to service revenue. This@nt decreased to 10% in 2012 and 12% in 20HL as
percentage of total revenues.

Cost of real estate sold — 52% decrease to P4%miffom P95 million
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The decrease was mainly in relation to lower séleal estate. As a percentage of total reveniés,
account decreased to 1% in 2012 and 2% in 2011.

Cost of rentals — 11% increase to P35 million frB80 million

Primarily from lower rental and other overhead. isThccount represents 1% as a percentage of total
revenues for years 2012 and 2011.

General and administrative expenses — 7% decreaB&43 million from P366 million

Principally due to lower operating expenses oftttadband segment after it disposed of its asgetsa
percentage of total revenues, this account dead@asé&o in 2012 from 9% in 2011.

Selling and distribution costs — 30% increase t&P#illion from P278 million

Mainly from higher commissions. This account reradirat 7% of total revenues for 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Gain on sale of assets — 267 million

One-time gain from the sale of broadband asset® m02011.

Other operating income —net - 138% increase to PB#Bon from P232 million

Primarily due to one-time gains on reversal of fsswairment of P437 million from the sale of
broadband assets. This account increased to 112018 from 6% in 2011 as a percentage of total
revenues.

Finance income — 154% increase to P163 million fRGY4 million

Principally contributed by reversals of impairméwgs on trade and other receivables of the broatlban
segment. This account increased at 3% of totahwezs&for 2012 from 1.8% in 2011.

Finance costs — P49 million from P89 million
Primarily due to lower impairment losses on trade ather receivables and foreign currency losses.
Other gains - net —P57 million to P21 million

Primarily due to gain on derecognition of liabégi This account increased to 1.17% in 20X#n fr
0.59% in 2011 as a percentage of total revenues.
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Balance Sheet Items (2011 vs. 2010)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 6% increase to P1,7tH0mfrom P1,620 million

Mainly provided by financing activities from proakeof loans, by operating activities primarily
from increase in receivables and inventories anithgsting activities for acquisition of property
and equipment. This account stood at 15% as a mage of total assets for years 2011 and
2010.

Trade and other receivables — 28% increase to PiLriBlion from P890 million

Mainly from increase in trade receivables on digiteducts. This account stood at 10% and 8%
as a percentage of total assets in 2011 and 2€4fectively.

Advances to related parties — 36% decrease to Pditidn from P201 million

Principally due to collections mad@&his account stood at 1% and 2% as a percentage of total assets in
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Financial Assets through fair value and loss — 10@%ounting to P70 million

Financial assets at fair value through profit aslamounted to P70 million as of December 31,
2011 versus none in 2010 principally from purchasade during the year.

Available-for-sale financial assets — 62% decreasB51 million from P138 million

The decrease was principally due to disposal @nfiial assets. This account stood at .4% and
1% as a percentage of total assets in 2011 and B&ddectively.

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 43% increa$@564 million from P393 million

Mainly from higher merchandise and finished goods #igital products. This account
represented 5% and 4% as a percentage of totas as@d11 and 2010, respectively.

Real estate inventories — 26% increase to P1,6lmirom P1,328 million

The increase was mainly due to additions made duha period offset by real estate sold. This
account stood at 14% and 12% as a percentageabhssets in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Other current assets — 10%increase to P267 milliom P242 million

Principally from higher prepaid expenses, cred#éakithholding taxes and advances to suppliers
and contractors. This account stood at 2% as &ptge of total assets for years 2011 and 2010.
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Non-current trade and other receivables — amounte&8670 million as of December 31, 2011,
increasing by 4% from P640 million as of DecemhbkrZ)10.

Mainly from higher cash surrender value of invesitria life insurance. This account stood at
6% as a percentage of total assets for years 261 2@410.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets 598 decrease in 2011 to P7.8 million from
12.11 million

Mainly from lower market value of shares. This agmostood at 0.067% and 0.11%as a
percentage of total assets for 2011 and 2010.
Property, plant and equipment — P1,386 million frBh396 million

There was no material variance for the accounts Tépresented 12%% and 13% as a percentage
of total assets in 2011 and 2010.

Investment property — P3,864 million from P3,646iom

Mainly from fair value gains for the year. Thiscaant stood at 33% and 34% as a percentage of
total assets in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Retirement benefit assets -6% increase to P79amifiom P75 million

Increase was mainly from contributions made duthregyear. This represented .67% and 1% of
total assets in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Deferred tax assets —net - 113% increase to PA®dmfrom P32 million

Mainly due to higher valuation allowance on invei@s. This account stood at 0.60% and 0.30%
of total assets in 2011 and 2010 respectively.

Other non-current assets — 10% decrease in 20PR®million from P24 million.

Mainly due to lower prepaid insurance. This repnése 0.19% and 0.23% as percentage to total
assets in 2010 and 2009 respectively.

Interest-bearing loans — 21% decrease in 2011 t89illion from P989 million

Mainly due to payments made to banks as they matir2011 offset with loan availments from
related parties. This account stood at 7% and 9% @ercentage of total liabilities and equity in
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Trade and other payable —43% increase to P592 anilfrom P413 million

Increase was due to higher trade and accrued espeamgundable deposits. This account stood at
5% and 4% as a percentage of total liabilities ety in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Customers’ Deposit — increase to P686 million fi@&® million



42
Principally due to deposits received for the pridirggof the condominium units of Golden Hill
Project in Nanning, China.
Advances from related parties — 36% decrease t&Pdillion from P169 million

The decrease was due to payments made during thoel p€his account stood at 0.9% in 2011
and 2% in 2010 as a percentage of total liabiliied equity.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasts — no change

There was no movement during the period. This atceepresented .58% and 0.6% as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity in 2Gikid 2010, respectively.

Income tax payable —amounted to P43 million as e¢dnber 31, 2011 from P44 million as of
December 31, 2010.

No material change. This account was pegged a@®.8nd 0.41% of the total liabilities and
equity in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Non-current refundable deposits — 2% increase 6.8 Million from P15.2 million

No material change. This represented 0.13% and/®df4he total liabilities and equity in 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Retirement benefit obligation — 96% increase tafion from P3 million

Mainly from unpaid contributions. This account sttt 0.05% and 0.03% of the total liabilities
and equity in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities — 8% increase to P861 ioifl from P798 million

The increase was principally from higher accumuaddér value gains on investment property for
the year. This account stood at 7% and 8% as &ipage of total liabilities and equity for 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Capital stock — no change

This account stood at 17% and 19%of total liabgited equity for 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change

This account represented 39 and 44% of total Itadsl and equity for 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Treasury Shares — no change

This account represented 10% and 1% of total itedsl and equity for 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Revaluation reserves — 33% decrease to (P29 mijlfiam (P43 million)
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Principally due to other comprehensive income ffiar period consisting of currency differences
on translating financial statements of foreignrafiens, fair value gains on available for sale
financial assets and reclassification adjustmeotsldsses recognized in profit or loss. This
account stood at .25%% and 0.41% total liabilitied equity in 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Retained earnings — 37%% increase to P1.623 miftiiom P1.183 million

As a result of net income during the period. Thisaaint stood at 13.85% and 11% of total
liabilities and equity in 2011 and 2010, respedtive

Balance Sheet Items (2010 vs. 2009)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Cash and cash equivalents — 28% increase to PInGRion from P1,263 million

Mainly provided by financing activities from proakeof loans, by operating activities primarily
from increase in receivables and inventories anithgsting activities for acquisition of property
and equipment. This account stood at 15% and 13% @ercentage of total assets in 2010 and

2009, respectively.

Trade and other receivables — 78% increase to R8Bbn from P501 million

Mainly from increase in trade receivables on digit@ducts. This account stood at 8% and 5%
as a percentage of total assets in 2010 and 2€§8ectively.

Available-for-sale financial assets — 55% decre@asP138 million from P305 million

The decrease was principally due to disposal @ifaial assets. This account stood at 1% and 3%
as a percentage of total assets in 2010 and 2€§8ectively.

Merchandise inventories and supplies — 371% in@ead?392 million from P83 million

Mainly from higher merchandise and finished goods #&igital products. This account
represented 4% and 1% as a percentage of totas as@910 and 2009, respectively.

Real estate inventories — 27% increase to P1,33®mirom P1,046 million

The increase was mainly due to additions made guhia period offset by real estate sold. This
account stood at 12% and 11% as a percentageabfssets in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Advances to related parties - 60% decrease in 20201 million from P504 million

Mainly from additional advances. This account dt@d 2% and 5% as a percentage of total
assets in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Other current assets — 19% decrease in 2010 to Pa@#dn from P299 million

Principally from lower advances to suppliers andtractors. This account stood at 2% and 3% as
a percentage of total assets in 2010 and 200%cteply.
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Non-current trade and other receivables — amounte&8640 million as of December 31, 2010,
decreasing by 6% from P679 million as of Decemlder2B09.

Mainly from lower non-current trade receivablesreal estate sales and finance receivables. This
account stood at 6% and 7% as a percentage ofigsats in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Non-current available-for-sale financial assets 3% increase in 2010 to P12 million from P8
million

Mainly from higher club shares. This account stab@®.11% and 0.08%as a percentage of total
assets for 2010 and 2009.

Property, plant and equipment — P1,396 million frBh397 million

There was no material variance for the accounts Tedpresented 13% and 14% as a percentage of
total assets in 2010 and 2009.

Investment property — P3,646 million from P3,61Hiom

There was no material variance for this accounis Htcount stood at 34% and 37% as a
percentage of total assets in 2010 and 2009, rixeplyc

Retirement benefit assets -63% increase to P74omiiftom P45 million

Increase was mainly from contributions made duthwgyyear and lower unrecognized actuarial
gains. This represented 1% and 0.46% of total @#3&010 and 2009, respectively..

Deferred tax assets —net - 20% increase to P3®omilrom P27 million

Mainly due to tax assets from temporary differenddss account stood at 0.30% and 0.27% of
total assets in 2010 and 2000 respectively.

Other non-current assets — no change

There was no material variance for this accounis Tépresented 0.23% and 0.25% as percentage
to total assets in 2010 and 2009 respectively.

Non current assets held for sale - 100% decreas®mhe from P12 million

Non-current assets held for sale stood at non®1® 2nd P12 million as of December 31, 2009
mainly due to sale of equipment

Interest-bearing loans — 136% increase to P989iamilfrom P419 million
Principally due to additional loan availments fbetGolden Hill Project in China offset by
payment of some loans. This account stood at 9%A8tcs a percentage of total liabilities and

equity in 2010 and 200%spectively.

Trade and other payable —28% increase to P413anilfrom P322 million
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Increase was due to higher trade and accrued expeamfundable deposits. This account stood at
4% and 3% as a percentage of total liabilities eopaity in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Advances from related parties — 16% decrease t@Pdilion from P201 million

The decrease was due to payments made during tiwdp@&his account stood at 2% as a
percentage of total liabilities and equity for bgdars.

Estimated liability for land and land developmeasts — no change

There was no movement during the period. This attcapresented 1% as a percentage of total
liabilities and equity for both years.

Income tax payable —amounted to P44 million as etdnber 31, 2010 from P4 million as of
December 31, 2009

Mainly from higher provision for income tax. Thagcount was pegged at 0.41% and 0.05% of
the total liabilities and equity in 2010 and 208&5pectively.

Non-current interest-bearing loans — 100% decreaseone from P135 million

The decrease was mainly due to reclassificatiomasf-current loans to current for financial
statement presentation since Fil-Dragon was nat &blcomply with the debt to equity ratio
covenant. This accounted for the 1% of the to#ddilities and equity in 2009.

Non-current refundable deposits — 37% increaselb million from P11 million

The increase was mainly due to additional depasiteived during the year. This represented
0.14% and 0.10% of the total liabilities and equt2010 and 2009, respectively.

Retirement benefit obligation — 110% increase tariBon from P1 million

Mainly from higher present value of obligation. $kccount stood at 0.02% and 0.01% of the
total liabilities and equity in 2010 and 2009, resjvely.

Deferred tax liabilities — 3% decrease to P798 imillfrom P825 million

The decrease was principally from lower accumuléaédvalue gains. This account stood at 8%
as a percentage of total liabilities and equitytfoth years.

Capital stock — no change

This account stood at 19%of total liabilities andiggin both years.
Additional Paid-In-Capital — no change

This account represented 44% of total liabilitiad aquity in both years.
Treasury Shares — no change

This account represented 1% of total liabilitied aquity in both years.
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Revaluation reserves — 57% increase to (P43) milfiom (P101) million

Principally due to other comprehensive income far period consisting of currency differences
on translating financial statements of foreignratiens, fair value gains on available for sale
financial assets and reclassification adjustmeotsldsses recognized in profit or loss. This
account stood at 0.41% and 1% total liabilities aqdity in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Retained earnings — 24% increase to P1.183 mifiiom P954 million

As a result of net income during the period. Thiscaint stood at 11% and 9% of total liabilities
and equity in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Income Statement Items (2011 vs. 2010)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)
Sale of goods — 93% increase to P3135 million fRily622 million

Primarily because digital products sales double®Ohl. As a percentage of total revenues, this
account represents 76% and 60% in 2011 and 2@Epectively.

Service revenue —P682 million from P694 million
No material change.
Sale of real estate — 39% decrease to P126 miftiam P207 million

Principally due to lower sale of industrial loté\s a percentage of total revenues, this account
decreased to 16% in 2011 and 8% in 2010.

Rental income — 30% increase to P157 million froh2 Pmillion

Principally due to more space rented out. As a@ernge of total revenues, this account
represents 4% for years 2011 and 2010.

Interest income — 24% decrease to P47 million fR68 million

Mainly from lower investible bonds. As a percegataf total revenues, this account declined
t0.01% in 2011 and 2% in 2010.

Cost of sales - 106% increase to P,2524 milfrom P1,225 million

Mainly in relation to higher sales. As a perceptafjtotal sales, this account represented 61% in
2011 and 45% in 2010.

Cost of services - increase to P499 million fi@d60 million

Principally from higher direct charges on broadbaraintenance and depreciation. This account
increased t012% in 2011 and 17% in 2010 as &ptage of total revenues.



47

Cost of real estate sold — 37% decrease to P9%amiffom P151 million

The decrease was mainly in relation to lower sdleeal estate. As a percentage of total
revenues, this account decreased to 2% in 20116&fmih 2010.

Cost of rentals — 3% increase to P39 million froB88Rnillion

Primarily from higher taxes. This account represel% as a percentage of total revenues for
years 2011 and 2010.

General and administrative expenses — 30% incr&a&366 million from P281 million

Principally due to higher provision for warrantydaathers. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account decreased to 9% in 2011 from 10% 020

Selling and distribution costs — 22% increase t@®million from P227 million

Mainly from higher commissions, personnel and aiilsiag costs. This account remained at 7%
and 8% of total revenues for 2011 and 2010, resmbet

Other operating income —net - 166% increase to R28kon from P87 million

Primarily due to higher fair value gains on investmproperty. This account increased to 6% in
2011 from 3% in 2010 as a percentage of total nesen

Finance income — 58% increase to P61 million frc88 Rillion

Primarily due to the higher interest income fromghar placements of the real estate segment,
higher impairment reversals, interest income framarfcing the condominium units and foreign
currency gains.. This account remained at 1% af tetvenues for 2011 and 2010.

Finance costs — P89 million from P88 million

There was no material variance for this account

Other gains - net —P24 million to P2.7 million

Primarily due to income from common usage areas Bacount increased to 0.59% in 2011
from 0.10% in 2010 as a percentage of of totatnees.

Income Statement Items (2010 vs. 2009)

(Increase or decrease of 5% or more in the finhstagéements)

Service revenue — 10% increase to P694 million fR880 million

Mainly due to higher broadband revenues. As aqmage of total revenues, this account
represents 26% and 27% in 2010 and 2009, resplgctive

Sale of goods — 44% increase to P1,622 million fRiy124 million
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Mainly due to higher volume of sales of the digjtabducts. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account represents 60% and 48% in 2010 an@, 2088pectively.

Rental income — 8% increase to P121 million from2Pnillion

Primarily due to more space rented out. As a meage of total revenues, this account represents
4% and 5% in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Sale of real estate — 43% decrease to P207 miftiem P360 million

Principally due to lower sale of industrial loté\s a percentage of total revenues, this account
decreased to 8% in 2010 from 16% in 2009.

Interest income — 34% decrease to P63 million fR#5 million

Mainly from lower yield of the placements. Also 2009, the Company earned interest income
from the amortization of discounts on held to miaguinancial assets versus none in 2010 as a
result of the reclassification of these financisdets to available for sale. As a percentage af tot
revenues, this account declined to 2% in 2010 #&tnin 2009.

Cost of sales, services and rentals amounted 878 illion in 2010, or an increase of 15%
from P1,624 million in 2009 as discussed below:

Cost of services - increase to P460 million fi@db8 million

No material change for this account. This accinareased to 17% in 2010 from 20% in 2009 as
a percentage of total revenues.

Cost of sales - 44% increase to P1,225 millromf P849 million

Mainly in relation to higher sales. As a perceptafjtotal sales, this account represented 45% in
2010 from 37% in 2009.

Cost of rentals — 15% increase to P38 million frieB8 million

Primarily from higher outside services. This aa@ourepresents 1% as a percentage of total
revenues for both years.

Cost of real estate sold — 46% decrease to P15iomirom P282 million

The decrease was mainly in relation to lower sélendustrial lots. As a percentage of total
revenues, this account decreased to 6% in 2010 I&296 in 2009.

General and administrative expenses — 12% increa&281 million from P250 million

Principally due to higher provision for warrantydaaothers. As a percentage of total revenues,
this account decreased to 10% in 2010 from 1190092

Selling and distribution costs — 134% increase 22 P million from P97 million
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Mainly from higher commissions, personnel and aiiliag costs. This account remained at 4%
of total revenues for both years.

Other operating income —net - 283% increase to Pdlion from P22 million
Primarily due to higher fair value gains on investinproperty and return on retirement plan
assets in 2010. This account increased to 3% 10 2@m 1% in 2009 as a percentage of total

revenues.

Finance income — 12% decrease to P38 million fr8dh million

Primarily due to reversal of impairment losses maté and other receivables. This account
remained at 1% of total revenues for both years.

Finance costs — 26% decrease to P88 million frorh&illion

Mainly due to losses on sale of foreign currencypateinated financial assets. This account
decreased to 3% in 2010 from 5% in 2009 as a ptrgerof total revenues.

Other gains - net — 71% increase to P3 million freeghmillion

Primarily due to income from common usage areas ®ocount increased to 0.10% in 2010
from 0.07% in 2009 as a percentage of of totadmeres.

viil. Seasonal Aspects that had Material Effect on timarf€ial Condition or Results of
Operations

There are no significant seasonality in the Comjsahysiness that materially affects financial
condition or results of operations.
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Item 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements and schedal€mancial Statements and Supplementary
Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17 - A.

(B) Information on Independent Accountant and OtherRelated Matters
(1) External Audit Fees And Services

(a) Under the caption Audit and Audit-Related Fees atpgregate fees billed for each of the last
two fiscal years for professional services rendénethe external auditor for :

1. The audit of the registrant’s annual financial esta¢nts or services that are normally
provided by the external auditor in connection veitlitutory and regulatory filings or
engagements for those fiscal years:

The audit fees of our present external auditoroRghayan and Araullo for the examination of
our annual audited financial statements, includirge of our subsidiaries for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounted to P5 malieh P4.66 million, respectively. Also,
audit fees for the short period reports as welbag form reports in 2012 and 2011 as required
for the filing of merger of the various subsidéiof the Company amounted to P210 thousand
and P1.21 million, respectively. The audit fe€soént Thornton for the examination of Fil-
Dragon for the years ended December 31, 2012 @htl 2mounted to HK$274,000 and
HK$245,000, respectively.

2. Other assurance and related services by the eksrdior that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of the regigtsafinancial statements.

None for 2012 and 2011.

(b) Under the caption “Tax Fees”, the aggregate fdéedkin each of the last two (2) fiscal years
for professional services rendered by the externditor for tax accounting, compliance,
advice, planning and any other form of tax servid@egistrant shall describe the nature of
the services comprising the fees disclosed undgcétegory.

The tax fees paid to the Tax Division of Punongagmad Araullo for tax consultation and
advisory services of our Company and those of ohbsigliaries for the year ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 amounted to P204 thousand and BR&ésand, respectively. Also, fees paid to
the Tax and Compliance Division for the assistaortéhe merger of the Companies’
subsidiaries, Solid Manila Corporation and Solidpg@oation amounted to P200 thousand and
P689 thousand in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(c) Under the caption “All Other Fees”, the aggregatesfbilled in each of the last two (2) fiscal
years for products and services provided by thereat auditor, other than the services
reported under items (a) & (b) above. Registrahtdl describe the nature of the services
comprising the fees disclosed under this category.

There were no other fees paid for the years 20d2aa1.

(d) The audit committee’s approval policies and proceslfior the above services.
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The overall scope of the audit was reviewed andavgpl by the Audit Committee. The terms of
engagement of the audit were also reviewed andapdrby the Audit Committee.

The scope and terms of engagement of the tax datisaland advisory services were also
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Upon the favorable endorsement by the Audit Conemjtthe proposed terms of engagement of

services are submitted for approval to the BoarDicdctors. All of the above services were

approved by the Board of Directors.

tem 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Company has no disagreements with the curee@ountant on accounting and financial

disclosure.

On June 28, 2012, the Company reappointed Punoagbayd Araullo (P&A) as its external

auditors for the year 2012.

There was no change in our existing accountarthioyears 2012 and 2011.

PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Isuer

A. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and ttarPersons

Q) Directors, including Independent Directors &xcutive Officers

There are nine (9) seats in the Board. The terwiffafe of each member is one (1) year.

names, ages and citizenship of current directadseancutive officers are as follows:

The

Positior Name Age Citizenshiy

Chairman Emeritu Elena S. Lin 83 Filipino
Chairman othe Boari Susan L. Ta 59 Filipino
Director and President and Ct

Executive Officer David S. Lim 57 Filipino
Director and Sr. VP and Chi
Operating Officer Jason S. Lim 56 Filipino
Director and Sr. VPand Chief
Financial Officer Vincent S. Lim 54 Filipino
Director Quintin Chui 53 Australiar
Directol Luis-Maria Zabaljaureg! 65 Filipino
Directol Joseph Lir 86 Filipino
Director and VP for Busines Beda T. Manale 52 Filipino
Development
VP andTreasure Lita Joaquil 52 Filipino
Corporate Secreta Roberto V. San Jo 7C Filipino
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Assistant Corporate Secret Ana Maria Katigba-Lim 44 Filipino
VP andChief Accounting Office Mellina T. Corpu. 46 Filipino

Ms. Elena S. Lim is Chairman Emeritus since MayR20@rior to that, she was President/ Chief
Executive Officer from 1996 to May 2001 and is aetor since 1996. She is also Chairman of
the Board of Laguna International Industrial PdrG. and Starworld Corporation. She was
formerly the President of Solid Corporation, Sdbdéstributors, Inc., AA Export and Import
Corporation, AA Marine Development Corporation, @uobian Autocars Corporation, Solid
Electronics Corporation, Solid Video CorporationA Alectronics Corporation, Solid Manila
Corporation and Kita Corporation. Ms. Lim is madito Joseph Lim.

Ms. Susan L. Tan is Chairman of the Board since @91. She was Vice President of the
Company from April 1999 to April 2001 and is a lrer since 1996. She was Chief Operating
Officer of the Company since 1996 up to March 1988e is currently President of Solid Laguna
Corporation and Solid Corporation and is also MamagDirector of Solid Electronics
Corporation and Solid Video Corporation. Ms. Tauhie daughter of Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. David S. Lim is President and Chief ExecutivHiégr since May 2001. He is also Director

since 1996. He was Vice-President since 1996 ukptd 2001. He is also President and Chief
Executive Officer of Solid Broadband Inc. sincel33% presently Chairman of Destiny Cable
Inc. and also Vice-President of Solid Corporation fore than five years and was formerly
VP/Managing Director of Solid Video Corporation fmore than five years. He is also presently
Chairman of Zen Towers Corporation. Mr. Lim is #on of Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Jason S. Lim is Sr. Vice President and Chiek@ping Officer since May 2002. He is a
Director since May 1998. He was also EVP and Chigérating Officer of Destiny Cable Inc. up
to September 2000. He is also currently PresideKita Corporation and Solid Manila Finance
Inc. He was formerly VP/ Managing Director of (dPlastics Manufacturing Corporation and
Solid City Industrial and Commercial Corporatiom foore than five years. Mr. Lim is the son of
Joseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Vincent S. Lim is Sr. Vice President and CHi@fancial Officer in September 2010 and was
Sr. Vice President for Finance and Investmentsesiume 2006 up to September 2010. He was
Sr. VP and Chief Financial Officer from May 2002 t@pJune 2006. He is a director since 1996
and was VP/ Chief Financial Officer from 1996 upMay 2002. He has also been VP Finance,
Treasurer and Corporate Secretary for Solid Cotjardor more than five years and is also VP
Finance and Treasurer for Solid Laguna Corporatom Solid Distributors, Inc., Solid
Electronics Corporation, AA Electronics Corporatittita Corporation, Solid Video Corporation
and Solid Manila Corporation. Mr. Lim is the sdnJoseph and Elena Lim.

Mr. Quintin Chua is the Independent Director sibtarch 25, 2003. He is the Chairman and
Managing Director of QC Investments Pty. Ltd, Chein and President of Nature's Harvest
Corp. and Director of Hexagon Financing Corp.

Mr. Luis-Maria L. Zabaljauregui is Independent Rit@r effective September 23, 2008. He was
Executive Vice President of Leyte Agri Corporatiom 2001 up to 2003. He was vice

President and Resident Manager of Central Azucatera Carlota, Inc. from January 2004 to
June 2008. He was Vice-President — Ethanol Pragg&&@entral Azucarera de la Carlota, Inc.

effective July 2008 up to June 2011. He has bssiegperience for more than five (5) years.
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Mr. Joseph Lim is the Founding Chairman of Soli@@r of Companies and served as Chairman
of the Board of the Company from 1996 until 2008e is presently the Chairman of Phil-
Nanning Consortium, Inc. (Phil-Nanning), a whollwmed subsidiary of the Company; and
Chairman of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Develepnitd., a company in Nanning, China,
where Phil-Nanning has a 51% ownership. In thet figse years to present, he has been
Chairman of various manufacturing and trading camgsin Hongkong and China among which
are Solid Co. Ltd., Solid Trading Ltd. and Solidiustrial (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. Mr. Lim is the
incumbent Chairman of the China-Philippines Chantf€€ommerce. Mr. Lim is married to the
Company's Chairman Emeritus, Ms. Elena S. Lim, snthe father of Chairman Ms. Susan L.
Tan and Directors Mr. David S. Lim, Mr. Jason SmLand Mr. Vincent S. Lim. Mr. Lim
assumed position as Director in June 2010.

Mr. Beda T. Mafalaés Director and Vice President for Business Develept since September
30, 2010. He is President of Solid Manila Corporateffective January 2012. He was Vice
President for Business Development of MyPhone reopiiones under MySolid Technologies
and Devices Corporation and Solid Broadband Cotjmoraince 2007 to May 31, 2010. Prior to
that, he was Vice President for Sales and Mar§eifrDestiny Cable Inc and Vice President for
Broadband Services of Solid Broadband Corporation.

Ms. Lita Joaquin is the Treasurer since May 20@ke was also director from June 2006 up to
August 2007. She was Comptroller in 1996 to AR€iD2 and Director in May 1997 where she
held office up to May 1998. She also became Géméaaager of Solid Manila Finance Inc. in
October 1999. She is also Assistant Treasur8&obfl Corporation for more than five years and
holds the same position for Solid Distributors, .Jn&olid Electronics Corporation, Kita
Corporation, Solid Video Corporation and Solid MarCorporation. Ms. Joaquin is the niece of
Mr. Joseph Lim.

Atty. Roberto V. San Jose is the Corporate Secgretarce 1996. He is a member of the
Philippine Bar and a Senior Partner of the Castitainan Tan Pantaleon and San Jose Law
Offices. He is a Director of Mabuhay Holdings Cangtion, ABC Development Corporation
(Channel 5), Director/ Corporate Secretary of CBuprof Companies, CP Equities Corporation,
Atlas Resources Management Group and MAA Consultdnt. He is also Corporate Secretary
of Premiere Entertainment Productions, Inc., Als@wsnsolidated Resources, Inc., United
Paragon Mining Corporation, ISM Communications Corg\nglo Philippine Holdings
Corporation and PhilwWeb Corp. He is also a dingctorporate secretary and/or officer of
various client corporations of their law firm.

Atty. Ana Maria Katigbak-Lim ighe Assistant Corporate Secretary. She is a meailtbe
Integrated Bar of the Philippines and a gradua®aahelor of Laws at the University of the
Philippines. She is a Partner at the Castillo Liafian Pantaleon & San Jose Law Offices. She is
also a director and assistant corporate secragtd8M Communications Corporation and
Mabuhay Holdings Corporation, both publicly-listeatporations. She also serves as assistant
corporate secretary in other publicly-listed conmgamnd registered membership clubs such as:
AJO.net Holdings, Inc., Boulevard Holdings, Inaemiere Entertainment Productions, Inc.,

Solid Group, Inc., Paxys Inc., The Metropolitan ilinc. and PhilWeb Corporation.

Mellina T. Corpuz is the Chief Accounting Officeffextive June 2006. Prior to that, she was
the Senior Accounting Manager since 2002 and tva#\tcounting Manager since 1996.

(2) Significant Employee



54

There is no significant employee that is not paAthe Company directors and executive officers.
) Family Relationship

Ms. Elena S. Lim is married to Mr. Joseph Lim. iflehildren, namely, Ms. Susan L. Tan, Mr.
David S. Lim, Mr. Jason S. Lim and Vincent S. Line all directors and executive officers of the
Company. Ms. Lita Joaquin, treasurer of the Comparthe niece of Mr. Joseph Lim.

(4) Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

Ms. Elena S. Lim is included as co-defendant imsediled by a certain bank against AA Export
and Import Corporation for the collection of unseclibusiness loans granted to that company.
In another collection case filed by another bardkiregt AA Export and Import Corporation, Ms.
Elena S. Lim, Mr. Joseph Lim, Ms. Susan L. Tan, Bavid S. Lim, Mr. Jason Lim and Mr.
Vincent S. Lim are impleaded as co-defendants. efixby above, none of the directors and
officers was involved in the past five years upAjrii 2013 in any bankruptcy proceeding.
Neither have they been convicted by final judgmerany criminal proceeding, nor been subject
to any order, judgment or decree of competent digi®n, permanently enjoining, barring,
suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvemeimt any type of business, securities,
commodities or banking activities, nor found iniactby any court or administrative body to
have violated a securities or commodities law.

ltem 10. Executive Compensation

B. Executive Compensation

Executive and Directors Compensation

Q) General

The Company’s executive officers are regular empdsyof the Company and its subsidiaries and
are similarly remunerated with a compensation pgeksomprising of regular salary, bonuses,
thirteenth month pay and leave conversions thatCiipany extends to its regular employees.
Directors who are not executive officers are pgecffied amounts per meeting participation.

(2) Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes certain informati@ygarding compensation paid or accrued
during the last two fiscal years and paid in theuémg fiscal year to the Company’s Chairman
and each of the Company’s four most highly compeasaxecutive officers.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Annual Compensation

(a) (b) (© (d) (e)

Other Annua
Name and Principal Position Compensatio
Year Salary (P) Bonus (P) nIncome {P)

Chairman and four most high | 201z 22,500,00 3,000,00( 1,000,00!

compensated 2012 20,334,875 2,167,880 811,367
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| executive officer

Susan L. Ta Chairman of the Boa

David S. Lim Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Jason S. Lim Director, Senior VP and Chief Operating Officer
Vincent S. Lim Director, Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer
Beda T. Manalac Director, VP for Business Development

Chairman and four most high
compensated
executive officers

2011

14,680,000

2,028,788

1,450.,859

Susan L. Ta Chairman of the Barc

David S. Lim Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Jason S. Lim Director, Senior VP and Chief Operating Officer
Vincent S. Lim Director, Senior VP and Chief Financial Officer

Lita Joaquin VP and Treasurer

All officers and directors as 2013 (Est. 4,000,00i 800,00 2,400,001
group unnamed 2012 3,460,000 629,591 2,198,296
2011 2,740,000 424,293 2,041,401

3)

Please see executive and directors’ compensation.

Compensation of Directors

4) Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
Arrangements.

Not applicable. There are no employment contraeta/een the registrant and executive officers/
directors nor any compensatory plan or arrangenieeitjding payments to be received from the
registrant, if such plan or arrangement resultsviirresult from resignation, retirement or any

other termination of such executive officer or dig’'s employment with the registrant and its

subsidiaries or from change-in-control of the rgi®t or a change in the executive officer or
directors’ responsibilities following a change-iontrol.

(5) Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

Not applicable. The Company has no outstandingants and options.
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Iltem 11. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialDwners and Management
C. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Benefiial Owners and Management
() Security Ownership of Certain Record and BeeflOwners

Owners of more than 5% of the Company’s voting gtea as of December 31, 2012 were as
follows.

(3)Name of (4)Citi (5)No. of (6) %
Beneficial Owner zenshi Shares Held to
(1) Title  (2) Name and address of and Relationship p record (r)or Total
of Class record owner and with Record beneficial (b) Outsta
relationship with issuer Owner nding
Commor AA Commercial, Inc? Vincent S. Lin  Filipino 583,377,817 (r) 32.0:
1172 Edsa, Balintawak Treasurer of AA !
Quezon City Commercial Inc.
Affiliate
Commor AV Value Holdings David S. Lin Filipino 499,999,999 (r§  27.4¢
Corporation President of AV
2285 Pasong Tamo Ext,  Value Holding
Makati Corp.
Affiliate
Commor PCD Nominee Various Filipino 326,610,742 (1§ 17.9:
Corporation (FY stockholders
G/F MSE Bldg., 6767 None
Ayala Ave., Makati
Stockholder
Commor Lim, David € Not applicabl: ~ Filipino 179,488,591 (r 9.8t
c/o Solid House, 2285 and b)

Pasong Tamo Ext, Makati

Note 1: AA Commercial Inc. is owned by the Lim Familir. Vincent S. Lim is authorized
to vote the shares of stock registered in the nafided Commercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is
the Treasurer of AA Commercial Inc.

2. AV Value Holdings Corporation is owned by thienLFamily. Mr. David S. Lim is
authorized to vote the shares of stock registerédeé name of AV Value Holdings Corporation.
Mr. David S. Lim is the President of AV Value Haidis Corporation.

3: There is no participant lodged und€D Nominee Corporation that owns more than
5% of the voting securities of the Company.

(2) Security Ownership of Management
The following directors and officers own shareshiea Company as of December 31, 2012.
(1) Title of (2) Name of Beneficie (3) Amount and Natur (4) B) % to

Class Owner of Beneficial Citizenship Total
Ownership Outstanding
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Commor Lim, Elena < 1,894 (direc Filipino -
Commor Tan, Susan | 78,645 (direc! Filipino -
7,300,000 (indirect) 0.40
Commor Lim, David S 179,488,591 (direc Filipino 9.8t
5,000,000 (indirect) 0.27
499,999,999 (indirect 27.45
Commor Lim, Vincent S 71,887,187 (direc Filipino 3.9t
583,377,817 (indirect) 32.03
5,996,000 (indirect 0.33
Commor Lim, Jason ¢ 65,176,160 (direc Filipino 3.5¢
Commor Chua, Quinti 3,505,000 direct  Australiar 0.1¢
Commor Zabaljauregui, Lu-Maria 5,000 (direct Filipino -
Commor Lim, Josep 2 (direct Filipino -
Commor Beda T. Manale 1,001 (direct Filipino -
Commor San Jose, Roberto 242,000 (direc Filipino 0.01
Commor Katigbak, Ana Mari - Filipino -
Commor Joaquin, Lit; 7,C10,000 (direc Filipino 0.3¢
Commor Corpuz, Mellina T - Filipino -

The aggregate amount of ownership of all directangl officers as a group unnamed is
1,429,069,296 or 78.45% of the total issued anstanting shares.

Note 1. AA Commercial Inc. is owned by the Lim F&miMr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized to
vote the shares of stock registered in the namedo€ommercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is the
Treasurer of AA Commercial Inc.

2. AV Value Holdings Corporation is owned by thienLFamily. Mr. David S. Lim is
authorized to vote the shares of stock registergda name of AV Value Holdings Corporation.
Mr. David S. Lim is the President of AV Value Haidis Corporation.

3. These shares were registered in the name ofrtbereof the immediate family sharing the
same household.

(3)  Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of any stock held undestiag trust agreement. However,
AA Commercial Inc. and AV Value Holdings Corporatiare companies owned by the Lim
Family. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is authorized to voteethhares of stock registered in the name of AA
Commercial Inc. Mr. Vincent S. Lim is the Treasuoé AA Commercial Inc. Mr. David S. Lim
is authorized to vote the shares of stock regidtdre the name of AV Value Holdings
Corporation. Mr. David S. Lim is the President®df Value Holdings Corporation.

4 Changes in Control

There are no arrangements, which may result inggsim control of the registrant.
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Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains

D. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

1.

Solid Video Corporation (SVC) earns commission frestes of Solid Trading Limited (STL), a
company owned by SGI's majority stockholders, tstomers in the Philippines. SVC also
advances funds to STL to pay foreign suppliers.

My Solid purchases mobile phones from STL. My &aliso made advance payments to STL for
its future purchase of mobile phones.

Solid Broadband Corporation’s broadband cable #tftecture is used by Destiny Cable Inc.
(DCI), a company owned by the Company’s majoribckholders. Billings were based on a
fixed fee per subscriber and per type of service.

Solid Group provides management services to CP2gsx€orporation (CPD), a company
owned by the Company’s majority stockholders inoagdance with a management contract.

Solid Manila Finance Inc. grants interest-bearingibess and other loans to its related parties.
Solid Manila Corporation leases out certain land lmildings to Avid Sales Corporation.

Revenue from sale of goods and services are regt@sipart of revenues and the related
outstanding receivables are recorded as part afeTaad Other Receivables

Solid Electronics Corp. purchases parts and suppioen CPD, a company also owned by the
Company'’s ultimate majority stockholders.

Advances to and from Related Parties

Certain subsidiaries of the Company grants to dotdiios unsecured, non-interest bearing cash
advances to and from related parties companiegdWwy Group’s ultimate majority
stockholders for working capital requirements atigeppurposes.

Brilliant Reach Limited granted an unsecured, esebearing loan denominated in Chinese
Yuan Renminbi to Solid Company Limited amountindg’tt20.8 million in 2008 which will

mature on March 1, 2011. The loan bears an anntggiest of 6% payable annually with any
unpaid interest compounded annually at the sarmeeofdhe principal amount. In 2009, the
parties agreed to amend the loan agreement redti@rannual interest rate to 4% and making
the loan payable in US dollars. In 2011, the partigreed to increase the annual rate to 5% and
extend the maturity date for another date. AlsBdh2, another transaction to extend the maturity
of the loan for another year was executed betwdin &d SCL.

In 2011, Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development, Li#il-Dragon) obtained loans from companies
that are owned by Solid Company Limited (Hongkon@he liability is unsecured and payable
on demand.

Other than the foregoing, there were no transagtituming the past two fiscal years to which the
Company was a party, in which a director, executffecer, nominee for director, stockholder
owning more than 10% of the outstanding shareseftompany had a direct interest.
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2. The Company has no transactions involving rdlpgeties where the service fees or rates
are fixed by law or government authority, nor aassbank depository of funds, transfer agent,

registrar or trustee under a trust indenture neramgy other interest except for those arising from

the ownership of securities of the registrant rdedras treasury shares nor received extra or
special benefit that was not shared equally bh@tiers of the registrant.

3. The Company has no parent company holding or ciinfyanore than 50% of its
outstanding capital stock. However, AA Commertial and AV Value Holdings Corporation
separately own and control 32.03% and 27.45%, otispdy, of the Company’s outstanding
shares.

4, There are no transactions with promoterassets acquired by the Company from any
promoters.

PART IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Item 13. Corporate Governance

The Company adopted a Manual on Corporate Goveenémdnstitutionalize the rules and
principles of good corporate governance in accardamith the Code of Corporate Governance
promulgated by Securities and Exchange Commiss®BC]. Its Manual on Corporate
Governance was submitted to the SEC on Septembe20@2 in accordance with SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 2 Series of 2002.

Pursuant to the Manual, three Board Committees ditAtlomination and Compensation and
Renumeration Committees were created in 2003 tarmaicbmplying with principles of good
corporate governance. In 2003, the Company inetedise number of independent directors
from one (1) to two (2). In 2004, in compliancetwSEC Memorandum Circular No. 6. the
Company increased the number of independent dinedinits Audit Committee, from one
independent director to two (2) independent dinesctand appointed an independent director to
head the Audit Committee. The company has reelédte@uintin Chua and Mr. Luis Maria L.
Zabaljauregui as Independent Directors during thaual Stockholders’ meeting on August 16,
2011. In 2008, the company created another comeithe Risk Management Committee in
addition to the 3 existing committees composedoaf {4) members chaired by an independent
director. In 2012, the Company, while retaining gervices of Punongbayan & Araullo as
external auditor, designated a new engagementgrddnthe audit of the financial statements of
the Company beginning the year ending Decembef@1] in compliance with its Manual on
Corporate Governance, which requires that the Cagipaexternal auditor be rotated or the
handling partner changed every five (5) years dieza

A Compliance Officer was appointed in 2002, dingectporting to the Chairman of the Board to
monitor compliance with the provisions and requieaits of the Manual. The Compliance Officer
has established an evaluation system to measudetermine the level of compliance of the
Company with its Manual.

The Board of Directors approved the Company’s Relisanual of Corporate Governance in
compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, &of 2009 on September 30, 2010. The

Company adopted the Revised Manual of Corporateefhance and submitted it to the SEC on
September 30, 2010.
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The Company complied with the appropriate selfitpassessment and performance evaluation
system to determine and measure compliance witM#draial and submitted a certification of its
compliance on January 15, 2013. There are nornigeiations from the adopted Revised
Manual on Corporate Governance.

The Company reappointed Punongbayan and Araul@y'€as its independent accountant for
the year 2012 during the Annual Stockholders’ nmgetin June 28, 2012.

The Company, its Directors, Officers and Employeasiplied with all the leading practices and
principles on Good Governance as embodied in thegaay's Manual. All members of the
Board of Directors as well as Senior Managemert&f completed and were duly certified to
have attended a 2- day special seminar on Corp@aternance conducted by Institute of
Corporate Directors and a 1-day SEC Revised Cod€awporate Governance conducted by
Center for Global Best Practices.

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
(@) Exhibits - See accompanying Index to Exhibit.
The following exhibit is filed as a separate settid this report:
(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C
The following were reported under SEC Form 17-Grduthe last six-month period.

On October 12, 2012, the Company advised that tadof Directors approved the declaration

of cash dividend of P0.06 per share out of its stnicted retained earnings as of December 31,
2011, in favor of stockholders of record of the @amy as of October 31, 2012 and payable on
or before November 28, 2012. The Board also apedirMs. Josephine Santiago as the
Company’s Chief Information Officer who shall tatfearge of investor relations matters.

On October 12, 2012, the Company advised that uditACommittee is conducting a review of
its Audit Committee Charter for amendment relativéhe requirement of the SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 4 series of 2012 for public-listed qmanies to submit an assessment on the
performance of the audit committees. The Compaas/ Undertaken to submit the assessment
after the amended Charter is approved by the Board.
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SOLID GROUP, INC.
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORM 17-A, Item 7

Page No.

Consolidated Financial Statements

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Finalrf8tatemen 1

Report of Independent Public Account: 1

Consolidate(Statements of Financial Posit as of December 32011 1-2

and 2010

ConsolidatecStatements cincome for the years ended December 1

2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidatd Statements of Comprehensive Income for the yeatsd 1

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Staternts of Changes iEquity for the years ende 1

December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradted Decembt 1-2

31, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 1-80
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SOLID GROUP, INC.

INDEX TO SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
December 31, 2011

Supplementary Schedules

Page Nc
Report of Independent Public Accountants on Supplementary
Schedules
Schedules Required under Annex 68-E of the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68
A. Financial Asse 1
B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Offis, Employees, Related 2
Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other thanliafés)
C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which veirminated 3
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
D. Intangible Asset— Other Asse! N/A
E. Long-Term Deb N/A
F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (L-Term Loans from Relate N/A
Companies)
G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Iss N/A
H. Capital Stoc 4
Other Required Information (SEC Circular 11)
l. Reconciliation of Parent Ccpany Retained Earnings for Divide 5
Declaration
J. Financial Soundness Indicat 6
K. Schedule of PFRS Effective as of December 31, 7-8
L. Map Showing the Relationship Between and AmongXbmpany ani 9

its Related Entities (Conglomerate Mapping)



®3)

(%)

(8)
9)
(10)

(13)
(16)
(18)

(19)

(20)
(21)

(29)
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Form 17-A

Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization, Arrangemenguidation
or Succession

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holdéngluding
Indentures

Voting Trust Agreemel
Material Contract

Annual Report to Security Holders, Form-Q or Quarterly
Report to Security Holders

Letter re Change in Certifying Account
Report Furnished to Security Hold
Subsidiaries of the Registri

Published Report Regarding Matters Submitted t@\6b
Security Holders

Consent of Experts and Independent Cot
Power of Attorne

Additional Exhibit:

Audited Financial Statements (AFS) of Guangxi Fik§on Real

Estate Development Limited for the period Decen#igr2012

Page Nc

67

These Exhibits are either not applicable to tlen@any or require no answer.
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EXHIBIT9 MATERIAL CONTRACTS

There are no material contracts that are not madleei ordinary course of business entered into
by the Company and its subsidiaries during the.year
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EXHIBIT 18 SUBSIDIARIESOF THE REGISTRANT

Solid Group Inc. has twelve consolidated subsidgrieach of which is wholly owned, as
follows:

Name Jurisdictior
Solid Video Corporatic Makati City, Philippine
Kita Corporatiol Clark, Pampanga, Philippir
Omni Solid Services Inc. (formerSolid Binan, Laguna, Philippin

Laguna Corporation)

Solid Eledronic Corporatio Balintawak, Quezon City, Philippin
Solid Manila Corporatic Manila, Philippine

Solid Manila Finance In Makati, Philippine

Solid Broadband Corporati Makati, Philippine

Brilliant Reach Limite British Virgin Islancs

Zen Tower Corporatic Manila, Philippine

Precos, Inc Makati, Philippine

SolidGroup Technologies Corporat Paranaqgt, Philippine:

MySolid Technologies & Devices Corporat  Paranaqt, Philippine:
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Independent auditors’ report

To the members of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited
{established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited
(the “Company”) set out on pages 3 to 26, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fiancial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no othetr purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves petforming procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or etror. In making those dsk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the approprateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropxiate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2012 and of the Company’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

o Tl //7 /7 26

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

20th Floot, Sunning Plaza

10 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

19 April 2013

Lin Ching Yee Daniel
Practising Certificate No.: P02771
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes 2012 2011
RMB RMB
Revenue 5 - .
Cost of sales - -
Gross Profit - -
Other income _ 6 144,812 79,579
Selling and distribution expenses (1,127,793) (1,711,999)
Administrative and other operating expenses (2,484,104) (3,214,415)
Loss before income tax ‘ 8 (3,467,085) (4,846,835)
Income tax expense 10 - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year {3,467,085) (4,846,835)

The notes on pages 7 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements for the year ended 3t December 2012
Statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012
Notes 2012 2011
RMB RMB
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 300,314 435,053
Current assets
Properties.under development 12 223,584,009 179,489,660
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 13 14,378,299 10,973,970
Amount due from a director 14 - 1,000,000
fncome tax recoverable 870,560 354,154
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 - 924,744
Restricted cash 16 778,308 732,783
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,511,073 3,724,912
241,122,247 197,200,223
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 24,721,387 2,647,129
Receipt in advance from customers 127,187,200 98,760,112
Loan from related companies 19 54,396,030 58,143,006
Amount due to a director 14 500,000 -
206,804,617 159,550,247
Net current assets 34,317,630 37,649,978
Net assets 34,617,944 38,085,029
EQUITY
Paid in capital 20 50,000,000 50,000,000
Accumulated losses (15,382,056) (11,914,971)
Total equity 34,617,944 38,085,029

i %ﬂ

Director

Director

The notes on pages 7 to 26 ate an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2012
2012 2011
RMB RMB
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax (3,467,085) (4,846,835)
Adjustments for;
Depreciation 142,239 171,546
Interest income (11,142) (77,817)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 75,256
'Realized gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or ioss {33,870) -
Operating loss before working capital changes (3,369,658) (4,677,850)
Increase in properties under development (39,098,211) (46,238,941)
increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (3,404,329) (6,534,096)
Increase in restricted cash as guarantee for construction of
projects and other operating activities (45,523) (5637,910)
Increase in trade and other payables 22,074,258 1,455,372
increase in receipt in advance from customers 28,427,088 94,379,440
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - (1,000,000)
Cash generated from operations 4,583,625 36,846,015
PRC corporate income tax paid (516,406) (354,154)
Interest paid - (4,994,467)
Net cash from operating activities 4,067,219 31,497,394
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,500) (178,595)
Interest received 11,142 77,817
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit-or loss 958,414 -
Receipts from/(Advance to) a director 1,500,000 (1,000,000)
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities 2,462,056 (1,100,778)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of bank borrowings - (92,940,000)
Proceeds from loan from related companies 5,614,000 66,692,730
Repayment of loan from related companies (14,357,114) (18,553,040)
Net cash used in financing activities (8,743,114) (44,800,310)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,213,839) (14,403,694)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 3,724,912 18,128,606
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,511,073 3,724,912

The notes on pages 7 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
Statement of changes 1n equity
for the year ended 31 December 2012
Accumulated Total
Paid in capital losses equity
RMB RMB RMB
Balance at 1 January 2011 50,000,000 (7,068,136) 42,931,864
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - (4,846,835) (4,846,835)
Balance at 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012 50,000,000 (11,914,971) 38,085,029
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - (3,467,085) (3,467,085)
Balance at 31 December 2012 50,000,000 (15,382,056) 34,617,944

The notes on pages 7 to 26 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION
Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company established and domiciled in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
The address of its registered office is 16 Zhujin Road, ASEAN Commercial Park, Nanning
City, Guangxi Province, PRC.

The Company is conttolled by Phil-Nanning Consottium, Inc., a company registered in the
Philippines. The ultimate patent of the Company is Solid Group Inc., a company registered
in the Philippines and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The Company is principally engaged in the property development in the PRC.

The financial statements for the yeat ended 31 December 2012 were approved for issue by
the boatd of directors on 19 April 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21 Basis of preparation
The financial statements on pages 3 to 26 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Auditing Standards and Intetpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Boatd (“IASB”). The Company also prepares a set of
statutory financial statements in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and regulations applicable to PRC enterprises.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements ate summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepated on the historical cost basis, except for
financial instruments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are stated at fair values. The measurement basis is fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements have been presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are used in
preparation of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degtee of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Property, plant and equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comptises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depteciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost
less theit residual values ovet their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives for the cutrent and comparative periods are as
follows:

Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Motor.vehicles , 5 years

The assets” residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain ot loss atising on retitement or disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s cartying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as approptiate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The cartying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs, such as repaits and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- Loans and receivables

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets ate recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases of
financial assets ate recognised on trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occuts when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments expire or are transfetred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair value through profit or
loss are reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If
any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they ate acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near tetm, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking,

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined by reference to active market transactions. The fair value gain or
loss does not include any dividend or interest earned on these financial assets.
Dividend and interest income is recognised in accordance with the
Company’s policies in note 2.8 to these financial statements.

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-detivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.
Interest is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial staternents for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair value through profit or

loss ate reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Company about one or more of the
following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtot will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; .

- Significant changes in the technological, matket, economic or legal
envitonment that have an adverse effect on the debtot;

- The disappearance of an active matket for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include observable data
indicating that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable data includes but not limited to
adverse changes in the payment status of debtors in group and, national or local
economic conditions that cottelate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and recognised as
follows:

() Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If thete is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the diffetence between the asset’s catrtying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incutred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the
loss is trecognised in profit ot loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in subsequent petiod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the

decrease can be related objectively to an event occutring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not tesult in a catrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been fecognised at the date the impaitment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the reversal
occufts.

Impairment losses on financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are written off against the corresponding assets directly.
Subsequent recoveties of amounts previously wtitten off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development ate stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable vatiable selling expenses and anticipated cost to completion.

Development cost of property comptises construction costs, cost of land use rights,
borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred during the development period. On
completion, the properties ate transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless those will not
be tealised in one normal operating cycle.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which atre subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. '

Bank deposits which are testricted to use are included in “restricted cash”.
Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in the statement of

cash flows.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Financial liabilities

The Company’s financial labilities include trade and other payables, receipt in
advance from customers, loan from related companies and amount due to a
director. They ate included on the face of the statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Cofnpany becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest related charges are recognised

in accotdance with the Company’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2.11).

A financial Hability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is
dischatged or cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables, receipt in advance from customers, loan from related
companies and amount due to a director are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a seties of transactions, is or contains
a lease if the Company determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment ot a
seties of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the atrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Company
Assets that are held by the Company under leases which transfer to the
Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company are classified as operating
leases.

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee
Where the Company has the right to use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight line
basis over the lease terms.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Revenue recognition

Revenue comptises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
sale of properties, net of discount. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and specific ctitetia have been met as described
below, and the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the risks and rewards of the
properties ate transferred to the purchasers, which is when the construction of
relevant properties has been completed and the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers pursuant to the sales agreement and collectibility of related
teceivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold ptior to the date of revenue recognition ate included in the statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Propetty, plant and equipment ate subject to impairment testing and are tested for
impairment whenever thete are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the amount by
which the asset’s cattying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of titme value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

Fot the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some ate tested at cash-generating unit level.

Impaitment losses recognised for cash-generating units is charged pro rata to the
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Impairment loss is teversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recovetable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s catrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation ot amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees ate provided through defined contribution plans.

The employees of the Company are required to patticipate in the central pension
scheme operated by the relevant local municipal government in PRC. The
Company is required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as employees render
setvices during the year. The Company’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Borrowing costs

Botrowing costs incutred, net of any investment income eatned on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
requited to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs ate capitalised as patrt of the cost of a qualifying asset when
expenditure for the asset is being incutred, botrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that ate necessary to prepatre the asset for its intended use or sale are
being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessaty to ptepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred taxes.

Cutrent income tax assets and/ ot liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims
from, tax authorities relating to the curtent or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferted tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences at the
repotting date between the cartying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporaty differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as othet unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporaty differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.



Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited 15
Y TP ST B 2 ) A IR 4 )

Financial statermnents for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
212 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

2.13

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
atises from initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable not accounting profit or loss.

Defetted tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted ot substantively enacted at the end of the reporting date.

Changes in defetred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, or in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged to other comprehensive income ot credited directly in equity.

Current tax assets and cutrent tax labilities are presented net if, and only if,

(a) the Company has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The Company presents defetred tax assets and deferred tax labilities net if, and

only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

Related parties
(a) A person, ot a close membet of that person’s family, is related to the

Company if that person: :

@ has control or joint control over the Company;

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is 2 member of the key management personnel of the Company or the
Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which
means that each patent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group which the other entity
is a membet).

(iii) Both entity are joint ventures of the same thiry party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Company or an entity related to the Company.

(vi) The entity is controlled ot jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).



Guangxi Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Limited 16
JR TR B B B AT TR A7)

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Related parties (Continued)
(vi) A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain hew and amended IFRSs
have been published but ate not yet effective, and have not been adopted eatly by the

- Company.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in
the Company’s accounting policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement. The directors are currently assessing the impact of these IFRSs but are
not yet in the position to state whether they would have any material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

" CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and ate based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concetning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of lcausing a matetial adjustment to
the catrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Net realisable value of properties under development
Management’s assessment of net realisable value of properties under development requires

the estimates of future cash flows to be derived from these properties. These estimates
requites judgement as to the anticipated sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions
in nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing costs (including price discounts
required to stimulate sales) and the expected costs to completion of properties, the legal and
regulatory framework and general market conditions.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets requires formal assessment by the Company of the
future profitability of related operations. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates,
amongst other factors, the forecast financial performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cashflows.
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5. REVENUE

The Company’s principal activity is disclosed in note 1 to these financial statements. The
Company did not generate any revenue for the current and prior years.

6. OTHER INCOME

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Bank interest income 11,142 77,817
Realized gain on disposal of financial assets at fair 33,670 -
value through profit or loss
Sundry income 100,000 1,762
144,812 79,579
7. FINANCE COSTS
2012 2011
RMB RMB
Interest charges on:
Bank loans - 4,994 467
Loan from related companies 4,996,138 1,450,276
Total borrowing costs 4,996,138 6,444,743
Less: amounts capitalised in properties under
development (note 12) (4,996,138) (6,444,743)

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6% to 10% (2011: 6% to 10%) per
annum.

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX
Loss befote income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Operating lease charges:

- Staff quarter 89,400 194,000
Depreciation 142,239 171,546
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - 75,256
Realized gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (33,670) -
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
2012 2011
RMB RMB
Wages, salaries and other benefits (including
operating lease charges on staff quarter) 1,471,107 1,603,164
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 42,220 37,803

1,513,327 1,640,967
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, the Company is subject to PRC
corporate income tax of 25% (2011: 25%) on the estimated assessable profit for the yeat.
No provision has been provided in the financial statements as the Company did not
generate any assessable profits during the year.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at applicable tax rate:

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Loss before income tax (3,467,085) (4,846,835)
Tax at PRC corporate income tax rate of 25%

(2011: 25%) (866,771) (1,211,709)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 203,498 460,027
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences (25,059) 59,394
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses . 688,332 692,288

Total income tax expense - -

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2012, the Company has not recognised tax losses of approximately
RMB11,054,000 (2011: RMB8,300,000) which carty forward against future taxable income
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses will expire within 5
years from the yeat in which they arose under the current tax legislation.
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office Furniture Motor
equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB
At 1 January 2011
Cost 174,707 99,761 441,536 716,004
Accumulated depreciation (32,740) (42,167) (213,093) (288,000)
Net book amount 141,967 57,594 228,443 428,004
Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount 141,967 57,594 228,443 428,004
Additions 21,419 - 157,176 178,595
Depreciation (50,415) (22,794) (98,337) (171,546)
Closing net book amount 112,971 34,800 287,282 435,053
At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012
Cost 196,126 99,761 598,712 894,599
Accumulated depreciation (83,155) (64,961) (311,430) (459,546)
Net book amount 112,971 34,800 287,282 435,053
" Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book amount 112,971 34,800 287,282 435,053
Additions 7,500 - - 7,500
Depreciation (49,000) (15,658) (77,581) (142,239)
Closing net book amount 71,471 19,142 209,701 300,314
At 31 December 2012
Cost 203,626 99,761 598,712 902,099
Accumulated depreciation (132,155) (80,619) (389,011) (601,785)
Net book amount 71,471 19,142 209,701 300,314
12. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
2012 2011
RMB RMB
Properties under development comprise:
Land use rights 15,145,025 15,145,025
Construction costs and capitalised expenditures 192,291,110 153,192,899
Interest capitalised 16,147,874 11,151,736
223,584,009 179,489,660

Properties under development included leasehold intetests in land located in the PRC with

lease terms expiring in 2077.

As at the reporting dates, all properties under development are expected to be completed
within one operating cycle and are included under current assets.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

2012 2011

RMB RMB

Other receivables and deposits 5,125,985 4,104,651
Prepaid business taxes and other taxes 9,252,314 6,572,859
Prepayments - 296,460
14,378,299 10,973,970

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values of other receivables are not

materially different from their carrying amounts because these amounts have short maturity
periods on their inception.

At each reporting dates, the Company reviews receivables for evidence of impairment on
both an individual and collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on other
recetvables for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. No amounts in relation to
other receivables were past due at the reporting date.

AMOUNT DUE FROM / TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due is unsecured, intetest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying amount
of the amount due approximates its fair values.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Listed equity fund held for trading - 924,744

The fait value of the Company’s investments in listed equity fund has been measured as
described in note 24.6.

RESTRICTED CASH

Notes 2012 2011
RMB RMB
Guarantee deposit for construction of projects (a) 196,242 185,593
Deposit pledged against mortgage loans (b)
granted to the purchasers of properties 582,064 537,190
778,306 732,783

(a) In accordance with relevant documents issued by local govetnment, the Company is
requited to place certain amount of cash at desighated bank accounts as guarantee
deposits for construction of properties. The deposits can only be used to pay for
construction fees and putchase of construction materials of the relevant project when
approvals are obtained from the local government. The restriction will be released upon
the construction is completed. This deposit eatns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.
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16. RESTRICTED CASH (Continued)

(b) The bank deposits wete pledged as security in favour of banks and financial institutions
in the PRC which provided mottgage loan to purchasers of propetties for the period
from the date of draw-down of mottgage loans to the date when the certificates for
housing ownership and cettificates of others’ interest for housing ownership
(collectively known as “Certificates”) are granted to the property purchasers. Such
chatges would be teleased when the Certificates are granted to the property purchasers.
This deposit earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
All bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) are placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign FExchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign FExchange
Regulations, the Company is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
‘banks that are authorised to conduct foreigh exchange business.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2012 2011

RMB RMB
Trade payables — third parties 24,201,148 1,393,500
Other payables and accrued charges 520,238 1,253,629
24,721,387 2,647,129

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Company’s trade and other
payables ate considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

19. LOAN FROM RELATED COMPANIES
The amounts due ate unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-bearing at 6% to 10%
(2011: 6% to 10%) per annum except for an amount of Nil (2011: RMB9,200,000) which is
- interest-free. The catrying amounts approximate theit fair values. The related companies are
controlled by a sharecholder of the Company.

20. PAID IN CAPITAL

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Registered and paid in capital 50,000,000 50,000,000

21. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments payable by the Company
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2012 2011
RMB RMB

Within one year 22,350 20,200
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21.

22,

23.

24.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Company leases a number of staff quarters under operating leases. The leases run for
an initial petiod of one (2011: one) yeat, with an option to renew the lease and renegotiated
the terms at the expity dates ot at dates as mutually agreed between the Company and
respective landlords. None of the leases include contingent rentals.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Properties under development
Contracted but not provided for 5,153,000 26,502,000

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, duting the year, the Company had the following material transactions with
related parties:

23.1 Details of the transactions between the Company and its related parties are
summarised below.

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Companies in which a shareholder of the
Company have beneficial interests
Interest expense 4,996,138 1,450,276

232 Key management personnel remuneration
Key management of the Company are members of the board of directors as well as
certain senior management personnel. Included in staff costs are key management
petsonnel remuneration which includes the following expenses:

2012 2011
RMB RMB

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, bonus and other benefits 590,540 607,750

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company is exposed to financial tisks through its use of financial instruments in its
ordinary coutse of operations and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.In light of the
simplicity of the opetations, the risk management of the Company is carried out by the
board of directors directly. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Company’s financial petformance. The Board discusses principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific ateas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and use of financial instruments.
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24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

24.1

24.2

24.3

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial position relate to the
following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2012 2011
RMB RMB
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Listed equity fund held for trading - 924,744
Loans and receivables
Other receivables and deposits 5,125,985 4,104,651
Amount due from a director - 1,000,000
Restricted cash 778,306 732,783
Cash and cash equivalents 1,511,073 3,724,912
7,415,364 10,487,090
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
Trade and other payables 24,721,387 2,647,129
Loan from related companies 54,396,030 58,143,006
Amount due to a director 500,000 -
79,617,417 60,790,135

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency tisk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The management considers that the Company is not exposed to foreign currency
tisk as all of the transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in the
functional currency of the Company.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial
insttument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The
Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank balances and borrowings.
Bortowings bearing variable rates and fixed rates expose the Company to cash flow
interest rate risk and fait value interest rate risk respectively. The exposure to
intetest rates for the Company’s shott term bank deposits is considered immaterial.

The Company manages interest rate risk by monitoring its interest rate profile, but
the Company has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

No sensitivity analysis is petformed as the Company’s interest expenses are all
capitalised to properties undet development, hence there are no profit or loss effect
for any general increase/decrease in interest rates.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

24.4

24.5

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the countetparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Company. The Company’s exposute to credit risk mainly
arises from its investing activities.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised financial assets is

limited to the carrying amount at the reporting date as summarised in note 24.1
above.

In respect of credit risk associated with other receivables, management closely
monitors all outstanding debts and reviews the collectability of othet receivables
periodically. The credit risk for liquid funds 'is considered negligible as the
counterparties are reputable international banks with high quality external credit
ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of trade payables and its financing obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management. The Company’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and ensure that the Company maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from related companies
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Analysed below is the Company’s remaining contractual matutities for its financial
Habilities as at the reporting date. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of the eatliest date when the
Company is required to pay. Where settlement of the Lability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the eatliest period in which the Company is
committed to pay.
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24, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)
24,5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.

Total
Within contractual
1 year or undiscounted Carrying
on demand cash flow amount
RMB RMB RMB
2012
Trade and other payables 24,721,387 24,721,387 24,721,387
Loan from related companies 54,396,030 54,396,030 54,396,030
Amount due to a director 500,000 500,000 500,000
79,617,417 = 79,617,417 79,617,417
2011
Trade and other payables 2,647,129 2,647,129 2,647,129
Loan from related companies 58,143,006 58,143,006 58,143,006

60,790,135 60,790,135 60,790,135

24.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position
The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in
the statement of financial position in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The
hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three levels based on the relative
reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities. The fait value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted ptices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or
inditectly (i.e. detived from prices); and

Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fait value hierarchy within which the financial asset or liability is
categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
the fair value measutement.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
{Continued)

24.6

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position (Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1
2012 2011
RMB RMB
Assets
Listed equity fund held for trading - 924,744

Listed equity fund
The listed equity fund is denominated in RMB. Fair values have been determined

by reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date.

25. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by pricing

goods and setvices commensurately with the level of risks.

The Company actively and regulatly reviews and manages its capital structure and makes

adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.



SOLID GROUP INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries, is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), including the List of
Supplementary Information filed separately from the basic consolidated financial statements.

Management’s responsibility on the consolidated financial statements includes designing and
implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
citcumstances.

‘The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements, and the additional
supplementary information, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing,
and in its report to the Board of Directors and stoc:kholders has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such examination. /
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries

2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue Extension
Makat City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solid Group
Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated statements
of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statemnents of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatoty information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessaty to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Audziors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requiretnents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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P&A 15 a membaer firm within Grant Thotmon nternatonal Lid

Ofteces in Cebu, Davao, Cavile

BOAPRC Cert of Reg. Mo D002
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An audit involves performing procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considets intetrnal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
m order to design audit procedures that are approptiate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the approprateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropdate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present faitly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and their consolidated financial petformance and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012 in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Mailene Sigue-Bienar
Partner

CPA Reg No. 0090230
TIN 120-319-128
PTR No. 3671451, January 2, 2013, Makat City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0396-AR-2 (untl Aug 8, 2015)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-3 (untl Jan. 18, 2015)
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SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 3,019,984,213 P 1,720,748,062
Trade and other receivables - net 7 1,287,469,305 1,137,152,304
Advances to related parties 26 21,633,388 128,543,399
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 8 - 70,272,991
Available-for-sale financial assets - net 9 - 51,994,367
Merchandise inventories and supplies - net 10 391,862,888 564,543,065
Real estate inventories - net 11 2,011,065,441 1,675,780,772
Other current assets 14 252,161,359 267,196,925
Total Current Assets 6,984,176,594 5,616,231,885
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 7 630,458,102 669,885,531
Available-for-sale financial assets - net 9 9,076,527 7,881,527
Property, plant and equipment - net 12 1,048,407,834 1,386,934,809
Investment property - net 13 4,017,441,106 3,864,333,786
Retirement benefit asset 22 73,164,772 79,281,451
Deferred tax assets - net 23 63,135,755 69,982,489
Other non-current assets - net 14 22,231,704 22,151,072
Total Non-current Assets 5,863,915,800 6,100,450,665
TOTAL ASSETS P 12,848,092,394 P 11,716,682,550




Notes 2012 2011
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans 15 P 571,666,922 P 779,398,755
Trade and other payables 16 628,902,651 592,432,973
Customers’ deposits 11 881,899,665 686,313,646
Advances from related parties 26 11,629,819 107,495,231
Estimated liability for land and
land development costs 11 68,304,647 68,304,647
Income tax payable 65,207,807 43,387,647
Total Current Liabilities 2,227,611,511 2,277,332,899
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Refundable deposits - net 17 16,045,396 15,611,010
Retirement benefit obligation 22 12,582,159 6,111,141
Deferred tax liabilities - net 23 920,063,448 861,145,243
Total Non-current Liabilities 948,691,003 882,867,394
Total Liabilities 3,176,302,514 3,160,200,293
EQUITY
Equity attributable to the
Parent Company’s stockholders
Capital stock 24 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000
Additional paid-in capital 4,641,701,922 4,641,701,922
Treasury shares - at cost 24 ( 115,614,380 )  ( 115,614,380 )
Revaluation resetves 24 ( 46,319,482)  ( 29,242,370
Retained earnings 24 2,758,300,997 1,623,289,267
Total equity attributable to the
Parent Company’s stockholders 9,269,044,057 8,151,109,439
Non-controlling interests 402,745,823 405,372,818
Total Equity 9,671,789,880 8,556,482,257
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 12,848,092,394 P 11,716,682,550

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2012 2011 2010
REVENUES 2
Sale of goods P 3,959,978,189 P 3,135,018,332 P 1,622,862,107
Rendering of services 630,331,311 682,884,837 694,808,001
Rentals 136,716,722 157,741,960 121,663,078
Sale of real estate 98,968,685 126,087,655 207,355,479
Interests 21 64,387,678 47,757,624 63,089,091
4,890,382,585 4,149,490,408 2,709,777,756
COST OF SALES, SERVICES, REAL ESTATE
SALES AND RENTALS
Cost of sales 18 3,092,129,708 2,524,843.718 1,225.420,110
Cost of services 18 488,402,762 499,294,869 460,191,618
Cost of real estate sales 20 45,917,227 95,886,118 151,396,685
Cost of rentals 18 35,382,941 39,880,748 38,569,193
3,661,832,638 3,159,905,453 1,875,577,606
GROSS PROFIT 1,228,549,947 989,584,955 834,200,150
OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES (INCOME)
Selling and distribution costs 20 361,066,027 278,372,598 227,552,333
General and administrative expenses 20 343,002,874 366,950,584 281,046,941
Gain on sale of assets 27 ( 267,133,735 ) - -
Other operating income - net 19 ( 553,926,007 ) 232,773,017) ( 87,379,618)
( 116,990,841 ) 412,550,165 421,219,656
OPERATING PROFIT 1,345,540,788 577,034,790 412,980,494
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Finance income 21 163,702,479 64,476,707 38,921,553
Finance costs 21 ( 49,088,095 ) 89,426,503 ) ( 88,223,148 )
Other gains 19 57,651,877 21,439,128 2,736,192
172,266,261 3,510,668 ) ( 46,565,403 )
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,517,807,049 573,524,122 366,415,091
TAX EXPENSE 23 276,164,794 139,364,314 122,651,703
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,241,642,255 434,159,808 243.763,388
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - Net of Tax 5 - 3,863,823 ) ( 17,060,653 )
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR P 1,241,642,255 P 430,295,985 P 226,702,735
Profit for the year attributable to the:
Parent Company’s stockholders P 1,244,304,250 P 439,437,428 P 229,346,310
Non-controlling interests ( 2,661,995 ) 9,141,443 ) ( 2,643,575)
P 1,241,642,255 P 430,295,985 P 226,702,735
Earnings per share attributable to the
Parent Company’s stockholders - basic and diluted 25 P 0.68 P 0.24 P 0.13

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2012 2011 2010
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR P 1,241,642,255 P 430,295,985 226,702,735
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Reclassification adjustments for losses recognized
in profit or loss 12,145,053 12,804,822 49,498,034
Fair value gains (losses) on available-for-sale
financial assets, net of taxes 9 ( 1,153,830 ) ( 11,064,600 ) 14,474,181
Currency exchange differences on translating balances
of foreign operations 2 ( 28,033,335 ) 12,497,965 5,799,030 )
( 17,042,112 ) 14,238,181 58,173,185
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR P 1,224,600,143 P 444,534,166 284,875,920
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
attributable to:
Parent Company’s stockholders P 1,227,227,138 P 453,675,609 287,519,495
Non-controlling interests ( 2,626,995 ) ( 9,141,443 ) 2,043,575)
P 1,224,600,143 P 444,534,166 284,875,920

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Balance at January 1, 2012

Transactions between owners:
Dividends declared
Net loss for the year attributable
to non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable

to the Parent Company’s stockholders:

Net profit
Other comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2012

Balance at January 1, 2011
Transaction between owners -
Net loss for the year attributable

to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable

to the Parent Company's stockholders:

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2011

Balance at January 1, 2010
Transaction between owners -
Net loss for the year attributable

to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable

to the Parent Company’s stockholders:

Net profit
Other comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2010

SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

to the Parent C

Capital Additional Treasury Revaluation Retained Non-controlling Total
Notes Stock Paid-in Capital Shares - at Cost Reserves Earnings Total Interests Equity
P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 ) (P 29,242,370)) P 1,623,289,267 P 8,151,109,439 P 405,372,818 P 8,556,482,257
2 - - - - 109,292,520 ) 109,292,520 ) - ( 109,292,520 )
- R - R - - 2,661,995 ) ( 2,661,995
- - - - - - 35,000 35,000
- - - - 109,292,520 ) 109,292,520 ) 2,626,995 ) ( 111,919,515 )
- - - - 1,244,304,250 1,244,304,250 - 1,244,304,250
2,9 - - - ( 17,077,112) - 17,077,112) - ( 17,077,112)
- - - ( 17,077,112) 1,244,304,250 1,227,227,138 - 1,227,227,138
2 P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 ) (P 46,319,482) P 2,758,300,997 P 9,269,044,057 P 402,745,823 P 9,671,789,880
P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 (P 43,480,551 P 1,183,851,839 P 7,697,433,830 P 414,514,261 P 8,111,948,091
- - - - - - 9,141,443 ) ( 9,141,443 )
- - - - 439,437,428 439,437,428 - 439,437,428
29 - - - 14,238,181 - 14,238,181 - 14,238,181
- - - 14,238,181 439,437,428 453,675,609 - 453,675,609
2% P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 (P 20242,370) P 1,623,289,267 P 8,151,109.439 P 405,372,818 P 8,556,482,257
2% P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 (P 101,653,736 P 954,505,529 P 7,409,914,335 P 417,157,836 P 7,827,072,171
- - - - - - 2,643,575 ) ( 2,643,575)
- - - - 229,346,310 229,346,310 - 229,346,310
2 - - - 58,173,185 - 58,173,185 - 58,173,185
. - - 58,173,185 229,346,310 287,519,495 - 287,519,495
2% P 2,030,975,000 P 4,641,701,922 (P 115,614,380 (P 43,480,551 P 1,183,851,839 P 7,697,433,830 P 414,514,261 P 8,111,948,091

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2012 2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax from continuing operations P 1,517,807,049 P 573,524,122 P 366,415,091
Loss before tax from discontinued operations 5 - ( 3,514,984 ) ( 16,445,538 )
Profit before tax 1,517,807,049 570,009,138 349,969,553
Adjustments for:
Reversal of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment - net 19 ( 350,000,000 ) - -
Gain on sale of assets 28 ( 267,133,735)  ( 1,721,437) ( 6,646,929 )
Fair value gains on investment property - net 19 ( 149,569,182 ) ( 191,644,597 ) ( 27,648,081 )
Interest income ( 147,707,834)  ( 84,885,381 ) ( 86,478,277 )
Reversal of impairment losses on trade and other receivables 7,21 ( 75,708,696 ) ( 17,014,146 ) ( 11,104,219)
Reversal of allowance for inventory obsolescence 10 ( 65,257,144 ) ( 27,304,279 ) ( 19,184,724 )
Depreciation and amortization 12 46,467,220 78,173,250 75,588,976
Gain on derecognition of liabilities 19 ( 25,117,698 ) - -
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables 7 12,767,663 21,145,641 9,266,502
Unrealized foreign currency losses (gains) - net 14,111,262 1,723,603 1,119,803
Interest expense 21 6,726,796 8,203,376 10,530,521
Loss on inventory obsolescence 10 3,009,207 34,790,640 59,288,554
Interest amortization on refundable deposits 17 1,431,460 614,019 864,519
Reversal of impairment losses on available-for-sale (AEFS)
financial assets 21 ( 990,643 ) - -
Gain on sale of investment property - ( 17,802,607 ) -
Fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 21 - 5,909,803 -
Impairment losses on AFS financial assets 9 - 18,995,887 33,657,338
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held-for-sale 5 - - ( 452,503 )
Operating profit before working capital changes 520,835,725 399,192,910 388,771,033
Increase in trade and other reccivables ( 65,084,488)  ( 279,274483)  ( 349,009,034 )
Decrease in advances to related parties 106,910,011 72,650,008 303,135,008
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at FVIPL 70,272,991 ( 76,182,794 ) -
Decrease in AFS financial assets 34,747,898 86,079,080 187,609,047
Decrease (increase) in merchandise inventories and supplies 210,494,038 ( 179,320,182)  ( 349,372,147)
Increase in real estate inventories ( 335,284,669)  ( 347,777942)  ( 281,121,792)
Increase in other current assets ( 130,156,483 )  ( 96,146,196 ) ( 47,045,684 )
Decrease (increase) in retirement benefit asset 6,116,679 ( 4,363,496 ) ( 28,981,993 )
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets 1,534,754 2,427,596 ( 9,494,057 )
Increase in trade and other payables 61,587,376 178,804,517 120,058,602
Increase in customers’ deposits 195,586,019 657,278,552 -
Decrease in advances from related parties ( 95,865,412)  ( 61,416,380 ) ( 32,528,309 )
Increase (decrease) in refundable deposits ( 997,074 ) ( 255,543) 3,291,167
Increase in retirement benefit obligation 6,471,018 2,989,548 1,636,997
Cash generated from (used in) operations 587,168,383 354,685,195 ( 93,051,163 )
Interest received 64,387,678 47,757,624 63,089,091
Cash paid for income taxes ( 43,387,647 ) ( 44,020,603 ) ( 12,316,993 )
Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities 608,168,414 358,422,216 ( 42,279,065 )
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of of assets 1,094,445,648 4,352,549 1,421,223
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 12 ( 143,682,133)  ( 99,184,297 ) ( 56,800,567 )
Interest received 83,320,157 37,127,757 23,389,186
Additions to investment property 13 ( 5,153,524)  ( 6,927,455 ) ( 1,352,695 )
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 13 - 26,873,607 -
Proceeds from disposal of non-cutrent assets held for sale - - 9,690,330
Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities 1,028,930,148 ( 37,757,839 ) ( 23,652,523 )

Balance forwarded P 1,637,098,562 P 320,664,377 (P 65,931,588 )




Note 2012 2011 2010

Balance brought forward P 1,637,098,562 P 320,664,377 (P 65,931,588 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net repayments for interest-bearing loans 15 ( 207,731,833 ) ( 614,156,996 ) -

Dividends paid ( 109,292,520 ) - -

Interest paid ( 6,726,796)  ( 8,203,376 ) ( 10,530,521 )

Net proceeds from interest-bearing loans 15 - 404,053,192 434,554,235

Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities ( 323,751,149 ) ( 218,307,180 ) 424,023,714
Effect of Currency Rate Changes on

Cash and Cash Equivalents ( 14,111,262)  ( 1,723,603 ) ( 1,119,803 )
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,299,236,151 100,633,594 356,972,323
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,720,748,062 1,620,114,468 1,263,142,145
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR P 3,019,984,213 P 1,720,748,062 P 1,620,114,468

Supplemental Information on Non-cash Investing Activities

In 2012, SMC transferred land with carrying amount of P1.6 million as of December 31, 2012, previously classified as Investment Property to Other Non-current Assets (see
Note 13).

See Notes to C lidated Fii ial S




SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 Company Background

Solid Group Inc. (SGI or the Parent Company) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 16, 1933. The Parent
Company currently conducts business as an investment holding company. On

September 4, 1996, SGI listed its shares in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following subsidiaries
(the Parent Company and the Subsidiaries are collectively referred to as “the Group”):

Percentage of Ownership

Subsidiaries 2012 2011 2010 Notes Nature of Busines
Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL) 100 100 100 (a) Investment company
Kita Corporation (Kita) 100 100 100 Real estate and manufacturing of
injected plastics
Solid Broadband Corporation (SBC) 100 100 100 Broadband, cable and satellite

services, sale of mobile phones
and LCD televisions
Solid Group Technologies Corporation

(SGTC) 100 100 100 Trading of prefabricated
modular house and office
units

Precos, Inc. (Precos) 100 100 100 (©) Real estate
Solid Electronics Corporation (SE Corp.) 100 100 100 Repair services for audio and

video products and
mobile phones

Solid Corporation (SC) - 100 100 (k) Real estate
Solid Manila Corporation (SMC) 100 100 100 (k) Real estate
Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. (CBHI) 100 100 100 (e Real estate
Solid Manila Finance, Inc. (SMFI) 100 100 100 Financing
Solid Video Corporation (SVC) 100 100 100 Trading of professional audio
and video equipment
Zen Towers Corporation (ZTC) 100 100 100 Real estate
Phil-Nanning Consortium, Inc. (PNCI) 100 100 100 (©), (@ Real estate
Mytel Mobility Solutions, Inc. (Mytel) - 100 100 (), (m)  Sale of mobile phones
My Solid Technologies & Devices
Corporation (My Solid) 100 100 100 (i), (m)  Sale of mobile phones
Omni Logistics Corporation (OLC) - 100 100 ) Logistics and assembly of

consumer electronics products
Omni Solid Setvices, Inc. (OSSI)
[formerly Solid Laguna

Corporation (SLC)] 100 100 100 ) Logistics and assembly of
consumer electronics products

Skyworld Corporation (Skyworld) 75 75 75 (0), (¢ Investment holding company
Interstar Holdings Company, Inc.

(Interstar) 73 73 73 (), (¢)  Investment holding company
Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development,

Ltd. (Fil-Dragon) 51 51 51 (h) Real estate
Starworld Corporation (Starworld) 50 50 50 (e), (f)  Real estate

Laguna International Industrial Park,
Inc. (LIIP) 50 50 50 (b), (d) Real estate



Notes:

() Incorporated and domiciled in the British Virgin Islands

(b) Indirectly owned through SC

(c)  Pre-operating or non-operating

(d) LIIP is 22.5% owned by SC and 37.5% owned by Interstar

(¢) Indirectly owned through SMC

(f)  Starworld is 20% owned by SMC and 40% owned by Skyworld

(g0 Indirectly owned through Precos

(h) Indirectly owned through PNCI; incorporated and domiciled in the People’s Republic of
China (PRC)

@)  Incorporated in 2009 and started commercial operations in January 2010

()  Acquired in 2010

(k)  Merged; with SMC as the surviving company, effective January 1, 2012

@0  Merged; with SLC as the surviving company, effective January 1, 2012. On
March 19, 2012, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the change in
corporate name of SLC to OSSI.

(m) Merged; with My Solid as the surviving company, effective June 1, 2012

SBC holds a provisional authority, granted by the National Telecommunications
Commission (NTC), to use its legislative franchise under Republic Act (RA) No. 9116,
An Act Granting Solid Broadband Corporation a Franchise to Construct, Install, Establish, Operate
and Maintain Telecommunications Systems thronghont the Philippines (see Note 27.3).

SMFTI is subject to the rules and regulations provided under RA No.8556, The Financing
Company Act of 1998.

SGTC was incorporated to engage in the development and implementation of
information and communications technology systems and applications. On

February 22, 2011, the Board of Directors (BOD) and stockholders of SGTC approved
the amendment of SGTC’s articles of incorporation to change the Company’s primary
purpose. This amendment was approved by the SEC on March 22, 2011 and starting
this date, SGTC’s primary purpose is to engage in, operate, conduct and maintain
business of designing, manufacturing, installing, importing, exporting, marketing,
distributing or otherwise dealing in at wholesale and retail prefabricated modular house
and office units.

1.2  Status of Operations and Mergers
(a)  Sale of SBC’s Assets

In a special meeting held on May 11, 2012, the BOD of SBC approved the sale,
assignment, transfer and conveyance of the assets, contracts and licenses of SBC
to a third party. The assets identified to be included in the sale are SBC’s property
and equipment, a significant portion of its trade receivables and inventories, as
well as contracts, permits and licenses that are used in carrying out its operations.
Such sale transaction was consummated in 2012. Consequently, SBC’s ownership
on the identified assets, related contracts and licenses directly attributable to the
Company’s operations has been transferred to the third party (see Note 27.3).



(b)  Mergers of Certain Subsidiaries

On December 26, 2011 and January 10, 2012, the SEC approved the mergers of
SC and SMC; OLC and OSSI; respectively, whereby SMC and OSSI will be the
surviving entities. Both mergers became effective on January 1, 2012; hence,
starting that date, SC started to operate under the corporate name of SMC and
OLC under the corporate name of OSSI (see Note 1.1).

On May 28, 2012, SEC approved the merger of Mytel and My Solid, wherein
My Solid would be the surviving entity. The merger became effective on
June 1, 2012 (see Note 1.1).

The Group expects that these mergers will result in efficiency in operations and
management of the surviving entities, which will ultimately result positively in the
overall financial performance of the Group.

(¢)  Phasing-out of Manufacturing Business and Related Services of Certain Subsidiaries

On November 23, 2009, the Parent Company’s management disclosed to the
public its plan of phasing-out its unprofitable manufacturing business and related
services, which include the plastic injection molding parts operations of Kita and
SLC, with the expectation that this will positively impact the overall financial
performance of the Group. Kita and SLC have ceased their plastic injection
manufacturing business as of December 31, 2010 (see Note 5).

13 Other Corporate Information

The registered offices and principal places of business of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries, except those listed below, are located at 2285 Don Chino Roces Avenue
Extension, Makati City. The registered offices and principal places of business of the
other subsidiaries are as follows:

BRL - 2nd Floor, Abbott Building, P.O. Box 933, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands
Kita - 7175 Gil Puyat Ave. cor. Feati St., Clark Freeport Zone, Clarkfield, Pampanga
OSSI - Ganado Street, Laguna International Industrial Park, Mamplasan, Bifian, Laguna
SMC and CBHI - 1000 J. Bocobo St., Ermita, Manila
SE Corp. - 1172 E. delos Santos Avenue, Balintawak, Quezon City
Starworld - Bo. Prinza, Calamba City
ZTC - 1111 Natividad A. Lopez Street, Brgy. 659-A, Zone 79 District 5, Ermita, Manila
PNCI - 139 Joy St. Balingasa, Quezon City
Fil-Dragon - 16 Zhujin Road, ASEAN Commercial Park, Nanning City, Guangxi Province, PRC.
My Solid and

SGTC - 2000 East Service Road Bicutan, Parafiaque City

1.4 Approval for Issuance of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2012

(including the comparatives for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010) were
authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s BOD on April 8, 2013.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarized below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(@)

)

(¢

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are
adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), from the
pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
bases specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies in the
succeeding pages.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group
presents the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in two statements:
a Consolidated Statement of Income and a Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Two comparative periods are presented for the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group applies an
accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its
consolidated financial statements, or reclassifies items in the consolidated financial
statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the
Group’s functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute
amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
measured using the Parent Company’s functional currency, which is the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company operates.



2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(@)

Effective in 2012 that are Relevant to the Group

In 2012, the Group adopted the following amendments to PFRS that are relevant
to the Group and effective for its consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on or after July 1, 2011 or January 1, 2012:

PFRS 7 (Amendment) :  Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets
PAS 12 (Amendment) :  Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:

Recovery of Underlying Assets

Discussed below are the effects on the consolidated financial statements of the
new and amended standards and interpretations.

@) PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets. 'The amendment requires additional disclosures that will allow users of
financial statements to understand the relationship between transferred
financial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety and the associated
liabilities; and, to evaluate the nature of, and risk associated with any
continuing involvement of the reporting entity in financial assets that are
derecognized in their entirety. The Group did not transfer any financial asset
involving this type of arrangement; hence, the amendment did not result in
any significant change in the Group’s disclosures in its financial statements.

(i) PAS 12 (Amendment), Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
(effective from January 1, 2012). The amendment provides an exception to
the existing principle in PAS 12 that recovery of the carrying amount of
investment property measured at fair value under PAS 40, Investment Property,
will be or normally be through sale. The amendment introduces a rebuttable
presumption that the measurement of a deferred tax liability or asset that
arises from investment property measured at fair value should reflect the tax
consequence of recovering the carrying amount entirely through sale. The
presumption is rebutted for depreciable investment property (e.g., building)
that is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the asset over time,
rather than through sale. Moreover, Standing Interpretations Committee, 21,
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets, is accordingly
withdrawn and is incorporated under PAS 12 requiring deferred tax on
depreciable asset that are measured using revaluation model in
PAS 106, Property, Plant and Equipment, should always be assumed on a sale basis
of the asset. The amendment has no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements because the Group’s investment properties
that are measured at fair value are taxable with the same rate regardless of
whether these assets will be sold or used in operation.



(%)
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Effective in 2012 that is not Relevant to the Group

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS, was amended to provide relief for first-time
adopters of PFRS from having to reconstruct transactions that occurred before
the date of transition to PFRS and to provide guidance for entities emerging
from severe hyperinflation either to resume presenting PFRS financial
statements or to present PFRS financial statements for the first time. The
amendment became effective for annual periods beginning on or after

July 1, 2011 but is not relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective Subsequent to 2012 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2012. Management has
initially determined the following pronouncements, which the Group will apply in
accordance with their transitional provisions, to be relevant to its consolidated
financial statements:

@) PAS 1 (Amendment), Financial Statements Presentation — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprebensive Income (effective from July 1, 2012). The amendment
requires an entity to group items presented in other comprehensive income
into those that, in accordance with other PFRS: (a) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The Company’s management
expects that this will change the current presentation of items in other
comprehensive income [i.e., unrealized fair value gains and losses on
Available-for-Sale (AFS) financial assets].

(i) PAS 19 (Revised), Employee Benefits (effective from January 1, 2013). The
revision made a number of changes as part of the improvements throughout
the standard. The main changes relate to defined benefit plans as follows:

e climinates the corridor approach under the existing guidance of PAS 19
and requires an entity to recognize all actuarial gains and losses arising in
the reporting period;

e streamlines the presentation of changes in plan assets and liabilities
resulting in the disaggregation of changes into three main components of
service costs, net interest on net defined benefit obligation or asset, and
remeasurement; and,

e enhances disclosure requirements, including information about the
characteristics of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are
exposed to through participation in those plans.

Currently, the Group is using the corridor approach and its unrecognized
actuarial losses and gains as of December 31, 2012 amounting to

P25.2 million and P15.1 million (see Note 22.2), respectively, will be
retrospectively recognized as loss in other comprehensive income in 2013.
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(i) Consolidation Standards (effective from January 1, 2013)

The Group is currently reviewing the impact of the following consolidation
standards on its consolidated financial statements in time for their adoption
in 2013:

e PERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. This standard builds on existing
principles of consolidation by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements. The standard also provides additional
guidance to assist in determining control where this is difficult to assess.

e PERS 11, Joint Arrangements. This standard provides a more realistic
reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and obligations
of the arrangement, rather than its legal form. This standard replaces the
three categories under PAS 31, mainly, jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled operations and jointly controlled assets, with two new
categories — joint operations and joint ventures. Moreover, this also
eliminates the option of using proportionate consolidation for joint
ventures.

e PERS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities. ‘This standard integrates and
makes consistent the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and unconsolidated structured entities. This also introduces new
disclosure requirements about the risks to which an entity is exposed
from its involvement with structured entities.

e PAS 27 Revised), Separate Financial Statements. This revised standard now
covers the requirements pertaining solely to separate financial statements
after the relevant discussions on control and consolidated financial
statements have been transferred and included in the new PFRS 10.

No new major changes relating to separate financial statements have
been introduced as a result of the revision.

o PAS 28 (Revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. This revised
standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as

associates, to be accounted for using equity method following the
issuance of PFRS 11.

Subsequent to the issuance of the foregoing consolidation standards, the
IASB made some changes to the transitional provisions in International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, which were
also adopted by the FRSC. The guidance confirms that an entity is not
required to apply PFRS 10 retrospectively in certain circumstances and
clarifies the requirements to present adjusted comparatives. The guidance
also made changes to PFRS 10 and PFRS 12 which provide similar relief
from the presentation or adjustment of comparative information for periods
prior to the immediately preceding period. Further, it provides relief by
removing the requirement to present comparatives for disclosures relating to
unconsolidated structured entities for any period before the first annual
period for which PFRS 12 is applied.
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(vi)

PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2013). The
amendment requires qualitative and quantitative disclosures relating to gross
and net amounts of recognized financial instruments that are set-off in
accordance with PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amendment
also requires disclosure of information about recognized financial
instruments subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
agreements, even if they are not set-off in the statement of financial position,
including those which do not meet some or all of the offsetting criteria under
PAS 32, and amounts related to a financial collateral. These disclosures will
allow financial statement users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with recognized
financial assets and financial liabilities on the entity’s financial position. The
Group has initially assessed that the adoption of the amendment will not
have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

PERS 13, Fair VValne Measurements (etfective from January 1, 2013). This
standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement
and disclosure requirements for use across PFRS. The requirements do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it
should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards. The Group is yet to assess the impact of this new standard.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate.
This Philippine interpretation is based on IFRIC interpretation issued by the
IASB in July 2008 effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2009. The adoption of this interpretation in the Philippines,
however, was deferred by the FRSC and Philippine SEC after giving due
considerations on various application issues and the implication on this
interpretation of the IASB’s on-going revision of the Revenue Recognition
standard. This interpretation provides guidance on how to determine whether
an agreement for the construction of real estate is within the scope of PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, or PAS 18, Revenue, and accordingly, when revenue from
the construction should be recognized. The main expected change in practice
is a shift from recognizing revenue using the percentage-of-completion
method (i.e., as a construction progresses, by reference to the stage of
completion of the development) to recognizing revenue at completion upon
or after delivery. The Group is currently evaluating the impact of this
interpretation on its consolidated financial statements in preparation for its
adoption when this becomes mandatorily effective in the Philippines but does
not expect it to have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as it currently accounts for its real estate transactions using the full
accrual method.
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(vii) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2014). The
amendment provides guidance to address inconsistencies in applying the
criteria for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. It clarifies that a
right of set-off is required to be legally enforceable, in the normal course of
business, in the event of default and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy
of the entity and all of the counterparties. The amendment also clarifies the
principle behind net settlement and includes an example of a gross settlement
system with characteristics that would satisfy the criterion for net settlement.
The Group does not expect this amendment to have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements.

(viii) PERS 9, Financial Instruments: Clarification and Measurement (etfective from
January 1, 2015). This is the first part of a new standard on classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that will replace
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in its entirety. This
chapter deals with two measurement categories for financial assets: amortized
cost and fair value. All equity instruments will be measured at fair value while
debt instruments will be measured at amortized cost only if the entity is
holding it to collect contractual cash flows which represent payment of
principal and interest. The accounting for embedded derivatives in host
contracts that are financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to
consider whether or not they are closely related, and, in most arrangements,
do not require separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized-cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in case where
the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than in profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

To date, other chapters of PFRS 9 dealing with impairment methodology and
hedge accounting are still being completed.

Further, in November 2011, the IASB tentatively decided to consider making
limited modifications to IFRS 9’s financial asset classification model to
address certain application issues.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its effective
date or until all chapters of this new standard have been published. In
addition, management is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and is committed to conduct a
comprehensive study of the potential impact of this standard in the last
quarter of 2014 before its adoption in 2015 to assess the impact of all changes.
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(ix) 2009-2011 Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual Improvements to PFRS
(2009-2011 Cycle) made minor amendments to a number of PFRS, which are
effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Among
those improvements, the following amendments are relevant to the Group
but management does not expect a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

(a) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of
the Requirements for Comparative Information. The amendment clarifies the
requirements for presenting comparative information for the
following:

Requirements for opening statement of financial position

If an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a
material effect on the information in the statement of financial
position at the beginning of the preceding period (i.e., opening
statement of financial position), it shall present such third statement
of financial position.

Other than disclosure of certain specified information in accordance
with PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Acconnting Estimates and
Errors, related notes to the opening statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

Requirements for additional comparative information beyond
minimum requirements

If an entity presented comparative information in the financial
statements beyond the minimum comparative information
requirements, the additional financial statements information should
be presented in accordance with PFRS including disclosure of
comparative information in the related notes for that additional
information. Presenting additional comparative information
voluntarily would not trigger a requirement to provide a complete set
of financial statements.

(b) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment — Classification of
Servicing Equipment. The amendment addresses a perceived
inconsistency in the classification requirements for servicing
equipment which resulted in classifying servicing equipment as part of
inventory when it is used for more than one period. It clarifies that
items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment
shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet
the definition of property, plant and equipment, otherwise, these are
classified as inventory.
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(o PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Presentation — Tax Effect of
Distributions to Holders of Equity Instruments. The amendment clarifies that
the consequences of income tax relating to distributions to holders of an
equity instrument and to transaction costs of an equity transaction shall
be accounted for in accordance with PAS 12. Accordingly, income tax
relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument is recognized
in profit or loss while income tax related to the transaction costs of an
equity transaction is recognized in equity.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Parent Company obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries as enumerated in Note 1.1, after the elimination of material intercompany
transactions. All intercompany balances and transactions with subsidiaries, including
income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses
from intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full.
Intercompany losses that indicate an impairment are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries and non-controlling
interest (NCI) as follows:

(a)  Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to control the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date the Group obtains control, direct or indirect, until such time that such
control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This
requires recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed and any NCI in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary are the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, if any. The consideration
transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the
acquiree cither at fair value or at the NCI’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.
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Goodwill (positive) represents the excess of acquisition cost over the Parent’s
share in the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Negative goodwill represents the excess of Parent Company’s
share in the fair value of identifiable net assets of the subsidiary at date of
acquisition over acquisition cost.

On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated statement of financial statement at their fair values, which are also
used as the bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

(b)  Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of
the Group in their capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
net assets of the subsidiary is recognized in equity. Disposals of equity
investments to NCI interests result in gains and losses for the Group that are also
recognized in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a2 manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s strategic steering committee; its chief operating
decision-maker. The strategic steering committee is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s
products and service lines as disclosed in Note 4, which represent the main products
and services provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines
requires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches.
All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8,
Operating Segments, are the same as those used in its financial statements. However,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to any segment.

There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.
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2.5 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
terms of the financial instrument. Financial assets other than designated and effective
as hedging instruments are classified into the following categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and AFS financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different
categories by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are
initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are recognized in profit
or loss.

Currently, the Group’s financial assets are categorized as follows:
(a)  Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when
the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of reporting period which are
classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is
provided when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due to it in accordance with the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables (excluding Advances to
suppliers), Advances to Related Parties and Refundable Deposits (presented as
part of Other Current Assets) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Financial Asset at F1'TPL

This category includes financial assets that are either classified as held-for-trading
or that meets certain conditions and are designated by the entity to be carried at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. All derivatives fall into
this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments.
Assets in this category are classified as current if they are either held for trading or
are expected to be realized within 12 months from the end of the reporting

period.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets (except derivatives and financial
instruments originally designated as financial assets at FVTPL) may be reclassified
out of FVTPL category if they are no longer held for the purpose of being sold or
repurchased in the near term.

AFS Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to
this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. They are included in non-current assets under the AFS Financial
Assets account in the consolidated statement of financial position unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months from the end
of reporting period. The Group’s financial assets include country club shares, golf
club shares, listed equity securities, and corporate bonds.

All' AFS financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of any income tax effects, and are reported as part
of the Revaluation Reserve account in equity. When the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative fair value gains or
losses recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and is presented as reclassification adjustment within other
comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income, except
for financial assets that are debt securities which are recognized in profit or loss
only if the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized.

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that
are recognized in profit or loss are presented in the consolidated statement of income

line item Finance Income and Finance Costs, respectively.

For investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets, fair value is
determined by reference to stock exchange-quoted market bid prices at the close of

business on the end of reporting period. For investments where there is no quoted

market price, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated based on the

expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the investment.
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Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial assets
are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related carrying
amount of financial assets is measured.

The financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial instruments expire or when substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

2.6 Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in
bringing each product to its present location and condition is determined as follows:

(a)  Raw materials, service parts, supplies and others — on a moving average method. The
cost of raw materials, service parts, supplies and others include all costs directly
attributable to the acquisitions, such as the purchase price, import duties and
other taxes that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities.

(b)  Merchandise and finished goods, and work-in-process — on a moving average method; cost
includes direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value of finished goods and work-in-process inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable value of raw
materials, service parts, supplies and others is the current replacement cost.

2.7 Real Estate Inventories

Real estate inventories consist of the following:
(a)  Land and Land Development Costs

Land and land development costs includes the acquisition cost of raw land
intended for future development and sale, including other costs and expenses
incurred to effect the transfer of property title are included in this account.

(b)  Property Development Costs

Property development costs include the cost of land used as a building site for a
condominium project and the accumulated costs incurred in developing and
constructing the property for sale.

Land and land development costs and property development costs are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.8 Other Assets

Other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Company as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or value that can
be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected
to flow to the Company beyond one year after the end of the reporting period

(or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), are classified as non-current
assets.

2.9 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at acquisition cost or
construction cost less subsequent depreciation, amortization and any impairment losses.
Land held for use in production or administration is stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 25 years
Test, communication and other equipment 5 to 20 years
Cable system equipment 2 to 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Computer system 2 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2 to 5 years
Tools and equipment 2 to 3 years

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and is stated at cost.
This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing cost (see Note 2.20) and other
direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time that the assets are
completed and available for use.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets
from 2 to 15 years or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no
longer in use and no further charge for depreciation and amortization is made in respect
of those assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.18).

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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An item of property, plant and equipment, including the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated statement of income in the year the item is derecognized.

2.10 Investment Property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is accounted for under the fair value model. It is revalued
annually and is included in the statement of financial position at its market value. Fair
value is supported by market evidence and is determined by independent appraisers
with sufficient experience with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property.

Investment property, which consists mainly of land and improvements and buildings
and improvements under operating lease agreements, is initially measured at acquisition
cost, including transaction costs.

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement
of an investment property is immediately recognized in profit or loss as Fair value gains
(losses) on investment property under Other Operating Income in the consolidated
statement of income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognized in the profit or
loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

For tax purposes, investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging
from 11 to 25 years.

2.11 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include Interest-bearing Loans, Trade and Other Payables
[excluding Output Value-Added Tax (VAT) and other tax-related payables, Advances
from Customers, Reserve for Warranty Costs and Unearned Subscription Income],
Advances from Related Parties and Refundable Deposits, are recognized when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the
consolidated statement of income.

Interest-bearing loans are recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct
issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they
are not settled in the period in which they arise.
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Trade and Other Payables, Advances from Related Parties and Refundable Deposits
with maturities beyond one year are initially recognized at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method, less
settlement payments.

Dividend distributions to sharecholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the BOD.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled
within one year or less after the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business, if longer), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of reporting period.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial
position only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge,
cancellation or expiration.

2.12 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.13 Business Combination
Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting.

The acquisition method involves the recognition of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements prior to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets
and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial
position at their fair values, which are also used as the bases for the subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed (see Note 2.18).

Negative goodwill which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost is charged directly to profit or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to it.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure
its previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and
recognize the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value
at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with
PAS 37 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

2.14 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a
legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their
present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for
cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial
statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not
yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any
reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with
respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of
the related provision.

2.15 Revenue and Expense Recognition
Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services

measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the
Group for goods sold and services rendered, excluding VAT and trade discounts.
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Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, and the costs incurred or to
be incurred can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(@)

()

(¢

(d)

Rendering of services — Revenue is recognized when the performance of contractually
agreed services have been substantially rendered.

Sale of goods (other than sale of real estate) — Revenue is recognized when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. This is generally
when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of goods.

For sales involving multiple element arrangements, customers pay the bundle
amount, which includes the LLCD television and the internet and/or cable
subscriptions. Total selling price is allocated among and/or between the items
included in the bundle based on the relative fair values of the separately
identifiable components.

The recognition criteria for each of these components are described as follows:

o Sale of .CD television — The allocated revenue is recognized when the risks and
rewards are transferred to the buyer. These are recognized fully in the
consolidated statement of income as part of Sale of Goods.

o Rendering of services and other income from internet subscription — The allocated
revenue is initially recorded as Unearned Subscription Income under the
Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the time the internet connection is installed and is subsequently recognized
on a straight-line basis over the two-year contract period.

o Other income — The allocated revenue is initially recorded as Unearned
Subscription Income under the Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the time the cable connection is installed and
is subsequently recognized on a straight-line basis over the two-year contract

period.

Rentals — Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the
lease term (see Note 2.16).

Warranty and network support fee (shown as part of Rendering of Services) — Revenue from
warranty is recognized upon actual rendering of in-warranty and out-of-warranty
services to the customers. Revenue from network support is accrued monthly as
a percentage of sales made by Sony Philippines, Inc. (Sony). Effective April 2009,
network support fees is recorded at a fixed amount of P1.25 million per month.
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Sale of real estate — Revenues from sale of real estate is accounted for using the full
accrual method. Under this method, gross profit on sale is fully recognized when:
(a) the collectibility of the sales price is reasonably assured; (b) the earnings
process is virtually complete; and, (c) the seller does not have a substantial
continuing involvement with the subject properties. The collectibility of the sales
price is considered reasonably assured when: (a) the related loan documents have
been delivered to the banks: or (b) the full down payment comprising a substantial
portion (at least 25%) of the contract price is received and the capacity to pay and
credit worthiness of buyers have been reasonably established for sales under the
deferred cash payment arrangement.

Subsequent cancellations of prior years’ real estate sales are deducted from
revenues and costs of real estate sold in the year in which such cancellations are
made.

If the transaction does not yet qualify as sale, the deposit method is applied until
all conditions for recording the sale are met. Pending the recognition of sale,
payments received from buyers are presented under the Customers’ Deposits
account in the liabilities section of the consolidated statements of financial
position.

Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition
method applied. Cost of real estate property sold before completion of the
development is determined on the basis of the acquisition cost of the land plus its
full development costs, which include estimated costs for future development, as
determined by technical staff. The estimated future expenditures for the
development of the real estate property for sale are shown under the Estimated
Liability for Land and Land Development Costs account in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Interest income on loans receivables — Revenue is recognized when earned using
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down
as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.

Commission income (shown as part of Rendering of Services) — Revenue is recognized on
an accrual basis computed based on a certain percentage of sales.
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Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance — Revenue is recognized when the
increase in cash surrender value occurs and becomes determinable.

Service charges and penalties — Revenue is generally recognized on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided and when there is reasonable degree of
certainty as to their collectibility.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents — Revenue is recognized as the interest
accrues taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income upon
consumption of the goods and/or utilization of the setvice or at the date they are
incurred. Expenditure for warranties is recognized and charged against the associated
provision when the related revenue is recognized. All finance costs are reported in the
consolidated statement of income, except capitalized borrowing costs which are
included as part of the cost of the related qualifying asset (see Note 2.20), on an accrual

basis.

2.16 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(@)

(%)

Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and
insurance, are expensed as incurred.

Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from
operating leases is recognized in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

2.17 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

(@)

Transactions and Balances

The accounting records of the Group, except BRL and Fil-Dragon, are
maintained in Philippine peso. Foreign currency transactions during the period
are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates which approximate
those prevailing on transaction dates.
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Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income as part of income or loss from operations.

(b)  Translation of Financial Statements of Foreign Subsidiaries

The operating results and financial position of BRL and Fil-Dragon, which are
measured using the United States (U.S.) dollar and Chinese yuan renminbi (RMB),
respectively, their respective functional currencies, are translated to Philippine
peso, the Group’s functional currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

(ii) Income and expenses for each profit or loss account are translated at the
monthly average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and,

(iif) All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investments in BRL and Fil-Dragon are recognized in other comprehensive
income and taken to equity under Revaluation Reserves. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified in the consolidated statement of income as part of the gain or loss on
sale of the investment.

The translation of the financial statements into Philippine peso should not be
construed as a representation that the U.S. dollar and Chinese yuan RMB amounts
could be converted into Philippine peso amounts at the translation rates or at any
other rates of exchange.

2.18 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and other non-financial assets are subject
to impairment testing. All individual assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are
tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines
the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest
approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements.
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Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect
management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific
risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.

2.19 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit
plan, as well as a defined contribution plan.

(@)

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The
legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains
with the Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been
acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term
benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit
post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is
tax-qualified, noncontributory and administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for
post-employment defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs. The DBO is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the DBO is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using a discount
rate derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds as
published by the Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation, that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-employment

liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are not recognized as an income or expense unless the
total unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and
related plan assets. The amount exceeding this 10% corridor is charged or
credited to profit or loss over the employees’ expected average remaining working
lives. Actuarial gains and losses within the 10% corridor are disclosed separately.
Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the changes
to the post-employment plan are conditional on the employees remaining in
service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past
service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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(b)  Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into an independent entity (i.e., Social Security System).
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in respect
of defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets
may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included
in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short term nature.

(¢)  Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: (a) terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or (b) providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

(d)  Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They
are included in Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement.

2.20 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as
part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when
expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization
ceases when substantially all such activities are complete.

For income tax purposes, interest and other borrowing costs are charged to expense
when incurred.

2.21 Income Taxes
Tax expense recognized in the consolidated statement of income comprises the sum of

deferred tax and current tax not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, if any.
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Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or
unpaid at the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the consolidated statement of income.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on temporary differences, at the end
of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss. Only changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through
one or mote intermediaries, control or ate controlled by, or under common control
with the Group, (b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning directly or indirectly, an
interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the
Group and close members of the family of any such individual. In considering each
possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely on the legal form.
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2.23 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital (APIC) includes any premiums received on the initial issuance
of capital stock and equity adjustments on mergers and acquisitions of entities under
common control in previous years. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance
of shares are deducted from APIC, net of any related profit tax benefits.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiring such shares and are deducted from
equity attributable to the Group’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued
or disposed of.

Revaluation reserves comprise the cumulative translation adjustments and fair value
gains (losses) on AFS financial assets.

Retained earnings, the restricted portion of which is not available for dividend
declaration, represent all current and prior period results of operations as reported in
the profit and loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.24 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent company by the weighted average number of shares issued and
outstanding, adjusted retroactively for any stock dividends declared, stock split and
reverse stock split declared during the current period.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of potential dilutive shares. Currently, the Group does
not have potentially dilutive shares outstanding.

2.25 Events After the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s
consolidated financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not
adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS
require management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.
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3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(@)

)

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets

The determination when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired
requires significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost, and the financial health of and near-term business
outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows.
Based on the recent evaluation of information and circumstances affecting the
Group’s AFS financial assets, management concluded that certain assets were
impaired as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. Future changes in those
information and circumstance might significantly affect the carrying amount of
the assets.

Impairment losses recognized on AFS financial assets are disclosed in Note 9.
Determining Net Realizable 1V alue of Real Estate Inventories

The Group adjusts the cost of its real estate inventories to net realizable value
based on its assessment of the recoverability of the inventories. Net realizable
value for completed real estate inventories is assessed with reference to market
conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the
Group in the light of recent market transactions. Net realizable value in respect
of real estate inventories under construction is assessed with reference to market
prices at the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to
complete construction and less estimated costs to sell. The amount and timing of
recorded expenses for any period would differ if different judgments were made
or different estimates were utilized.

The carrying amounts of the real estate inventories is disclosed in Note 11.
Costing of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

The Group’s inventory costing policies and procedures were based on a careful
evaluation of present circumstances and facts affecting production operations. A
review of the benchmarks set by management necessary for the determination of
inventory costs and allocation is performed regularly. Actual data are compared
to the related benchmarks and critical judgment is exercised to assess the
reasonableness of the costing policies and procedures which are currently in place
and to make the necessary revisions in light of current conditions.
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Distinction Between Investment Property and Owner-managed Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In
making its judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied
properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the properties but
also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production and supply
of goods and services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portion cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment property. The Group
considers each property separately in making its judgment.

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Property

The Group’s investment property composed of parcels of land and buildings and
improvements are carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting period.
In determining the fair value of these assets, the Group engages the services of
professional and independent appraisers. The fair value is determined by
reference to market-based evidence, which is the amount for which the assets
could be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and seller in an arm’s
length transaction as at the valuation date. Such amount is influenced by different
factors including the location and specific characteristics of the property

(e.g., size, features, and capacity), quantity of comparable properties available in
the market, and economic condition and behavior of the buying parties.

A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the
assets. The amounts of revaluation and fair value gains recognized on investment
property are disclosed in Note 13.

Distinction Between Operating and Finance 1 eases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as either a lessor or lessee.
Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease
agreement as either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or
retention of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered
by the agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will result in either
overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities. Based on management
judgment, such leases were determined to be operating leases.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provision and contingencies are
discussed in Note 2.14 and the disclosures on relevant provisions and
contingencies are presented in Note 28.
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3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year:

(@)

)

()

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and groups
of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates
the amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and
circumstances affecting the collectability of the accounts, including, but not
limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customers, the
customers’ current credit status, average age of accounts, collection experience
and historical loss experience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of

financial instruments where active market quotes are not available. This requires
management to develop estimates and assumptions based on market inputs, using
observable data that market participants would use in pricing the instrument.
Where such data is not observable, management uses its best estimate. Estimated
fair values of financial instruments may vary from the actual prices that would be
achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

The carrying values of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial
assets and the amounts of fair value changes recognized during the years on those
assets are disclosed in Notes 8 and 9, respectively.

Determining Net Realizable Value of Merchandise Inventories and Supplies

In determining the net realizable value of merchandise inventories and supplies,
management takes into account the most reliable evidence available at the time the
estimates are made. The Group’s core business is continuously subject to rapid
technology changes which may cause inventory obsolescence. Moreover, future
realization of the carrying amounts of inventories is affected by price changes in
different market segments of electronic devices, plastic injection parts, broadcast
equipment and accessories (see Note 10). Both aspects are considered key
sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments to the
Group’s merchandise inventories and supplies within the next financial year.
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Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on
the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically
and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical/commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of
the assets. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are analyzed in
Note 12. Based on management’s assessment as at December 31, 2012, and 2011,
no change in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment during
those years occurred. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in
estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

Determining Net Realizable V' alue of Properties Under Develgpment

Management’s assessment of net realizable value of properties under development
requires the estimates of future cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates require judgment as to the anticipated sale prices by reference to
recent sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate sales) and the expected costs
to completion of properties, the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period
and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. The carrying value of deferred tax assets, which

management assessed may be fully utilized within the next two to five years, as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is disclosed in Note 23.2.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s policy on estimating the impairment of non-financial assets is
discussed in Note 2.18. Though management believes that the assumptions used
in the estimation of fair values reflected in the consolidated financial statements
are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

Based on management’s assessment, there were no impairment losses recognized
on other non-financial assets in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Estimating Liability for Land and Land Development Costs

The Group’s liability for land and development cost for future development is
determined by technical staff based on updated budgets and available information
and circumstances, as well as its previous experience. The amount of estimated
liability for land and development costs as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is
disclosed in Note 11.
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Estimating Reserve for Warranty Costs

The Group offers a one-year warranty for each consumer electronic product sold.
Management estimates the related provision for future warranty costs based on a
certain percentage of sales, as determined based on historical warranty claim
information as well as recent trends that might suggest that past cost information
may differ from expectations. Warranty costs also include the actual cost of
materials used in repairing the electronic products.

Provision for warranty claims recognized and the outstanding balance of Reserve
for Warranty Costs are discussed on Note 16.

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 22.2 and
include, among others, discount rates, expected return on plan assets and salary
increase rates. In accordance with PFRS; actual results that differ from the
assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future
periods.

The amounts of estimated present value of the retirement benefit obligation and
the analysis of the movements in the present value of retirement benefit
obligation are presented in Note 22.2.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

4.1 Business Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to
the nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The Group’s
different business segments are as follows:

(@)

(%)

()

Broadband services segment is presently engaged in providing data transport
services, including audio and video, and connectivity through its broadband cable
infrastructure;

Related support services segment is engaged in the business of rendering after
sales service operations as the recognized authorized Service Network for

products of a third party and in manufacturing plastic injection molding parts
(see Notes 1.2 and 5);

Real estate segment is involved in the leasing and development and sale of
industrial and other real estate properties;
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(d)  Distribution segment is involved in the sale of professional audio and video
equipment and peripherals, mobile phones and LCD televisions, and prefabricated
modular houses; and,

(¢)  Investing, financing and others segment is presently engaged in the business of
fund investments, automotive and consumer financing and credit extension.

Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 2.4.
4.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by each business segment and consist
principally of operating cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and
equipment, net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities include all operating
liabilities and consist principally of accounts, wages, taxes currently payable and accrued
liabilities.

4.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between
business segments, which are eliminated in the consolidation.

The following tables present certain assets and liability information regarding business
segments as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and the related revenue and profit
information for the years then ended (in thousands).

Investing,
Broadband Related Financing
Services Support Services Real Estate Distribution and Others Total
2012
SEGMENT RESULTS
Sales to external customers P 247416 P 344984 P 258,611 P 3,956,743 P 82,629 P 4,890,383
Intersegment sales 51 38,926 14,200 6,300 1,813 61,290
Total revenues 247,467 383,910 272,811 3,963,043 84,442 4,951,673
Cost of sales, services and rentals 205,968 268,954 106,973 3,094,531 - 3,676,426
Other operating expense 42,375 81,831 117,873 496,634 45,191 783,904
Operating profit ( 876) 33,125 47,965 371,878 39,251 491,343
Finance income 112,427 6,006 39,531 2,389 3,349 163,702
Finance costs ( 1,359) ( 4228) ( 5,169) ( 22,742) ( 15,591) ( 49,089)
Other gains — net 644,488 4,541 228,820 5,292 28,708 911,849
Profit before tax 754,680 39,444 311,147 356,817 55,717 1,517,805
Tax expense 60,823 4713 93,545 105,069 11,916 276,066
Profit — continuing operation 693,857 34,731 217,602 251,748 43,801 1,241,739
Loss — discontinued operation - - - - - -
Net profit for the year P 693,857 P 34,731 P 217,602 P 251,748 P 43,801 P 1,241,739
SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
Total assets ) 800,191 P 569,479 P 7,373,405 P 1,866,902 P 9,780,530 P 20,390,507
Total liabilities )l 15,843 P 120,935 P 3,961,994 P 1,246,501 P 431,724 P 5,776,997
OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Capital expenditures P 27,605 P 26,761 P 84,602 P 9234 P 317 P 148,519
Depreciation and amortization 20,492 9,645 11,768 4,162 642 46,709
Impairment losses - 3,087 - 9,414 267 12,768

Other non-cash expenses 123 904 1,431 1,982 - 4,440
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Investing,
Broadband Related Financing
Services Support Services Real Estate Distribution and Others Total
2011
SEGMENT RESULTS
Sales to external customers P 375,330 P 340,653 P 261,951 P 3,122,839 P 48717 P 4,149,490
Intersegment sales 2,047 32977 33,148 7,657 21,432 97,261
Total revenues 377,377 373,630 295,099 3,130,496 70,149 4,246,751
Cost of sales, services and rentals 258,234 247,843 162,802 2,530,457 - 3,199,336
Other operating expense 59,380 98,721 113,664 421,751 44,538 738,054
Operating profit 59,763 27,066 18,633 178,288 25,611 309,361
Finance income 2,387 19,612 43,300 17,449 - 82,748
Finance costs ( 17,033) ( 4625) ( 761) ( 8,622) ( 34568) ( 65,609)
Other gains — net 4,649 14,902 226,519 3.462 22,688 272,220
Profit before tax 49,766 56,955 287,691 190,577 13,731 508,720
Tax expense ( 8168) ( 6.256) (. 88,903) (. 31,142) ( 4.895) ( 139.364)
Profit — continuing operation 41,598 50,699 198,788 159,435 8,836 459,356
Loss — discontinued operation - ( 3,864) - - ( 3,864)
Net profit for the year P 41,598 P 46,835 P 198,788 P 159,435 P 8,836 P 455,49,
SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
Total assets P 667,320 P 815,191 P 6959481 P 2,202,425 P 8,683,126 P 19,327,543
Total liabilities P 567,828 P 680,818 P 3,392,086 P 1,790,326 P 606,576 P 7,046,634
OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Capital expenditures P 6599 P 12704 P 17787 P 7559 P 1400 P 105,449
Depreciation and amortization 54,854 9,873 9,515 2,688 397 77,327
Impairment losses 16,168 - - 3,430 - 19,598
Other non-cash expenses - 28,255 1,238 48,582 735 78,810
Investing,
Broadband Related Financing
Services Support Services Real Estate Distribution and Others Total
2010
SEGMENT RESULTS
Sales to external customers P 390,869 P 305,540 P 332299 P 1,616,784 P 64,286 P 2,709,778
Intersegment sales - 5471 34,133 28,321 15,386 83,311
Total revenues 390,869 311,011 366,432 1,645,105 79,672 2,793,089
Cost of sales, services and rentals 260,188 226,555 211,763 1,219,577 - 1,018,083
Other operating expense 38,697 20,929 92,545 316,101 23,046 491,318
Operating profit 91,984 63,527 62,124 109,427 56,626 383,688
Finance income 4,333 7,924 22,858 2,713 9,057 46,885
Finance costs ( 2,625) ( 1194) ( 10,138) ( 13.984) ( 57458) ( 85,399)
Other gains (losses) — net - - 18,292 21 ( 2,330) 15,983
Profit before tax 93,692 70,257 93,136 98,177 5,895 361,157
Tax expense ( 21,457) ( 12,842) ( 27,112) (. 52,142) ( 9,098) ( 122,651)
Profit — continuing operation 72,235 57415 66,024 46,035 ( 3,203) 238,506
Loss — discontinued operation - ( 17,061) - - - ( 17,061)
Net profit (loss) for the year P 72235 P 40,354 P 66,024 P 46,035 (P 3,203) P 221,445
SEGMENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
Total assets P 762,404 P 830,225 P 6,345,462 P 1,787,307 P 8145375 P 17,870,773
Total liabilities P 211,242 P 215015 P 2,340,528 P 1,562,209 P 642,037 P 4,971,031
OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION
Capital expenditures P 42427 P 7,700 P P 2,037 P 393 P 56,611
Depreciation and amortization 49,307 11,553 9,826 155 76,192
Impairment losses 32,015 - - 10,909 - 42,924
Other non-cash expenses - - ( - - ( 5,631)




The total segment balances presented for the Group’s operating segments reconciled to
the Group’s consolidated balances as presented in the consolidated financial statements

are as follows (in thousands):

2012
Revenues
Net profit for the year
Total assets
Total liabilities
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment losses

Other non-cash expenses

2011
Revenues
Net profit for the year
Total assets
Total liabilities
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment losses

Other non-cash expenses

2010
Revenues
Net profit for the year
Total assets
Total liabilities
Other segment information:
Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment losses

Other non-cash expenses

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As mentioned in Note 1.2, Kita and SLC (now OSSI — see Note 1.1) ceased the

Intercompany Consolidated
Accounts Balances

® 61,290) 4,890,383
( 97) 1,241,642
( 7,542,415) 12,848,092
( 2,600,694) 3,176,303
317 148,836

242) 46,467

- 12,768

- 4,440

( 97,261) 4,149,490
( 25,196) 430,296
( 7,610,860) 11,716,683
( 3,880,434) 3,160,200
663 106,112

846 78,173

20,544 40,142

35,852) 42,958

83,311) 2,709,778

5,258 226,703

7,228,327) 10,642,446
2,440,533) 2,530,498
190 56,801

603) 75,589

- 42,924

- 5,631)

operations of their plastic injection manufacturing business as of December 31, 2010.
Termination benefits paid to employees who accepted voluntary redundancy amounted

to P0.8 million in 2011 and P1.1 million in 2010 (see Note 22.1). The results of
operations of the discontinued operations of the Group pertaining to the plastic
injection manufacturing division are presented in the 2011 and 2010 consolidated

statements of income under the Loss from Discontinued Operations account. There
wete no revenues generated and costs and expenses incurred in 2012 from the Group’s

discontinued operations.
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Machinery and equipment related to the discontinued operations of Kita are still
presented as part of Property, Plant and Equipment account as of December 31, 2010
as the assets’ carrying values as of that date are not material (see Note 12). Machinery
and equipment relating to the discontinued operations of Kita with total cost amounting
to P25.2 million and a total carrying value of P0.2 were sold in 2011 at P1.5 million and
fully-depreciated machinery and equipment with total cost of P25.1 million was sold in
2010. In 2010, fully depreciated machinery and equipment with a total cost amounting
to P25.1 million were sold. The resulting gains from the disposals are presented as part
of Miscellaneous under Other Operating Income in the consolidated statements of
income (see Note 19).

In prior years, certain machinery and equipment of SLC (now OSSI — see Note 1.1)
with total carrying amounts of P12.1 million are classified as Non-current Assets Held
for Sale. These were subsequently sold to third parties for P9.7 million in June 2010.
At the time of sale, the assets had a carrying value of P9.2 million. The resulting gain
related to the sale of these assets is presented as part of Miscellaneous under Other
Operating Income in the 2010 consolidated statement of income (see Note 19).

The analysis of the revenue, expenses and tax expense of the discontinued operations
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are shown below.

Notes 2011 2010
Sale of goods P 4,047,684 P 19,912,861
Cost of sales 18.1 ( 14,307,547) ( 31,736,150)
Gross loss ( 10.259.863) ( 11.823.289)
Other operating income (expenses):
General and administrative
expenses 20 ( 385,540) ( 9,271,158)
Selling and distribution costs 20 ( 671,435) ( 413,308)
Other operating income 19 8,353,416 2,823,829
7,296,441 ( 6,860,637)
Other income (charges):
Finance income 211 84,448 2,891,714
Finance costs 21.2 ( 636,010) ( 653,326)
( 551,562) 2,238,388
Loss before tax ( 3,514,984) ( 16,445,538)
Tax expense 23.2 ( 348,839) ( 615,115)

Loss from discontinued operations ® 3,863,823) (P 17,060,653)




-37 -

The net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activities of
continuing and discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 are shown below.

2011
Continuing Discontinued Total
Net Cash From Operating Activities P 354,066,628 P 4,355,587 P 358,422,215
Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities  ( 38,042,351) 284,513 ( 37,757,838)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities ( 211,230,466) ( 7,076,714) ( 218,307,180)
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate
Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents ( 1,723,719) 116 ( 1,723,603)
Net increase (decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents 103,070,092 ( 2,436,498) 100,633,594
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,618,111,420 2,003,048 1,620,114,468
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P 1,721,181,512 (P 433,450) P 1,720,748,062
2010
__ Continuing  _ Discontinued =~ __ Total

Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities (P 64,190,106) P 21,911,041 (P 42,279,065)

Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities  ( 26,686,111) 3,033,588 ( 23,652,523)
Net Cash From (Used in) Financing Activities 444,169,750 ( 20,146,036) 424,023,714
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate

Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents ( 1,119,803) - ( 1,119.803)
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents 352,173,030 4,798,593 356,972,323
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,248,783,034 14,359,111 1,263,142,145
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year P 1,600,956,764 P 19,157,704 P 1,620,114.468

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

2012 2011
Cash on hand and in bank P 274,888,192 P 396,965,149
Short-term placements 2,745,096,021 1323782913

P3,019,984,213 P 1,720,748,062

Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short-term placements are made for varying periods of between 1 to 90 days and earn
annual effective interest ranging from 0.8% to 4.7% in 2012 and 0.5% to 6.0% in 2011.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2012 2011

Current:
Trade receivables 27.2 P 980,564,213 P 759,929,905
Advances to suppliers 26.6 223,559,332 277,211,254
Loans receivables 26.4, 26.7 45,836,453 64,831,149
Due from related parties 26.1, 26.6 2,734,223 75,770,473
Other receivables 66,287,945 76,425,196
1,318,982,166 1,254,167,977
Allowance for impairment ( 31,512,861) ( 117,015,673)

1,287,469,305 1,137,152,304

Non-current:
Trade receivables 26,168,353 47,852,284
Loans receivables 26.4, 26.7 145,381,293 151,801,578
Cash surrender value of
investment in
life insurance 14 458,908,456 470,231.669
630,458,102 669,885,531

P1,917,927,407 P 1,807,037,835

Trade receivables include amounts due from the Group’s real estate buyers arising from
the sale of industrial lots and condominium units. The title to the real estate properties
remain with the Group until such time that the Group fully collects its receivables from
the real estate buyers. Trade receivables from sale of condominium units are measured
at amortized cost and bear effective interests ranging from 9.8% to 18.0% depending on
the terms of payment.

Advances to suppliers mainly pertain to the advance payments received by Solid Trading
Limited (STL) for My Solid’s future purchase of inventories (see Note 26.6), various
contractors for the construction of ZTC’s Tti Towers (see Note 11) and various suppliers
for CBHI’s acquisition of supplies.

Interest rates on loans receivables range from 5.0% to 30.0% in 2012 and 2011. Certain
finance receivables are secured by real estate properties and shares of stock of the
borrowing companies which are owned by a related party (see Note 26.4).

Cash surrender value of investment in life insurance pertains to insurance policies
purchased by BRL for certain directors of the Parent Company. The investment in life
insurance is accounted for under the cash surrender value method. Under this method,
the initial cash surrender value of the insurance policies is recognized immediately in the
consolidated statements of income (see Note 19.1). The difference between the initial
cash surrender value and the premiums paid amounting to P1.2 million in 2012 and
P5.3 million in 2011 represents insurance service fees which are recorded as Prepaid
insurance under the Other Non-current Assets account and is amortized over a period
of ten years (see Note 14).

The cash surrender value of the investment in life insurance is used as collateral for
interest-bearing loans obtained by BRL (see Note 15).
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Other receivables consist primarily of unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash advances
made to the ZTC’s Unit Owners’ Association for expenses incurred by the Unit
Owners, interest receivable, rental receivable and income tax recoverable.

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which are mostly due from small
business customers, were found to be impaired, hence, adequate amount of allowance
for impairment has been recognized.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at beginning and end of 2012 and
2011 is shown below.

Note 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 117,015,673 P 129,657,216
Impairment losses during
the year 21.2 12,767,663 21,145,641

Reversals of impairment losses 21.1 (  75,708,696) ( 17,014,1406)
Write-off of receivables
previously provided with

allowance ( 22,561,779) ( 16.773.038)
Balance at end of year P 31512,861 P 117,015,673

The net carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are considered a reasonable
approximation of their fair values (see Note 30.1).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

In 2011, BRL acquired additional investments which are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL upon initial recognition, while Fil-Dragon’s investments are primarily held for
trading. In 2012, BRL and Fil-Dragon disposed of all of their investments classified as
tinancial assets at FVTPL.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at FVTPL as of December 31, 2011 are
presented as follows:

Designated as at FVTPL P 63,846,668
Held-for-trading 6,426,323
P 70,272,991

This account consists of the following financial assets as of December 31, 2011:

Debt securities P 60,382,332
Equity securities 9,890,659
P 70,272,991

Debt securities pertain to investments in corporate bonds with interest rates ranging
from 5.3% to 12.0% in 2011. On the other hand, equity securities pertain to shares of
entities listed in China, Hong Kong and the United States. The fair values of financial
assets presented above have been determined directly by reference to published prices
quoted in active markets.



-40-

In 2011, the Group recognized the decline in value of financial assets at FVTPL of
P5.9 million. The loss is presented as part of Finance Costs in the 2011 consolidated
statement of income (see Note 21.2).

The disposals of financial assets at FVTPL resulted to a gain of P8.6 million in 2012
which is presented as part of Gain from sale of financial assets — net shown under
Finance Income in the 2012 consolidated statement of income (see Note 21.1). There
were no disposals of financial assets at FVIPL in 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, BRL’s foreign debt securities are used as collateral for
interest-bearing loans obtained by BRL (see Note 15).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

This account comprises the following AFS financial assets:

2012 2011
Current:
Investments in foreign
currency-denominated bonds P 52,237,573 P 60,204,848
Allowance for impairment ( 52,237,573) ( 52,653,225)
- 51,994,367
Non-current:
Club shates 10,292,400 8,832,400
Equity securities 8,580,000 8,580,000
Others 634,127 1,474,118
19,506,527 18,886,518
Allowance for impairment ( 10,430,000) ( 11,004,991)
9,076,527 7,881,527

P __ 9,076,527 P 59,875,894

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2012 and
2011 is show below.

Note 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 63,658,216 P 44,662,329
Provision (reversal) of
impairment losses 21.1,21.2  ( 990,643) 18,995,887

Balance at end of year P 62,667,573 P 63,658,216
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of AFS financial assets is shown below.

Notes 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year P 59,875,894 P 150,712,680
Disposals ( 50,636,180) ( 60,776,293)
Reversal (provision) of

impairment loss

during the year 21.1,21.2 990,643 ( 18,995,887)
Fair value losses — net 24.3 ( 1,153,830) ( 11.064.6006)
Balance at end of year P 9,076,527 P 59,875,894

Investments in foreign currency-denominated bonds were used as collateral for the
interest-bearing loans of BRL (see Note 15).

Investment in equity securities pertains to the Parent Company’s 33% ownership
interest in the common stock of Sony Philippines, Inc. (SPI). The Joint Venture
Agreement (JVA) executed in 1997 with Sony Corporation of Japan covering the
Parent Company’s investment in SPI expired on May 8, 2005 on which the Parent
Company received a formal notice of the expiry of the JVA on April 11, 2005. The
Parent Company and Sony Corporation have both agreed to pursue negotiations for an
equitable settlement of all matters relating to the JVA and its expiration. As a result of
these events, the Parent Company determined that it no longer has significant influence
over the investee company. Consequently, in 2005, the Parent Company reclassified its
remaining investment in shares of stock of SPI with total cost of P8.6 million to

AFS Financial Assets. The Parent Company’s investment in SPI is fully provided with
allowance for impairment loss as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Impairment losses recognized on the Group’s AFS Financial Assets are presented
as part of Finance Costs in the 2011 and 2010 consolidated statements of income
(see Note 21.2).

The fair values of the Group’s investments in club shares, which represents proprietary
membership club shares, as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 have been
determined directly by reference to published prices in active markets (see Note 30).

MERCHANDISE INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

The details of this account are shown below (see Note 18.1).

2012 2011
Merchandise and finished goods P 406,495,008 P 621,292,896
Raw materials 362,856 362,856
Service parts, supplies and others 26,589,434 46,719,660
433,447,298 668,375,412
Allowance for inventory obsolescence ( 41,584,410) (__ 103,832,347)

Balance at end of year P 391,862,888 P 564,543,065
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The movements in allowance for inventory obsolescence are as follows:

Note 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 103,832,347 P 89,909,514
Reversal of allowance for
inventory obsolescence 18.1 ( 65,257,144) ( 7,486,361)
Loss on inventory obsolescence 18.1 3,009,207 34,790,640
Write-off of inventory previously
provided with allowance - ( 13,381.,446)

P 41,584,410 P 103,832,347

In 2012, SBC reversed the allowance for obsolescence on materials and supplies
inventories obsolescence amounting to P13.3 million following the sale of those
inventories to a third party (see Note 1.2). The gain on reversal of allowance for
inventory obsolescence is separately recorded as part of Other Gains under Other
Income in the 2012 consolidated statement of income (see Notes 19.2 and 27.3).

SLC and Kita’s inventory write-down with no previous allowance for inventory
obsolescence amounted to P1.7 million and P7.6 million in 2011, respectively, and is
presented as Loss on inventory obsolescence on discontinued operations under Cost of
Sales in the 2011 consolidated statement of income (see Note 18.1).

The Group has not entered into any purchase commitment in the acquisition of its
merchandise inventories and supplies in 2012 and 2011.

REAL ESTATE INVENTORIES

This account is composed of:

2012 2011

Land and land development costs:
Land P 9,725,593 P 36,112,467
Land development costs 17,695,475 17,883,041
27,421,068 53,995,508
Allowance for impairment ( 2,022,800) ( 2,022,800)
25,398,268 51,972,708

Property development costs —
Construction in progress

and development costs 1,985,667,173 1,623,808,064

P2,011,065,441 P 1,675,780,772

Land and land development costs pertain to cost of land and related improvements,
held by Starworld and LIIP, which are held for sale. Property development costs
pertain to cost of land used as a building site and the accumulated construction costs of
the condominium building project being developed by ZTC and Fil-Dragon which are
also for sale.
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Borrowing costs incurred from loans availed by Fil-Dragon were capitalized as part of
its Property development costs. Borrowing cost incurred in 2012 and 2011 relating to
these loans amounted to RMB5.0 million (P32.9 million) and RMB1.5 million

(P9.7 million) respectively, and are capitalized as part of Real Estate Inventories

(see Notes 15 and 20.8).

The allowance for impairment recognized in 2005 pertains to the estimated cost of
parcels of land and land development costs which may not be fully realized as a result of
the Group’s long-outstanding claims against the seller for the transfer of title to the
name of LIIP. There were no additional impairment losses recognized since then.

Under its registration with the Board of Investments, Starworld shall develop
118 hectares of land in its development project located in Calamba Premiere
International Park (CPIP) in Bo. Prinza, Calamba City, Laguna. As of
December 31, 2012, lot areas totalling 83 hectares (65 hectares for Phase 1 and
18 hectares for Phase 2) were acquired and fully developed.

The Group, through ZTC, has initiated the planning and construction of the

Tri Towers condominium building. The construction was started by SMC in 2005.

The accumulated construction costs (including cost of the land) were eventually
transferred to ZTC. The construction of Tower 1 and Tower 2 was completed in
completed in 2008 and 2012, respectively, while the construction of Tower 3 has not yet
started as of December 31, 2012.

In addition, the balances of Property Development Costs as of December 31, 2012 and
2011 include costs incurred in the construction of the Group’s Golden Hill Project
through Fil-Dragon (see Note 28.7). The Golden Hill Project involves the development
of multi-storey residential and commercial condominium units within the ASEAN
Commercial Park in Nanning City, Guangxi Province, PRC. In 2010, Fil-Dragon has
obtained sales permit for selling the property from the local government of the PRC.
Customer deposits received as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounting to

P840.1 million and P686.3 million, respectively, are shown as part of Customers’
Deposits in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Fil-Dragon’s right to use the land, included as part of the Property Development Costs
account, with a carrying amount of RMB15.2 million (P103.3 million) as of

December 31, 2010, was pledged as collateral for interest-bearing loans obtained by
Fil-Dragon in 2009. The interest-bearing loans were paid in full in 2011 (see Note 15).

There were no movements in the Estimated Liability for Land and Land Development
Costs account in 2012 and 2011 which was established for the fulfilment of Starworld’s
projects in the development and marketing of CPIP (see Note 28.4).
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and
end of 2012 and 2011 are shown below.

Furniture, Test,
Machinery Fixtures Communication
Buildings and and and Office Transportation Cable System and Other Comp L hold Tools and Construction
Land Improvements Equi] Equi Equi] Equi Equi System I Equi in Progress Total
December 31, 2012
Cost P 897,854,682 P 38,195,726 P 29,916,266 p 136,048,761 P 83,554,950 P - P 8525595 P 7,003,937 P 50,148,179 P 24,551,023 P 57,155,448 P 1,332,954,567
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization - ( 24,749,504) ( 14,305,764) ( 116,881,738) ( 62,694,698) - ( 6,717,422) ( 5,694.879) ( 33,536,071) ( 19,966,657) - ( 284,546,733)
Net carrying amount P 897,854,682 P 13,446,222 P 15,610,502 P 19,167,023 P 20,860,252 P - P 1,808,173 P 1,309,058 P 16,612,108 P 4,584,366 P 57,155,448 P 1,048,407,834
December 31, 2011
Cost P 897,854,682 P 107,157,571 P 30,124,265 P 132,342,425 P 94,388,131 P 1,337,286,751 P 153,787,380 P 68,446,028 P 56,557,182 P 25,169,630 P - P 2903,114,045
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization - ( 64,546,364) ( 24,762,932) ( 115,711,989)  ( 76,436,056) ( 621,928,012) ( 96,970,837) ( 65,369,216) ( 45,470,846) ( 19,982,984) - ( 1,131,179,236)
Accumulated
impairment loss - ( 35,000,000) - - - ( 350,000,000) - - - - - ( 385,000,000)
Net carrying amount P 897,854,682 P 611,20 i 5,361,333 P 16,630,436 P 17,952,075 P 365,358,739 P 56,816,543 P 3,076,81 P 11,086,336 P 5,186,646 P - P 1,386,934,809
January 1, 2011
Cost P 897,854,682 P 227,896,093 P 54,731,671 P 126,509,662 P 86,920,710 P 1,281,118,081 P 145,693,981 P 66,396,464 P 46,690,676 P 18,292,269 P 1,090,679 P 2953,194,968
Accumulated
depreciation and
amortization - ( 153,016,433) ( 48,742,034) ( 109,698,115) ( 70,628,188) ( 578,531,307) ( 88,187,124) ( 63,558,745) ( 42,916,185) ( 16,047,865) - ( 1,171,325,996)
Accumulated
impairment loss - ( 35,000,000) - - - ( 350,000,000) - - - - - ( 385,000,000)

Net carrying amount P 897,854,682 P 39,879,660 P 5,989,637 P 16,811,547 P 16,292,522 P 352,586,774 P 57,506,857 P 2,837,719 P 3774491 P 2244404 P 1,090,679 P 1,396,868,972




A reconciliation of the carrying amounts

Balance at January 1, 2012,
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Additions

Reclassification

Disposals

Reversal of impairment loss

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2012
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Balance at January 1, 2011,
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss

Additions

Reclassification

Disposals

Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year

Balance at December 31, 2011
net of accumulated
depreciation, amortization
and impairment loss
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at the beginning and end of 2012 and 2011 of property, plant and equipment is shown below.

Furniture, Test,
Machinery Fixtures Communication
Buildings and and and Office Transportation Cable System and Other Comp hold Tools and Construction
Land Impro Equi Equi i Equi Equi System i in Progress Total
P 897,854,682 P 7,611,207 P 5361333 P 16,630,436 P 17,952,075 P 365,358,739 P 56,816,543 P 3,076,812 P 11,086,336 P 5,186,646 P - 1,386,934,809
- 6,321,232 12,903,587 14,677,574 12,142,765 27,343,618 1,023,283 574,747 7,734,842 723,925 60,236,560 143,682,133
- - ( 538,936) - - - 538,936 - 2,346,898 734,214 ( 3,081,112) -
- - - ( 1,382,405) ( 3,803,270) ( 726,059,448) ( 52,820,340) ( 1,291,636) ( 384,789) - - ( 785,741,888)
- - - - - 350,000,000 - - - - - 350,000,000
- ( 486,217) ( 2,115482) ( 10,758,582) ( 5431,318) ( 16,642,909) ( 3,750,249) ( 1,050,865) (. 4171,179)  ( 2,060,419) ( 46,467,220)
P 897854682 P 13446222 P 15610502 P 19167023 P 20860252 P - P 1808173 P 1309058 P 16612108 P 4584366 P 57155448 P 1,048,407,834
P 897,854,682 P 39,879,660 P 5,989,637 P 16,811,547 P 16,292,522 P 352,586,774 P 57,506,857 P 2,837,719 P 3774491 P 2,244,404 P 1,090,679 P 1,396,868,972
- - 608,599 9,247,361 10,489,417 56,168,670 8,343,400 2,026,701 8,818,446 3,481,703 - 99,184,297
- 30,319,357) - - - - - - 1,043,912 1,039,567 1,090,679) ( 29,326,557)
- - ( 152,380) ( 17,678) ( 1,448,595) - - - - - - ( 1,618,653)
- 1,949,096) ( 1,084,523) ( 9,410,794) ( 7,381,269) ( 43,396,705) ( 9,033,714) 1,787,608) ( 2,550,513) ( 1,579,028) - ( 78,173,250)
P 897,854,682 P 7,611,207 P 5,361,333 P 16,630,436 P 17,952,075 P 365,358,739 P 56,816,543 P 3,076,812 P 11,086,336 P 5,186,646 P - P 1,386,934,809
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In 2012, construction in progress pertains to the ongoing construction of a hotel of SMC to
be named Green Sun Hotel. Also, the costs incurred for the acquisition of furniture and
fixtures and machinery and equipment which are not yet available for use and the on-going
improvements are recorded as construction in progress.

Also in 2012, SBC reversed the allowance for impairment provided against its cable system,
following the sale of its assets used in business operations (see Note 1.3). The reversal
amounted to P350.0 million and is presented as part of Other Operating Income in the 2012
consolidated statement of income (see Note 19.1).

No additional impairment losses were recognized in 2012, 2011 and 2010 based on
management’s assessment. Based on a recent report of independent appraisers as of
December 31, 2012, the fair values of the Group’s land and building and improvements
amounted to P203.5 million.

The amount of depreciation and amortization computed on property, plant and equipment is
presented as follows:

Notes 2012 2011 2010
Cost of services 18.2 P 29405353 P 63913,859 P 61,817,018
Cost of rentals 3,428,898 4,119,796 -
General and administrative
expenses 13,632,969 9,439,774 10,438,234
Discontinued operations - 699,821 3,333,724

20 P 46,467,220 P 78173250 P 75,588,976

There were no restrictions on titles and items of property, plant and equipment since there
were no items of property, plant and equipment pledged as security as of December 31, 2012
and 2011.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use in the Group’s operations
amounted to P109.9 million and P106.4 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group’s investment property, which are accounted for under the fair value method,
consists mainly of land and improvements, and buildings and improvements under operating
lease agreements. These properties earn rental income, presented as Rentals in the
consolidated statements of income. Direct costs such as real property taxes, repairs and
maintenance and utilities are presented as part of Cost of Rentals in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 18.3).

The fair values of the Group’s investment property as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
were determined based on appraisal reports dated February 5, 2013, February 29, 2012 and
January 4, 2011, respectively. Management obtains annual appraisal reports on its investment
property from independent appraisers.
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The changes in the carrying amounts of investment property as presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position can be summarized as follows as of December 31:

Land and Buildings and
Improvements Improvements Total

2012:
Balance at beginning of year P 3,047,677,774 P 816,650,012 P 3,804,333,786
Fair value gains (losses) on

investment property — net 242,054,661  ( 92,485,479) 149,569,182
Additions - 5,153,524 5,153,524
Reclassification ( 1,615,386) - ( 1,615,386)
Balance at end of year P 3,288,117,049 P 729,324,057 P 17,441,1

2011:
Balance at beginning of year P 2,885,328,774 P 761,189,863 P 3,646,518,637
Fair value gains on

investment property 171,420,000 20,224,597 191,644,597
Additions - 6,927,455 6,927,455
Disposals ( 9,071,000) - ( 9,071,000)
Reclassification - 28,314,097 28,314,097
Balance at end of year P 3,047,677,774 P 816,656,012 P 3,864,333,786

Certain real estate properties owned by SMC are subject to litigations brought up by third
parties against the subsidiary (see Notes 14 and 28.3).

In 2012, the Company transferred land in Pamaldan City with carrying amount of
P1.6 million as of December 31, 2012 to Other Non-current Assets.

In 2010, SMC entered into a contract to sell three parcels of land to a customer under an
installment sales scheme. The contract price of the land amounting to P30.0 million,
inclusive of VAT, is payable within 29 months. SMC recorded the collections from customer
in 2010 as Advances from customers as part of Trade and Other Payables in the 2010
consolidated statement of financial position. In 2011, the land was transferred and the
corresponding gain was recognized. The carrying value of the land on the date of disposal is
P9.1 million. Consequently, the Group recognized gain amounting to P17.8 million, which is
presented as part of Other Gains in the 2011 consolidated statement of income

(see Note 19.2).
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14. OTHER ASSETS

The composition of these accounts as of December 31 is shown below.

Notes 2012 2011
Current:

Input VAT - net P 73,056,951 P 92,707,110
Creditable withholding taxes 50,378,018 71,855,887
Prepaid business taxes 61,116,160 45,676,769
Other prepayments 16,103,292 18,321,656

Advances to suppliers and
contractors 33,632,728 27,879,694
Refundable deposits 10,988,982 3,368,991
Restricted cash 5,141,100 5,092,329
Others 1,744,128 2,294 489
252,161,359 267,196,925

Non-current:

Refundable deposits - net 10,765,679 9,836,045
Prepaid insurance 7 1,225,956 5,294,251
Land under litigation 28.3 4,935,606 3,258,220
Investment in shares 1,375,290 1,303,591
Cash bond 568,234 568,234
Others 3,360,939 1,890,731
22,231,704 22,151,072

P 274,393,063 P 289,347,997

Restricted cash pertains to bank deposits pledged by Fil-Dragon as security in favor of banks
and financial institutions in the PRC which provided mortgage loan to purchasers of
properties. Such charges would be released when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. This deposit earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Other prepayments consist mainly of prepaid insurance and rent.

15. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS

Short-term interest-bearing loans and borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are
broken down as follows:

2012 2011
USD RMB PHP UsD RMB PHP
BRL $ 5155223 ¥ - P 212,353,946 § 8,544,563 ¥ - P 375345563
Fil-Dragon - 54,396,030 359,312,976 - 58,143,006 404,053,192
$ 5,155,223 ¥ 54,396,030 P_ 571,666,922 $ 8,544,563 ¥ 58,143,006 P__779,398,755

The Group’s short-term interest-bearing loans as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounting
to P571.7 million and P779.4 million, respectively, are denominated in U.S. Dollar and
Chinese yuan renminbi, and are currently due within 12 months after the end of reporting
period; hence classified as part of the Group’s current liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position.



-49-

Information relating to significant loan transaction of the Group are as follows:
(a) Loans of BRL

The loans of BRL are secured by investment in cash surrender value of investment in
life insurance (see Note 7). The loans were also secured by the outstanding investments
in foreign currency-denominated bonds as of December 31, 2011 (see Notes 8 and 9).
The loans bear interest at prevailing market rates per annum ranging from 2.0% to 2.3%
in 2012 and 2011. Interest expense arising from these loans amounted to P6.0 million
and P8.0 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively, and is presented as part of Finance
Costs in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 21.2).

In 2012, BRL extended the terms of various loans it obtained from Bank of Singapore.
The loans are extended for one year up to June 30, 2013.

(b) 2011 Loans of Fil-Dragon

In 2011, Fil-Dragon obtained loans denominated in Chinese yuan renminbi from
companies that are owned by Solid Company Limited (SCL), a shareholder owning
19% of the total shares of Fil-Dragon. Outstanding balance from the loan amounted to
RMB54.4 million (P359.3 million) and RMB58.1 million (P404.1 million) as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The loans bear interest at prevailing market
rates per annum ranging from 6.0% to 10.0% in 2012 and 2011. Borrowing cost
incurred in 2012 and 2011 relating to these loans amounted to RMB5.0 million

(P32.9 million) and RMB1.5 million (P9.7 million) respectively, and are capitalized as
part of Real Estate Inventories (see Notes 11 and 26.8).

(¢) 2009 Loans of Fil-Dragon

In 2009, Fil-Dragon obtained a secured, two-year interest-bearing loan denominated in
Chinese yuan renminbi from a local bank in the PRC amounting to RMB92.9 million
(P615.7 million). The loans were secured by Fil-Dragon’s property development cost
amounting to RMB15.2 million (P103.3 million) as of December 31, 2010. The loan was
paid in full in 2011. Total borrowing costs incurred from these interest-bearing loans
amounted RMBG6.4 million (P43.2 million) in 2011 were capitalized as part of Real Estate
Inventories at capitalization rates ranging from 6% to 10% (see Note 11).

Further, certain related parties of the Group entered into a guarantee contract with the
creditor bank whereby the related parties guarantee that the principal amount and related
interests will be paid as the payments fall due (see Note 26.9). None of the companies
under the Group, including the Parent Company, are included in the guarantee contract.

The fair value of loans obtained approximates the carrying values since the interest rates are
repriced at market rates at the end of the reporting period (see Note 30.1). As of
December 31, 2012, the Group is not subjected to any covenants relating to the above loans.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

Notes 2012 2011
Trade payables 26.6 P 335,534,348 P 304,917,931
Output VAT 48,843,309 37,328,219
Accrued dealers’ incentives 24,375,822 12,364,027
Collection due to STL 26.6 18,706,344 2,331,894
Unearned subscription income 18,143,581 9,167,511
Rental payable 17,671,797 17,354,928
Refundable deposits 17 16,181,595 24,769,241
Retention payable 16,061,269 4,872,185
Reserve for warranty costs 14,545,332 18,354,383
Accrued municipal taxes 14,357,151 8,673,969
Advances from customers 9,542,619 22,623,706
Deferred output VAT 1,505,635 3,032,367
Other accrued expenses 58,423,762 88,287,531
Other payables 35,010,087 38,355,081

P 628,902,651 P 592432973

Reserve for warranty costs pertains to amounts recognized by My Solid, SVC and SBC for
expected warranty claims on products sold based on their past experience of the level of
repairs and returns. In addition, provision for warranty claims also includes the amounts
recognized by OSSI for expected warranty claims on consumer electronic products sold by a
certain company owned by the Group’s majority stockholders.

In 2012, SMC derecognized certain accrued expenses and other payables which were acquired
by SMC from the merger with SC (see Note 1.2). Management believes that the possibility of
cash outflows is remote since the purpose for which the liability was recognized no longer
exists. The Gain on Derecognition of Liabilities amounting to P25.1 million is presented
under Other Income Gains in the 2012 consolidated statement of income (see Note 19.2).

In October 2011, the obligation to provide warranties was transferred by My Solid to Mytel
when the latter was handed over the ownership of the brand and consequently became
importer of the inventories from Mytel’s supplier. As a result, Mytel derecognized the
outstanding balance of provision for warranty claims from previous year amounting to

P10.8 million. The income arising from the derecognition of this liability is presented as part
of Reversal of warranty provision under Other Operating Income in the 2011 consolidated
statement of income (see Note 19.1). My Solid and Mytel have merged in 2012

(see Note 1.2).

The changes in the Reserve for Warranty Costs account are as follows:

Notes 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of year P 18,354,383 P 23,359 511
Additional provision for warranty
claims during the year 20 41,465,997 45,072,286
Actual warranty claims
during the year ( 36,118,916) ( 38,173,009)
Reversals during the year 19.1 ( 9,156,132) ( 11.904.405)

P 14,545,332 P 18,354,383
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Other accrued expenses include accrued rentals, accrued outside services, accrued salaries and
other operating expenses. Other payables primarily consist of payroll-related liabilities and
due to government agencies for unpaid tax obligations.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables recognized in the consolidated statements
of financial position are considered to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value
(see Note 30.1).

REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS

SMC and Kita have long-term refundable deposits from various tenants amounting to

P16.0 million and P15.6 million as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
refundable deposits are remeasured at amortized cost using the effective interest ranging
from 7.22% to 15.77% at the inception of the lease terms. The interest expense recognized
amounting to P1.4 million in 2012, P0.6 million in 2011 and P0.9 million in 2010 is presented
as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 21.2). The
non-current refundable deposits is shown as a separate line item under non-current liabilities
in the consolidated statements of financial position.

COST OF SALES, SERVICES AND RENTALS
18.1 Cost of Sales

The details of this account are shown below.

Notes 2012 2011 2010
Merchandise and finished goods
at beginning of year 10 P 621,292,806 P 412,507,056 P 62462687
Net purchases of merchandise
during the year 20, 26.6
26.2 2,925,915,239 2,700,622,823 1,582,453.911
Cost of goods manufactured:
Raw materials at beginning
of year 10 362,856 10,757,863 20,252,525
Work- in-process at
beginning of year 10 - 2,256,191 1,665,047
Net purchases of raw
materials during the year - 3,811,972 6,759,772
Direct labor - 1,715,564 3,709,810
Manufacturing overhead 1,831,269 16,613,479
Raw materials at end of year 10 ( 362,856) ( 362,856) ( 10,757,863)
Work-in-process at
end of year - - ( 2,256,191)
- 20,010,003 35,986,579
Goods available for sale 3,547,208,135 3,133,139,882 1,680,903,177
Merchandise and finished goods
at end of year 10 ( 406,495,008) (  021,292,896) (  412,507,056)
Net provision (reversal) on
inventory obsolescence 10 ( 48,583,419) 27,304,279 ( 11,239.861)

20 P 3,092,129,708 P 2,539,151,265 P 1,257,156,260
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The allocation of cost of sales between continuing and discontinued operations is shown
below.

Note 2012 2011 2010
Continuing operations 20 P 3,092,129,708 P 2,524,843,718 P 1,225,420,110
Discontinued operations 5,10 - 14,307,547 31,736,150

P 3,092,129,708 P 2,539,151,265 P 1,257,156,260

18.2 Cost of Services

The following are the breakdown of direct costs and expenses from rendering of services:

Notes 2012 2011 2010
Materials, supplies and
other consumables P 94,017,131 P 90,295,728 P 73,058,882
Salaries and employee benefits 80,725,659 92,304,067 91,449,097
Service fees 20 59,347,325 - -
Subcontracting services 48,254,650 30,841,268 18,674,615
Rentals 28.2 36,602,623 29,463,835 42,954,302
Communication, light and water 33,262,444 50,503,338 47,309,256
Depreciation and amortization 12 29,405,353 63,913,859 61,817,018
Transponder rental and leased line 27,803,313 46,122,992 49,380,862
Outside services 24,560,909 37,481,054 33,384,542
Transportation and travel 18,032,263 18,442,548 12,640,691
Repairs and maintenance 10,731,747 19,949,027 4,567,611
Cable services 3,901,463 6,696,429 6,696,429
Others 21,757,882 13,280,724 18,258,313
20 P 488,402,762 P 499,294869 P 460,191,618

18.3 Cost of Rentals

The details of this account are as follows:

Notes 2012 2011 2010
Taxes and licenses 13 P 9,835,266 P 9,571,471 P 7,706,287
Rentals 8,043,416 10,040,302 10,990,367
Outside services 7,397,150 5,856,501 9,728,407
Repairs and maintenance 13 3,461,720 3,487,349 3,488,634
Salaries and employee benefits 1,194,501 1,144,438 1,011,864
Utilities and communication 13 - 3,324,709 4,565,515
Others 5,450,888 6,455,978 1,078,119

20 P 5,382,941 P 39,880,748 P 38,569,193

Other cost of rentals primarily consists of depreciation expense, supplies and transportation
and travel expenses.
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19. OTHER INCOME
19.1 Other Operating Income

The breakdown of this account is as follows:

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Reversal of impairment losses

on property and equipment 12 P 350,000,000 P - P -
Fair value gains on

investment property 13 149,569,182 191,644,597 27,648,081
Increase in cash surrender value

of investment in life

insurance 7 18,365,563 19,110,728 17,678,362
Reversal of warranty provision 16 9,156,132 11,904,405 3,126,950
Gain on insurance settlement 353,338 55,000 4,694,715
Miscellaneous 5 26,481,792 18,411,703 37,055,339

P 553,926,007 P 241126433 P __ 90,203,447

The allocation of other operating income between continuing and discontinued operations is
shown below.

Note 2012 2011 2010
Continuing operations P 553,926,007 P 232,773,017 P 87,379,618
Discontinued operations 5 - 8,353,416 2,823,829

P 553,926,007 P 241126433 P__ 90,203,447

19.2 Other Gains

The breakdown of this account is as follows:

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Gain on derecognition of liabilities 16 P 25,117,698 P - P -
Reversal of allowance for

inventory obsolescence 10 13,334,706 - -
Retirement benefit income 8,999,316 - 171,983
Gain on disposal of property, 7,767,563 - -

plant, and equipment 1,071,310 - -
Gain on sale of investment property 13 - 17,802,607 -
Others 1,361,274 3,636,521 2,564,209

P 57,651,877 P 21439128 P 2,736,192

All other gains pertain to continuing operations for all the years presented.

Retirement benefit income in 2012 resulted from SGT’s transfers of the amount of obligation
in the Group plan due to transfer of employees within the group. Also, no retirement benefit
expense was recorded in 2010 as the expected return and the actuarial gain recognized in the
plan assets during the year is higher than the current service and interest cost incurred.
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OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of operating expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Net purchases of merchandise

inventories 18.1 P 2,925,915,239 P 2,700,622,823 P 1,582,453911
Salaries and employee benefits 22.1 259,430,838 254,151,282 231,327,047
Outside services 194,934,604 149,697,511 97,545,658
Advertising and promotions 130,977,514 132,187,080 92,776,544
Subcontracting services 110,298,465 86,887,735 52,116,171
Materials, supplies and other

consumables 78,028,164 110,419,752 109,721,847
Rentals 26.3,28.2 60,820,460 42,785,957 44,419,377
Service fee 59,347,325 - -
Utilities and communication 54,590,325 72,208,053 72,260,992
Taxes and licenses 52,113,634 46,839,422 55,402,878
Depreciation and amortization 12 46,467,220 78,173,250 75,588,976
Net provision (reversal) on

inventory obsolescence 18.1 ( 48,770,199) 27,304,279 ( 11,239,861)
Cost of real estate sold 45,917,227 95,886,118 151,396,685
Transportation and travel 44,072,915 43,880,536 29,924,036
Provision for warranty 16 41,465,997 45,072,286 35,696,455
Repairs and maintenance 31,640,652 45,966,836 28,229,042
Transponder rental and leased line 7,070,544 44,719,890 48,257,021
Change in merchandise,

finished goods and

work-in-process inventories 168,559,419 ( 206,529,649) ( 338,484,611)
Miscellaneous 103,021,196 50,319,996 68,205,328

P 4,365,901,539 P 3,820,593,157 P 2,425,597.496

In 2012, SBC entered into a sale agreement with a third party for the sale of SBC's assets used
in operations. In connection with such agreement, SBC shall also act as a collecting agent for
the existing subscribers and accordingly, remit to the third party all collection received.
Service fees incurred for the remittance of the collections to the third party amounting to
P59.3 million is presented as part of Cost of Services in the 2012 consolidated statement of
income (see Notes 18.2 and 27.3).

Items classified under the miscellaneous account primarily consist of advertising and
promotions, subcontracting services, taxes and licenses, cable services and insurance expenses
incurred by the Group.
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These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

Notes 2012 2011 2010
Continuing operations:

Cost of sales 18.1 P 3,092,129,708 P 2,524,843,718 P 1,225,420,110
Cost of services 18.2 488,402,762 499,294 869 460,191,618
Cost of real estate sales 45,917,227 95,886,118 151,396,685
Cost of rentals 18.3 35,382,941 39,880,748 38,569,193
General and administrative

expenses 343,002,874 366,950,584 281,046,941
Selling and distribution costs 361,066,027 278,372,598 227,552,333

4,365,901,539 3,805,228,635 2,384,176,880

Discontinued operations:

Cost of sales 18.1 - 14,307,547 31,736,150

General and administrative
expenses 5 - 385,540 9,271,158
Selling and distribution costs 5 - 671,435 413,308
- 15,364,522 41,420,616

P 4,365,901,539 P 3,820,593,15 P 2,425,597,496

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
21.1 Finance Income

This account consists of the following:

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Reversal of impairment losses on

trade and other receivables 7 P 75,708,696 P 17,014,146 P 11,104,219
Interest income from banks 6 56,862,020 28,088,868 23,389,186
Interest income from financing 26,458,136 11,990,898 5,041,854
Gain on sale of financial

assets - net 8 2,095,315 - -
Reversal of impairment losses on

AFS financial assets 9 990,643 - -
Foreign currency gains — net 827,155 5,624,590 1,372,689
Others 760,514 1,842,653 905,319

P 163,702,479 P 64,561,155 P 41,813,267

The allocation of finance income between continuing and discontinued operations is shown
below.

Note 2012 2011 2010
Continuing operations P 163,702,479 P 64,476,707 P 38,921,553
Discontinued operations 5 - 84,448 2,891,714

P 163,702,479 P __ 64,561,155 P 41,813,267
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Interest income earned by SGI, SMFI, BRL, Starworld, and Interstar from cash and cash
equivalents amounting to P64.4 million in 2012, P47.8 million in 2011 and P63.1 million in
2010 are presented as Interest under Revenues account in the consolidated statements of
income, as these were generated from the entities’ primary business operations.

21.2 Finance Costs

This account consists of the following:

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Foreign currency losses P 22738,154 P  33,124222 P 28,649,430
Impairment losses on trade

and other receivables 7 12,767,663 21,145,641 9,266,502
Interest expense arising

from interest—bearing loans 15 6,726,796 8,203,376 10,530,521
Interest amortization on

refundable deposits 17 1,431,460 614,109 864,519
Impairment losses on

AFS financial assets 9 - 18,995,887 33,657,338
Fair value loss on FVTPL 8 - 5,909,803 -
Others 5,424,022 797,455 4,601,512

P 49,088,095 P __ 90,062,513 P __ 88,876,474

The allocation of finance costs between continuing and discontinued operations is shown
below.

Note 2012 2011 2010
Continuing operations P 49,088,095 P  89426,503 P 88,223,148
Discontinued operations 5 - 636,010 653,326

P 49,088,095 P __ 90,062,513 P 88,876,474

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
22.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are summarized below
(see Notes 20 and 26.10).

Note 2012 2011 2010
Short-term benefits P 250,773,629 P 249752464 P 225,608,349
Post-employment benefit 22.2 7,188,899 3,634,033 4,594,191
Termination benefits 1,468,310 764,785 1,124,507

P 259430,838 P 254151282 P 231,327,047
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22.2 Post-employment Benefit

The Group maintains a tax-qualified, fully-funded and noncontributory post-employment
defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee covering all regular full-time
employees. Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the post-employment benefit
costs and the amount of contributions.

The amounts of total retirement benefit asset of SGI and certain subsidiaries that have
retirement benefit asset recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position are
determined as follows:

2012 2011
Fair value of plan assets P 195,334,214 P 198,950,272
Present value of the obligation 96,955,783 104,569,041
Excess of plan assets 98,378,431 94,381,231
Unrecognized actuarial losses (___25,213,659) (__15,099,780)

P_ 73,164,772 P 79,281,451
The amounts of retirement benefit obligation of certain subsidiaries that have retirement
benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position are
determined as follows:

2012 2011
Fair value of plan assets P 14,080,141 P 52742927
Present value of the obligation 29,632,031 48,704,204
Excess (deficiency) of plan assets ( 15,551,890) 4,038,723
Unrecognized actuarial gains ( 2,969,731) (__10,149.864)
Retirement benefit obligation P 12,582,159 P 6,111,141

Presented below are the overall historical information related to the present value of the
retirement benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and net excess in the plan of the
Group.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Fair value of plan assets P 209,414,355 P 251,693,199 P 239,409,688 P 210,694,669 P 163,517,091
Present value of the obligation 126,587,814 153,273,245 91,208,751 71,624,495 74,604,282
Excess in the plan P 82,826,541 P 98419954 P 148,200,937 P 139,070,174 P 88,912,809

Experience adjustments arising on plan assets amounted to P5.4 in 2012, P5.3 in 2011 and
P6.2 million in 2010. Experience adjustments on plan liabilities amounted to
P1.1 million in 2012, P7.2 million in 2011 and P5.9 million in 2010.
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The overall movements in the fair value of plan assets of the Group are presented below.

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year P 251,693,199 P 239,409,688
Effect of curtailment ( 53,322,778) -
Contributions paid into the plan 659,116 4,976,389
Benefits paid by the plan ( 1,597,216) ( 1,840,988)
Expected return on plan assets 15,869,634 12,604,518
Actuarial losses ( 3,887,600) ( 3,456,408)
Balance at end of year P 209,414,355 P 251,693,199

The overall movements in the present value of the retirement benefit obligation recognized in
the books are as follows:

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year P 153,273,245 P 91,208,751
Effect of curtailment ( 43,907,143) -
Transfers - 1,267,732
Current service and interest costs 24,297,471 20,067,558
Benefits paid ( 1,597,216) ( 1,840,988)
Actuarial (gains) losses ( 5,478,543) 42,570,192
Balance at end of year P 126,587,814 P 153,273,245

Actual returns on plan assets amounted to P12.0 million, P9.15 million and P25.7 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Group expects to contribute a total of P17.6 million
to the post-employment defined benefit plan in 2012.

The plan assets consist of the following as of December 31:

2012 2011
Government securities P 197,407,650 P 234,845,476
Mutual and trust funds 12,006,705 16,847,723

P 209,414,355 P 251,693,199

The amount of post-employment benefit expense recognized in the consolidated statements
of income is as follows:

2012 2011
Current service cost P 17,610,274 P 13,004,057
Interest cost 6,687,197 7,063,501
Expected return on plan assets ( 15,869,634) (  12,604,518)
Net actuarial gains (loss) recognized
during the year ( 1,237,938) ( 3,829,007)

P 7,188,899 P 3,634,033
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For determination of the post-employment benefit obligation, the following actuarial
assumptions were used:

2012 2011 2010
Discount rates 4% - 6% 6% - 7% 8% - 9%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 5% 8% 6%
Expected rate of salary increases 9% 10% 9%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.
The average remaining working life of employees before retirement at the age of
60 is 21 years for both males and females.

The overall expected long-term rate of return on assets is ranges from 6% to 8%. The
expected long-term rate of return is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum of
the returns on individual asset categories. The return is based exclusively on historical
returns, without adjustments.

In 2011 and prior years, SBC maintained a wholly funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory
post-employment benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee covering all regular
full-time employees. As a result of the sale its business, SBC ceased operations immediately
thereafter and requested the release of the remaining balance in the trust fund account under
the multi-employer retirement plan. The retirement plan assets were withdrawn in 2012 since
all of the employees were terminated during such year. Accordingly, SBC’s plan assets had a
nil balance as of December 31, 2012,

TAXES
23.1 Registration with Economic Zone Authorities and Fil-Dragon Taxation
(a)  Registration with Clark Development Corporation (CDC)

Kita, a subsidiary, is registered with CDC under RA 7227, The Bases Conversion and
Develgpment Act of 1992, as amended under RA 9400, An Act Amending RA 7227, as
Amended, Otherwise Known as the Bases Conversion and Development Act of 1992, and for Other
Purposes. As a registered business enterprise within the Clark Freeport Zone, Kita is
exempted from national and local taxes and is entitled to tax and duty free importation
of raw materials, equipment, household and personal items. In lieu of said taxes, Kita is
subject to a 5% preferential tax rate on its registered activities. However, the 30%
Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) tax rate is applied to income coming from
sources other than Kita’s registered activities.

(b)  Registration with Philippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA)

SMC is registered with the PEZA as an Ecozone Facilities Enterprise at the Laguna
International Industrial Park — Special Economic Zone (LIIP — SEZ). As an Ecozone
Facilities Enterprise, SMC shall lease its building in LIIP — SEZ to PEZA-registered
export enterprises located therein. SMC is subject to 5% tax on gross income earned
on such facilities in lieu of all national and local taxes.
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On July 1, 1998, the PEZA approved Starworld’s registration as an Ecozone developer
and operator of the CPIP — Special Economic Zone located at Bo. Parian, Calamba
City. Under the terms of the registration and subject to certain requirements, Starworld
shall be exempt from all national and local taxes and instead will be subject to the 5%
preferential tax rate on gross income after allowable deductions.

(¢)  Fil-Dragon Taxation

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, the Fil-Dragon is subject to
PRC corporate income tax of 25% on the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision has been provided in the consolidated financial statements as the
Fil-Dragon did not generate any assessable profits in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

23.2 Current and Deferred Taxes

The components of tax expense as reported in the consolidated statements of income and
consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Consolidated statements of income
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate
income tax (RCIT) at 30% P 190,483,882 P 105,566,741 P 91,903,929
Final taxes at 20% and 7.5% 17,657,651 9,686,979 8,917,838
Preferential taxes at 5% 2,035,898 1,165,853 2,718,628
Minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) at 2% 222,424 784,751 4,269,350
210,399,855 117,204,324 107,809,745
Deferred tax expense relating to
origination and reversal of
temporary differences 65,764,939 22,508,829 15,457,073

P 276,164,794 P 139,713,153 P 123,266,818

Consolidated statements of comprebensive income —
Deferred tax income on changes in
fair value of AFS financial assets
(see Note 24.3) P 300,000) P 1,458,000) (P 1,110,000)
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The reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rate to tax
expense reported in the consolidated statements of income is shown below.

2012 2011 2010
Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 455,342,115 P 172,057,237 P 109,924,527
Adjustment for income subject
to lower tax rates ( 13,388,166) ( 6,615,150) ( 17,302,712)

Tax effects of:

Benefit from previously

unrecognized net operating loss

carry-over (NOLCO) MCIT

and other temporary differences ( 142,098,292) ( 26,314,832) ( 47,588,087)
Excess of optional standard

deduction (OSD) over itemized

deduction ( 27,893,962) - -
Nontaxable income ( 2,640,899) ( 11,209,655) ( 5,563,691)
Derecognized and unrecognized

deductible temporary

differences 3,233,154 7,975,800 4,004,029
Nondeductible expenses and losses 2,513,046 5,437,096 9,597,237
Unrecognized deferred taxes

from NOLCO and MCIT 567,373 1,430,215 4,060,303
Income (loss) of foreign subsidiary not

subject to taxes ( 547,491) 9,739,812 62,238,190
Reversal of previously

recognized DTL - ( 11,409,417) -

Loss on non-recoverable

foreign currency losses - - 958,240
Unrecognized benefit from

write-off of receivables - - 3,735
Others 1,77,916 ( 1,377,953) 2,935,047

P 276,164,794 P 139,713,153 P 123266,818

The allocation of the tax expense relating to profit or loss from continuing and
discontinued operations in 2012 is shown below:

Note 2012 2011 2010
Continuing operations P 276,164,794 P 139,364,314 P 122,651,703
Discontinued operations 5 - 348,839 615115

P 276,164,794 P 139,713,153 P 123,266,818
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The net deferred tax assets of the Parent Company and subsidiaries having a net deferred tax
asset position as of December 31 relate to the following:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Fair value adjustments on
investment property P 23,831,400 P 23,831,400
Accrued municipal taxes 14,721,085 9,026,376
Allowance for inventory
obsolescence 11,462,608 20,630,203
Allowance for impairment on
trade and other receivables 6,483,910 3,776,335
Retirement benefit obligation 3,066,967 6,094,079
Unrealized foreign
currency loss — net 2,982,141 165,867
Provision for warranty 2,181,337 7,288,866
Unamortized pre-operating expenses 54,271 112,648
Unamortized past service costs - 1,156,422
Deferred tax liability —
Retirement benefit asset ( 1,647,964) ( 2,099,707)

Deferred tax assets — net P 63,135,755 P_ (69,982,489

S ———
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The net deferred tax liabilities of the other subsidiaries which have a net deferred tax liability
position as of December 31 relate to the following:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for warranty claims P 2,012,749 P -
Unamortized past service costs 1,657,651 675,055
Allowance for impairment on
trade and other receivables 688,083 7,500,210
Deferred rent expense — PAS 17 408,033 609,324
Allowance for inventory
obsolescence 324,678 -
Retirement benefit obligation 314,196 -
Unearned rent income 257,395 -
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fair value gains on investment
propetty (  772,747,918) (  722,756,790)
Accumulated depreciation on
investment propetty (  132,666,733) (  129,743,498)
Retirement benefit asset ( 19,947,117) (  14,115,622)
Deferred rent income — PAS 17 ( 213,056) ( 3,523,8606)
Changes in fair value of AFS ( 132,000) 246,000
Unrealized foreign currency gains  ( 19,409) ( 36,056)
Defertred tax liabilities — net (P_920,063,448) (P 861,145,243)

The components of net deferred tax expense (income) reported in the consolidated
statements of income are as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Fair value gains on investment property P 49,991,128 P 54,506,870 P 8,472,450
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 14,668,089 ( 19,956,486) ( 445,274)
Accumulated depreciation on

investment property 6,337,868 6,651,556 7,859,993
Accrued municipal taxes ( 5,694,710) ( 6,702,344) ( 2,324,032)
Allowance for impairment on

trade and other receivables 3,395,556 ( 2,896,526) 993,245
Reserve for warranty costs 3,169,076 ( 1,214,422) ( 744,120)
Unrealized foreign currency losses - net ( 2,749,471) ( 677,951) ( 18,750)
Deferred rent expense — PAS 17 ( 2,627,509) 34412 ( 1,352,937)
Benefits from previously unrecognized MCIT  ( 1,812,952) ( 47,888) -
Retirement benefit obligation 1,577,061 ( 5,830,938) 1,971,288
Deferted rent income — PAS 17 ( 556,364) ( 1,752,527) ( 376,861)
Unamortized past service costs 173,828 344910 138,036
Unearned rent income ( 165,041)
Unamortized pre-operating expenses 58,380 50,163 54,271
Change in fair value of AFS - - 1,122,000
NOLCO - - 107,764

P 65,764,939 P 22508,829 P 15457,073

The deferred tax income recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
pertains to the tax effect of the changes in fair value of AFS Financial Assets.
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The movements in the Group’s NOLCO and MCIT are as follows:

Applied Applied
Original in in Expired Remaining Valid
Year Amount Previous Years Current Year Balance Balance Until
NOLCO:
2012 15,862,462 P - P - P - P 15,862,462 2015
2011 31,305,517 - 5,501,441 - 25,804,076 2014
2010 3,283,221 2,008,326 331,953 - 942,942 2013
2009 29,179,579 15,006,564 7,473,992 6,699,023 - 2012
79,630,779 P 17,014,890 P 13,307,386 P 6,699,023 P 42,609,480
MCIT:
2012 222424 P P P P 222,424 2015
2011 832,637 - 611,343 - 221,294 2014
2010 4,774,835 - 1,368,240 - 3,406,595 2013
2009 719,699 18,000 594,109 107,590 - 2012
6,549,595 P 18,000 P 2,573,692 P 107,590 P 3,846,578

Fil-Dragon has incurred tax losses amounting to P22.8 million (RMB3.5 million),
P32.5 million (RMB4.8 million), P28.2 million (RMB4.2 million) in 2012, 2011, and 2010

respectively. Similar to NOLCO, these tax losses can be applied to future taxable income.
However, these tax losses expire within five years from the year such tax losses were

incurred.

The NOLCO, MCIT and other deductible temporary differences as of December 31 for
which the related deferred tax assets have not been recognized by certain entities in the
Group are shown below.

NOLCO

Allowance for impairment of
financial assets classified as loans
and receivables

Unrealized foreign currency loss

Allowance for impairment loss on
AFS financial assets

MCIT

Unearned income

Retirement benefit obligation

Allowance for inventory obsolescence

Accumulated impairment losses on
property, plant, and equipment

Fair value loss in investment property

Unamortized past service cost

Other accrued expenses

Accrued municipal taxes

Day-one gain

Amortization of pre-operating
expenses

2012 2011 2010
Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect
P 41,220,143 P 12,366,043 P 41,027,061 P 12,308,118 P 44866357 P 13,459,907
22,555,186 6,766,555 113,897,224 34,169,167 120,021,728 36,006,518
12,211,081 3,663,324 1,606,837 482,051 22,322,126 6,696,638
5,060,000 1,518,000 5,420,000 1,626,000 5,420,000 1,626,000
3,679,121 3,679,121 5,545,272 5,545,272 5,911,763 5,911,763
1,170,000 351,000 4,920,000 1,476,000 - -
1,001,270 300,381 875,601 262,680 ( 10,207,044) ( 3,062,114)
362,856 108,857 15,504,733 4,651,420 29,729,592 8,918,877
- - 350,000,000 105,000,000 350,000,000 105,000,000
- - 10,167,900 3,050,370 6,586,000 1,975,800
976,947 293,084 1,496,952 449,086
- - - - 7,119,287 2,135,786
- - - - 10,607,331 3,182,199
- - - - ( 372,906) ( 111,872)
- - - - ( 5135) ( 1,541)
P 87,259,657 P__ 28,753,281 P 549,941,575 P 168,864,162 P 593,496,051 P 182,187,04

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, except for SBC, the Group opted to claim itemized deductions in
computing for its income tax due. SBC used OSD in computing for its income tax due in

2012.
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EQUITY
24.1 Capital Stock

The Group has a total authorized capital stock of P5.0 billion divided into 5,000,000,000
shares with P1 par value.

On June 18, 1996, the SEC issued an Order approving the Registration Statement covering
the securities which comprised the Parent Company’s entire authorized capital stock. On
September 4, 1996, the Parent Company’s shares were listed in the PSE and the trading of
offer shares commenced. The Parent Company offered to the public 665,000,000 shares at
an offer price of P5.85 per share. The offer shares are composed of 524,475,000 primary
shares (new shares) and 140,525,000 secondary shares (existing shares).

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has issued shares of 2,030,975,000 (with P1 par
value), of which, 392,472,704 shares are held by the public. There are 4,482 holders of the
listed shares which closed at P1.98 per share on December 31, 2012.

24.2 Retained Earnings

On October 12, 2012, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of P0.06 per
share or totaling to P109.3 million, payable to stockholders of record as of
October 31, 2012. The cash dividends were paid on November 28, 2012.

Retained earnings is restricted in the amount of P115.6 million in 2012 and 2011, equivalent
to the 209,433,000 shares held in treasury.

24.3 Revaluation Reserves

The components of this account and its movements are as follows:

Notes 2012 2011 2010

Cumulative translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year P 77477390 P 64,979,425 P 70,778,455
Currency differences on
translating financial
statements of foreign

operations 2 ( 28,103,335) 12,497,965 ( 5,799,030)
49,374,055 77,477,390 64,979,425

Fair value losses on AFS
financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year (  106,719,760) ( 108,459,976) (  172,432,191)
Reclassification adjustments for
losses recognized in
profit or loss 12,145,053 12,804,822 49,498,034
Fair value gains (losses) — net 9 ( 853,830) ( 9,606,6006) 15,584,181
Deferred tax income on
changes in fair value of
AFS financial assets 23.2 ( 300,000) ¢( 1,458,000) ( 1,110,000)

( 95,728,537) ( 106,719,760) ( 108,459,976)
Other comprehensive income
attributable to
non-controlling interest 35,000 - -

Balance at end of the year (P__46,319,482) (P 29,242,370) (P___43,480,551)
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted EPS for profit attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders are
computed as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Net profit for the year attributable

to the Parent Company’s

stockholders P 1,244,304,250 P 439437428 P_ 229.346,310
Divided by weighted average

shares outstanding:

Number of shares issued 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000 2,030,975,000

Treasury shares (__209,433,000) (__ 209,433,000) (___ 209,433,000)

1,821,542,000 1,821,542,000 1,821,542,000

EPS — basic and diluted P 0.68 P 024 P 0.13

There were no outstanding convertible preferred shares and bonds or other stock equivalents
as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, hence, diluted EPS is equal to the basic EPS.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include other companies owned by the Group’s majority
stockholders and the Group’s key management personnel.

2012 2011
Outstanding Outstanding
Related Party Amount of Receivable Amount of Receivable
Category Notes Transaction (Payable) Transaction (Payable)
Related Parties Under

Common Ownership:
Use of cable infrastructure 26.1 P 81,656,142 P - P 228,608,036 P 71,595,493
Management services 26.1 1,500,000 - 1,200,000 -
Purchase of parts 26.2 87,557,687 (  6,412,755) 107,849,402 ( 4,072,024)
Lease of real property 26.3 1,905,820 274,060 485,592 -
Granting of business loans 26.4 - 67,560,199 - 84,625,060
Interest income 26.4,26.7 12,045,070 9,565,856 5,196,900 6,430,356
Advances to 26.5 (  106,324,516) 22,218,883 ( 72,650,008) 128,543,399
Advances from 26.5 ( 95,931,619) 11,563,612 (  61,416,380) 107,495,231
Collection of receivables 26.6 19,627,454 ( 18,756,177) 109,898 ( 2,331,894)
Commissions 26.6 1,730,242 1,730,242 2,498,762 1,132,958
Advances for equipment 26.6 20,063 (  3,090,785) 3,070,522 ( 3,070,522)
Purchase of mobile phones 26.6 2,816,688,776 121,141,047  2,582,212,621 219,422,589
Advances to suppliers 26.6 ( 8,668,237) 210,754,352 2,928,899 219,422,589
Sale of mobile phones 26.6 - - 1,778,608 3,042,022
Granting of loans 26.7 - 104,354,742 - 111,286,053
Availment of loans 26.8 ( 44,740,216) 359,312,976 404,053,192 404,053,192

Interest expense 26.8 32,874,588 3,436,432 9,714,529 1,253,629
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The Group’s outstanding receivables from and payables to related parties arising from the
transactions summarized in the preceding page are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable in
cash, unguaranteed, and due within 12 months from the end of the reporting period except
for the following:

Note Condition Term
Business loans 26.4 interest-bearing and secured long-term and
short-term
Granting of loans 26.7 interest-bearing short-term
Availment of loans 26.8 interest-bearing and secured short-term

None of the companies under the Group is a joint venture. The Parent Company is not
subject to joint control. Related parties that exercise significant influence over the Parent
Company are AA Commercial, Inc. and AV Value Holdings Corporation.

None of the Group’s outstanding receivables from related parties are impaired.
26.1 Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services

SBC’s broadband cable infrastructure is used by Destiny Cable, Inc. (DCI), a company that is
100% owned by SGI’s majority stockholders. SBC bills DCI based on fixed fee per
subscriber and based on the type of service rendered. The outstanding receivable arising
from these transactions amounted to P71.6 million as of December 31, 2011 (nil in 2012) and
is presented as part of Due from related parties under the Trade and Other Receivables
account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7). As of

December 31, 2012, however, SBC has sold a significant portion of its assets used in its
operations to a third party (see Note 27.3).

The Parent Company provides general management advisory services to CPD Access
Corporation (CPD), a company owned by SGI’s majority stockholders. In consideration for
such services, the Parent Company receives management fees on a monthly basis as
determined based on a management contract mutually agreed upon by both parties.

26.2 Purchase of Goods

SE Corp. purchases parts and supplies from CPD. Total purchases of goods amounting to
P87.6 million in 2012, P107.8 million in 2011 and P85.9 million in 2010 are recorded as part
of Cost of Services (see Note 18.1). The outstanding balance from the above transactions
amounted to net advances of P6.4 million and payable of P4.1 million as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

26.3 Lease of Real Property

SMC leases out certain land and buildings to Avid. Also, SE Corp. leases out its office space
to CPD and Avid. Income from these leases is shown as part of Rentals in the consolidated
statements of income. Uncollected billings, on the other hand, form part of the Trade and

Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).
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26.4 Granting of Loans

SMFTI grants business and other loans to its related parties at an interest rate of 7.5% to 9.0%
in 2012 and 7.5% to 8.0% in 2011. Total interests earned from these loans amounted to
P6.3 million in 2012, P7.6 million in 2011 and P10.2 million in 2010, and is presented as part
of Interest Income under the Revenues account in the consolidated statements of income.
The outstanding receivables from these business loans are shown as part of Loans
Receivables under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements
of financial position (see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from business loans as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

2012 2011
Avid P 27,000,000 P 37,121,075
AA Export and Import Corp. (AA Export) 8,304,380 9,720,117
AA Marine Development Corp. (AA Marine) 8,329,955 9,761,015
Philippine Prawn, Inc. (PPI) 7,975,288 9,340,951
Baybayan Farm, Inc. (BFI) 7,975,288 9,340,951
Kawayan Farm, Inc. (KFI) 7,975,288 9,340,951

r 67,560,199 p 84,625,060

The business loans to AA Export, AA Marine, PP, BFI and KFI were originally repayable
with a lump sum payment in January 2009 of the outstanding principal balance as of
December 31, 2008. On January 12, 2009, SMFI’s BOD approved the extension of the
payment term of the business loan for an additional period of seven years until

December 31, 2015. Also, on August 23, 2012, SMFI’s BOD approved the suspension of the
payment of amortization for the principal amount of these loans. Total principal repayments
received on the loans amounted to P4.0 million in 2011. There was no principal repayment
on these loans in 2012.

The business loan pertaining to AA Export is secured by its own shares of stock which are
owned by a related party.

In a prior year, the SMFI granted unsecured business loan to Avid with the original principal
loan amounting to P80.0 million. Principal repayment to this loan amounted of

P10.1 million, P2.8 million and P6.0 million were made in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
This loan is payable on demand.

Total interests earned from these loans is presented as part of the Interest Income on Loans
and Receivables account in the consolidated statements of income.

Section 9 (d) of RA No. 8556 states that the total credit that a financing Company may
extend to any person, company, corporation or firm shall not exceed 30% of its net worth.
Since the net worth of the Company decreased in 2011, the balance of business loan
extended to Avid as of December 31, 2011 exceeded thirty percent (30%) of the company’s
net worth which is not in accordance with Section 9 (d) of RA No. 8556. In 2012, the
Company has not extended credits to any debtor which exceeded such threshold.



-69 -

26.5 Advances to and from Related Parties

Certain subsidiaries of the Group grants to and obtains unsecured, noninterest-bearing cash
advances from related parties owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders for
working capital requirements and other purposes. The outstanding balances arising from
these transactions amounting to P21.6 million and P11.6 million as of December 31, 2012
and P128.5 million and P107.5 million as of December 31, 2011 are presented as Advances to
Related Parties and Advances from Related Parties, respectively, in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

In 2012, the Advances to Related Parties had net repayments of P106.3 million while
Advances from Related Parties had net repayments of P95.9 million.

No impairment losses were recognized on the Advances to Related Parties as management
has assessed that the total amounts is fully collectible.

26.6 Transactions with STL

SVC earns commission from sales of STL, a company owned by SGI’s majority stockholders,
to customers in the Philippines. Commission revenue amounted to P1.7 million in 2012,
P2.5 million in 2011 and P5.6 million in 2010 is presented as part of Rendering of Services in
the consolidated statements of income. SVC also advances funds to STL to pay foreign
suppliers. The outstanding receivable from STL amounted to P1.7 million and P1.1 million
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and is shown as part of Trade receivables
under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial
position (see Note 7).

SVC also collects the receivables related to the sales of STL which are payable immediately
upon receipt. Total collections made in behalf of STL in 2012 and 2011 amounted to

P19.6 million and P0.2 million, respectively. Total obligations arising from this transaction as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounting to P18.8 million and P2.3 million, respectively, is
presented as part of Non-trade payables under the Trade and Other Payables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 10).

SVC also purchases materials and inventories from a foreign supplier, the payment of which
is being made by STL on behalf of the Company. Total advances received related to this
transaction amounted to P0.02 million in 2012 and P3.1 million in 2011. Outstanding
balance arising from this transaction amounting to P3.1 million as of December 31, 2012 and
2011 is presented as part of Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements
of financial position (see Note 106).

My Solid purchases mobile phones from STL. Total purchases amounted to P2.8 billion in
2012, P2.6 billion in 2011 and P898.3 million in 2010 and are presented as part of

Cost of Sales in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 18.1). Outstanding
liabilities relating to these purchases amounted to P121.1 million as of December 31, 2012
and P219.4 million as of December 31, 2011 and is shown as part of Trade payables under
the Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 10).

My Solid also made advance payments to STL for its future purchase of mobile phones. The
outstanding advances amount to P210.8 million and P219.4 million as of December 31, 2012
and 2011 respectively, and is presented as part of Advances to supplier under Trade and
Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7).
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In 2011 and 2010, Mytel (now My Solid — see Note 1.2) sold mobile phone inventories to
STL. The outstanding receivables arising from these sales transactions are shown as part of
Due from related parties under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 7).

26.7 Transactions with Solid Company Limited (SCL)

In 2008, BRL granted an unsecured, interest-bearing loan denominated in Chinese yuan
renminbi to SCL, a related party owned by the Parent Company’s majority stockholders,
amounting to P120.8 million which matures on March 1, 2011. The loan bears an annual
interest rate of 6% payable annually with any unpaid interest compounded annually at the
same rate of the principal amount. In 2009, the parties agreed to amend the loan agreement
reducing the annual interest rate to 4% and making the loan payable in U.S. dollar. In 2011,
the parties agreed to increase the annual interest rate to 5% and extend the loan for another
year. Also in 2012, another transaction to extend the maturity of the loan for another year
was executed between BRL and SCL.

The loan amounting to P104.4 million and P111.3 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, is presented as part of Loans Receivables under the Trade and Other
Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7). Total
interests earned from these loans amounted to P5.8 million in 2012, P5.2 million in 2011 and
P4.6 million in 2010, and is presented as part of Interest Income under the Revenues account
in the consolidated statements of income.

26.8 Loan Availments

In 2011, Fil-Dragon obtained loans from companies that are owned by SCL. Outstanding
balance from these loans amounted RMB54.4 million (P359.3 million) and RMB58.1 million
(P404.1 million) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These loans bear interest at
prevailing market rates per annum ranging from 6.0% to 10.0% in 2012 and 2011. The
liabilities are unsecured and payable on demand. The amount of loan is presented as part of
Interest-bearing loans in the 2012 and 2011 consolidated statement of financial position.
Borrowing cost incurred in 2012 and 2011 relating to these loans amounted to

RMB5.0 million (P32.9 million) and RMB1.5 million (P9.7 million) respectively, and are
capitalized as part of Real Estate Inventories (see Notes 11 and 15).

26.9 Financial Guarantees

Fil-Dragon obtained a secured interest-bearing loan amounting to RMB92.9 million

(P615.7 million) as of 2010 from a local bank in the PRC to support the construction of the
Golden Hill Project. In relation to this, Solid Industrial (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd., a related party
owned by SGI’s majority stockholders and an individual who holds 30% ownership interest
in Fil-Dragon entered into a guarantee contract with the local bank whereby it guarantees that
the principal amount and related interests will be paid as the payments fall due. The
guarantee contract was terminated during the year as Fil-Dragon fully paid the related
obligation, which is two years subsequent to the effectivity of the loan agreement obtained by
Fil-Dragon (see Note 15).
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26.10 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Salaries and other benefits given to key management personnel for 2012, 2011 and 2010 are
as follows (see Note 22.1):

2012 2011 2010
Short-term benefits P 26,592,346 P 33,992,630 P 34,456,347
Post-employment benefit 3,009,664 - 884,848

P 29,602,010 P 33992630 P 35341,195

26.11 Transactions with the Retirement Plans

The Group has a formal retirement plan established separately for each significant subsidiary.
These plans are defined benefit post-employment plan maintained for qualified employees,
administered and managed by trustee banks (except for CBHI, My Solid, SGTC and ZTC
which are still unfunded plans). The carrying amount and the composition of the plan assets
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are shown in Note 21.2.

Government securities and unit investment trust fund which are included as plan assets under
the fund consist of investments in corporations listed in the PSE. The retirement fund
neither provides any guarantee or surety for any obligation of the Group. The retirement
fund also does not have any investments in the Parent Company’s shares of stock.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS
27.1 Memorandum of Understanding with SPI

On July 1, 2003, SE Corp. entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SPI
for network support for SPI and Aiwa products. Under the MOU, SPI authorized the

SE Corp. to petrform in-warranty and out-of-warranty services to customers in the
Philippines for a fee equivalent to a certain percentage of SPI’s annual sales.

In-warranty services shall be rendered free of charge to customers. The actual cost of
replacement parts related to in-warranty services shall be shouldered by SPI. Also, SPI agrees
to pay the SE Corp. network support fees equal to 1% of net sales for SPI products or
P50,000 per month, whichever is higher, for Aiwa products. In the first quarter of 2009,

SE Corp. and SPI agreed to lower the network support fees to 0.45% of SPI’s net sales.
Subsequently, SE Corp. and SPI agreed that network support fees shall be fixed at

P1.25 million per month effective April 2009. Management believes that the MOU continues
to be effective unless revoked by any of the parties.

The breakdown of network support fees and in-warranty service fees amounted to
P77,726,164, P506,652,858, and P43,665,418 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Network support fees and in-warranty services recognized are
presented as part of Rendering of Services in the consolidated statements of income.
Outstanding balance arising from the transaction amounted to P14,668,136 and P3,027,479
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively and are included as part of Trade and Other
Receivables in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7). No network
support fees and in-warranty services relate to Aiwa products in 2012, 2011, and 2010.
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27.2 Distributorship Agreement with Sony Corporation of Hong Kong
Limited (Sony HK)

SVC has a non-exclusive Distributorship Agreement (the Agreement) with Sony HK, a
corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of Hong Kong. Under
the Agreement, SVC was designated by Sony HK as its non-exclusive distributor of

Sony products in the Philippines. In addition, SVC shall provide the customers in the
Philippines with repair and parts replacement services, including but not limited to repair and
parts replacement services rendered by SVC which are covered under the 12 month-warranty
period at its own costs and expenses. Management believes that the Agreement continuous
to be effective although no formal renewal has been made since 2007.

27.3 Sale of SBC’s Assets
(a) Agreement on Sale of Assets

On May 11, 2012, SBC entered into an agreement with Sky Cable Corporation (SCC)
covering the sale, assignment and transfer of its assets, equipment, contracts, permits, licenses
and subscriber base (the “Assets”) of SBC used in the operation of its television, broadcasting
and broadband business [see Note 27.3 (d)].

In addition, SCC assumes to pay SBC all costs and expenses in connection with use and
operation of the assets, until the Company's operation is transferred to SCC.

(b) Management Agreement

For continuity of services to subscribers, SBC and SCC agreed that the management and
administration of the Assets be entrusted to SCC pending the approval of the NTC of the
assignment of the Assets.

SCC, as the manager of the Assets, was given the overall power and responsibilities to handle
all aspects necessary to carry out the administration and operations of the Assets and SBC, to
accord the necessary additional authorizations, should the need arise.

The Management Agreement shall remain in effect until December 31, 2013. If NTC’s
approval is not obtained by December 31, 2013, the terms of the Management Agreement
shall be automatically renewed for two years from such date and thereafter automatically
renewed for another two years from the end of term of its renewal, until the Management
Agreement is terminated.

The Management Agreement shall be automatically terminated on the date NTC approves
the transfer of the Assets in favor of SCC.

(¢c) Option Agreement

On the same date, SGI entered into an Option Agreement (the Option) with SCC to
purchase its shares of stocks in the Company which option must be exercised not later than
December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2012, SCC has not exercised the option

(see Note 28.8).
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(d) Gain on Sale of Assets

SBC sold the Assets to SCC for a gross amount totaling to P1.1 billion. The book value of
the assets sold amounted to P827.2 million resulting in the recognition of gain on sale of
assets amounting to P267.1 million, which is presented as Gain on Sale of Assets in the 2012
statement of income (see Notes 6, 10 and 12).

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Group:

28.1 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

Certain subsidiaries lease various properties for a period of one to ten years. Some of these

lease transactions are subject to 5% to 10% escalation rate. The future minimum rentals
receivable under these non-cancellable operating leases as of December 31 are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Within one year P 114423915 P 85906404 P 84,506,562
After one year but not more
than five years 198,445,354 137,864,538 159,674,701
More than five years 3,261,256 806,905 865,866

P 316,130,525 P 224577,847 P 245,047,129

28.2 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee to non-cancellable operating leases on land. As of December 31, 2009,
these leases have a remaining term of 10 years, expiring in 2019. Lease payments are fixed
for the first five years. Thereafter, the lease on land is subject to 100% escalation rate every
tive years while the lease on land improvements is subject to an annual escalation rate of

10%.

2012 2011 2010
Within one year P 12490,671 P 11131271 P 6,984,946
After one year but not more
than five years 47,388,054 40,612,597 33,500,497
More than five years 15,858,583 25,977,359 36,195,820

P 75,737,308 P 77721227 P ___ 76,681,263

Total rental expense from these operating leases amounted to P7.4 million each in 2012, 2011
and 2010, and are shown as part of Rentals under Cost of Services in the consolidated
statements of income (see Notes 18.2 and 20).
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28.3 Legal Claims

SMC is involved in a number of litigations and is subject to certain claims relating to the
following, among others:

(i) a portion of land in Pililla, Rizal, with a carrying value of P3.3 million, subject to
expropriation coverage under the Agrarian Reform Act; and,

(i) a piece of land, with a carrying value of P309.0 million, subject to claims by third
parties who filed court cases against SMC.

Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these cases will not materially affect the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

28.4 Estimated Liability for Land and Land Development Cost

The Group has commitment of about P68.3 million as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, for the fulfillment of projects in the development and marketing of CPIP
(see Note 11).

28.5 Purchase Commitments

In 2007, ZTC has entered into several construction contracts with various suppliers for the
construction of the Tri Towers condominium building (see Note 11). The construction of
Tower 1 and Tower 2 was completed in completed in 2008 and 2012, respectively, while the
construction of Tower 3 has not yet started as of December 31, 2012.

28.6 Possible Impact of Government Project

In 2005, ZTC received a notification from the Urban Roads Projects Office (URPO) of the
Department of Public Works and Highways (DPWH) that the location of the Tri Towers
condominium building project might be affected by the plans of the National Government of
the Philippines for the construction of the proposed 2™ Ayala Bridge. However, the URPO
stated that it has not yet undertaken the detailed engineering design that will ascertain if the
location of the ZTC’s property will be affected by the road’s right-of-way.

The Group decided to continue the Tri Towers condominium building project despite the
notification received from the DPWH because management believes that the likelihood of a
possible expropriation of the land is remote given the current status of the government
project.

28.7 Properties Under Development

Fil-Dragon has commitment of about P34.0 million (RMB5.2 million) and P184.2 million
(RMB184.2 million) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, for the construction of
the Golden Hill Project.

28.8 Option Agreement

Relative to SBC’s sale of its broadband assets and subscriber base, SGI granted SCC with an
option to purchase SGI'S shares in SBC. The said option is exercisable until

December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2012, SCC has not exercised this option

[see Note 27.3(c)].
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28.9 Others

As of December 31, 2012, the Group has unused credit facilities amounting to
P788.6 million.

There are other commitments, guarantees, litigations and contingent liabilities that arise in the
normal course of the Group’s operations which are not reflected in the consolidated financial
statements because the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote or the amount to be provided cannot be
measured reliably.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments. The
Group’s risk management is coordinated with its BOD and focuses on actively securing the
Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.
Long-term financial investments are managed to generate continuous returns.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below.

29.1 Foreign Currency Sensitivity

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional currency.
Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s foreign currency denominated
trade and other receivables, AFS financial assets, interest-bearing loans and trade and other
payables, which are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars and Chinese yuan renminbi. The
Group also holds U.S dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash flows
are monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into Philippine pesos
at the closing rate are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
u.s. Chinese Yuan us. Chinese Yuan us. Chinese Yuan
__ Dollar _ Renminbi Dollar Renminbi Dollar Renminbi
Financial assets P 342,359,128 P 48,982,187 P 476,601,716 P 75339,059 P 429,590,753 P 129,100,783
Financial liabilities (__512,512,383) (__525,912,848) (_379,197.829) (_404,053,192) (__386,804,826) (__706,843.,136)
Total net exposure (P_170,153,255) (P_476,930,661) P_97,403,887 (P328,714,133) P 42785927 (P_577,742,353)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with respect to
changes in Philippine pesos against foreign currencies exchange rates. The percentage
changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange
rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99% confidence level.

2012 2011 2010
Reasonably Effect in Reasonably Effect in Reasonably Effect in
Possible Profit Before Possible Profit Before Reasonably Effect in
Change in Rate Tax Change in Rate Tax Dollar Renminbi
Php — USD 13.83% (P 23,532,195) 16.13% P 6,939,858 20.63% P 8,826,737
Php — RMB 11.52% ( 54,942,412) 13.18% (__43,337,150) 12.21% ( 70,542,341)

(B_78,474,607) (B36,397,292) L_6L.715,604)
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Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative of
the Group’s foreign currency risk.

29.2 Interest Rate Sensitivity

At December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest
rates through its cash and cash equivalents, which are subject to variable interest rates
(see Note 0).

The following illustrates the sensitivity of profit before tax for the year to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates of +/-1.54% in 2012, +/-1.17% in 2011 and +/-1.19% in
2010. These changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in
interest rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months, estimated at 99% level of
confidence. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments held at
each reporting date, with effect estimated from the beginning of the year. All other variables
held constant, if the interest rate increased by +/-1.54%, 1.17% and 1.19% profit before tax
in 2011, 2010 and 2009 would have increased by P46.4 million, P14.1 million and

P13.2 million, respectively. Conversely, if the interest rate decreased by the same
percentages, profit before tax would have been lower by the same amounts.

29.3 Credit Risk

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position (ot in the
detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements), as
summarized below:

Notes 2012 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 3,019,984,213 P 1,720,748,062 P 1,620,114,468
Trade and other receivables - net 7 1,061,954,170 1,807,037,835 1,531,894,847
Financial assets at FVTPL 8 - 70,272,991 -
AFS financial assets - net 9 - 51,994,367 150,712,680
Advances to related parties 26 21,633,388 128,543,399 201,193,407
Refundable deposits - net 14 21,754,661 13,205,036 12,386,030

P 4,125,326,432 P 3,791,801,690 P 3,516,301,432

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls.
Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or teports and other
counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. In addition, for a significant proportion of real estate sales, advance payments
are received to mitigate credit risk.
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The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired
or past due at the end of each reporting period are of good credit quality.

(a)  Cash and Cash Equivalents, FVTPL and AFS Financial Assets

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, FVTPL and AFS financial assets in the
consolidated statements of financial position, is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

(b)  Trade and Other Receivables

Except for trade receivables arising from real estate sales, none of the financial assets
are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements. Trade receivables are secured

by industrial lots and condominium units sold to buyers and are covered by postdated
checks.

Some of the unimpaired trade receivables and advances to related parties are past due at the
end of the reporting period. Trade receivables and advances to related parties past due but
not impaired can be shown as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Not more than 3 months P 160,693,790 P 069,088,088 P 162,017,197
Morte than 3 months but
not more than one year 77,870,120 9,400,170 68,330,159
More than one year 131,075 66,597,236 294,468,345

P 238,694,985 P 145085494 P__ 524,815,701

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various industries
and geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates,
management consider the quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be
good.

29.4 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity
needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods.
Excess cash is invested in time deposits, mutual funds or short-term marketable securities.
Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.
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As of December 31, 2012, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which
are presented below.

Current
1 to 6 months 6 to 12 months

Interest-bearing loans P 571,666,922 P -
Trade and other payables 536,510,356
Advances from related parties -

11,629,819

P1,108,177,278 P 11,629,819

e ———

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2011 as follows:

Current
1 to 6 months 6 to 12 months

Interest-bearing loans P 404,053,192 P 375,345,563
Trade and other payables 552,072,387 -

Advances from related parties 107,495,231

P_956,125,579 P__ 482,840,794

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2010 as follows:

Current
1 to 6 months 6 to 12 months

Interest-bearing loans P 993,779,229 P -
Trade and other payables 442,663,550 -
Advances from related parties - 168,911,611

P1,436,442779 P 168,911,611

The contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ with the carrying
values of the financial liabilities at the end of reporting period.
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30. CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
30.1 Comparison of Carrying Values and Fair Values

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of assets and liabilities presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position are shown below.

2012 2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Notes Values Values Values Values Values Values
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 3,019,984,213 P 3,019,984,213 P 1,720,748,062 P 1,720,748,062 P 1,620,114,468 P 1,620,114,468
Trade and other receivables - net 7 1,917,927,407 1,917,927,407 1,807,037,835 1,807,037,835 1,531,894,847 1,531,894,847
Advances to related parties 26 21,633,388 21,633,388 128,543,399 128,543,399 201,193,407 201,193,407
Refundable deposits 17 21,754,661 21,754,661 13,651,421 13,651,421 12,386,030 12,386,030
Financial assets at FVTPL —
Investments in bonds 8 - - 70,272,991 70,272,991 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets: 9
Investments in bonds - - 51,994,367 51,994,367 138,606,153 138,606,153
Golf club shares — net 8,442,400 8,442,400 6,407,409 6,407,409 10,670,009 10,670,009
Others 634,127 634,127 1,474,118 1,474,118 1,436,518 1,436,518
P 4,990,376,196 P 4,990,376,196 P 3,800,129,602 P_ 3,800,129,602 P 3,516,301,432 P_3,516,301,432
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans - net 15 P 571,666,922 P 571,666,922 P 779398755 P 779,398,755 P = 989,502,559 P 989,502,559
Trade and other payables 16 563,429,613 563,429,613 495,511,929 495,511,929 442,663,550 442,663,550
Advances from related parties 26 11,629,819 11,629,819 115,790,251 115,790,251 168,911,611 168,911,611
Refundable deposits - net 17 32,226,991 32,226,991 40,380,251 40,380,251 15,252,534 15,252,534

P 1,178,953,045 P 1,178,953,045 P _1431,081,186 P 1431,081,186 P_1,616,330,254 P_1,616,330,254

See Notes 2.5 and 2.10 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments. A description of the Group’s risk management objectives and policies
for financial instruments is provided in Note 31.

30.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

The table below presents the hierarchy of fair value measurements used by the Group as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2012
Financial assets at FVTPL P - P - P - P -
AFS financial assets 9,076,527 - - 9,076,527
P 9,076,527 P - P - P 9,076,527
December 31, 2011
Financial assets at FVTPL P 70,272,991 P - P - P 70,272,991
AFS financial assets 58,938,767 - 937,127 59,875,894
P_129211,758 P - P 937,127 P_130,148,885

December 31, 2010
AFS financial assets P_149276174 P - P 1,436,518 P 150,712,692
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The different levels have been defined as follows:
(@)  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(b)  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);
and,

(¢)  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. The Group’s goal in capital
management is to maintain a debt-to-equity structure ratio of not higher than 1:1 on a
monthly basis.

The following is the computation of the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio:

2012 2011
Total liabilities (excluding advances
from related parties) P 3,164,672,695 P 3,052,705,062
Total equity 9,671,789,880 8,556,482,257
Debt-to-equity ratio 033:1 0.36:1

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure,

i.e., equity and financial liabilities excluding amounts due to related parties. The Group
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule A - Financial Assets
December 31, 2012

Name of Issuing entity and assocation of each issue

Number of shares of
principal amount of

Amount shown in statement
of financial position

Value based on market

quotation at end of reporting

Income received and
accrued

bonds and notes period
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss P - -
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets - Current P - -
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets - Non-Current
The Country Club 2 3,600,000 3,600,000 -
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club 4 2,080,000 2,080,000 -
Alabang Country Club 152,740 1,900,000 1,900,000 -
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co. 56,440 564,400 564,400 1,719
Philam Properties Corporation 1 272,127 272,127 -
The Manila Southwoods and Country Club 1 660,000 660,000 -
P 9,076,527 P 9,076,527 1,719




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

December 31, 2012

Deductions Ending Balance
Balance at the Balance at the end of |
Name and Designation of Debtor beg ing of period Additions Amounts collected | Amounts written off Current Not current period
Amount Due from a Director
P 6,949,300 P - (P 6,949,300) P - - P - P -

May So




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaties
Schedule C - Amounts Receivable/Payable from/to Related Parties which are Eliminated During the Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31,2012

Deductions Ending Balance
Name and designation of debtor -Ba{znce ar , Additions Amounts collected | Amounts written off Current Not current Balance a,vt end of
beginning of period period

Trade Receivables:
Kita Corporation P 13,600,000 - P - P - P 13,600,000 - P 13,600,000
Due from Related Parties:
Kita Corporation 521,759,173 - 10,000,000 - 511,759,173 - 511,759,173
Solid Broadband Corporation 440,009,147 440,009,147 - -
Zen Towers Corporation 553,407,157 - - - 553,407,157 - 553,407,157
Solid Manila Corporation 170,043,188 20,000,000 - 190,043,188 190,043,188
Precos, Inc. 149,511,000 - - - 149,511,000 - 149,511,000
Solid Video Corporation 6,929,308 6,929,308 - -
Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Brilliant Reach Limited 142,221,803 - 8,858,106 - 133,363,697 133,363,697
Mytel Mobility Solutions Inc. 779,500,000 146,000,000 241,500,000 - 684,000,000 - 684,000,000
My Solid Devices & Technologies Corporation 225,000,000 319,000,000 404,000,000 - 140,000,000 140,000,000
SolidGroup Technologies Corporation - 28,000,000 5,000,000 - 23,000,000 - 23,000,000

P 2991,380,776 513,000,000 P 1,116,296,561 - P 2388,084,215 - P 2388,084,215
Payables to Related Parties P - - P - P - P - - P -




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule F - Indebtedness to Related Partics (Long-term Loans from Related Companics)

December 31, 2012

Amount shown under caption "Current portion of

Amount shown under caption"Long-

Title of issue and type of obligation Amount by i debt" in related statement of financial | Term Debt" in related statement of
position financial position
Loans:
Fil-Dragon Real Estate Development Ltd. P 359,312,976 -

P 359,312,976




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule H - Capital Stock
December 31, 2012

Number of shares held by
Number of shares issued Number of shares
Title of Issue Number 01." shares and outstanding as shown reserved for opt{ons, Related parties (B) Directors, officers and Others
authorized under the related balance | warrants, conversion and employees
sheet caption (A) other rights
Common shares - P1 par value

Authorized - P5,000,000,000 shares 5,000,000,000

Issued 1,821,542,000 -

Outstanding 1,083,377,816 345,691,480 392,472,704

A: Number of shares issued and outstanding = 2,030,975,000 issued shares less 209,433,000 treasury shares

B: This represents shares held by AA Commercial and AV Value Holdings Corp., related parties which are ultimately owned by the Lim Family.




SOLID GROUP INC.
Schedule I

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year P 241,358,724
Prior Years' Outstanding Reconciling Items, net of tax
Recognized actuarial gains on defined benefit plans ( 2,684,178)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at Beginning of Year, as Adjusted P 238,674,546
Net Profit Realized during the Year 520,256,711
Net profit per audited financial statements
Non-actual / unrealized income, net of tax
Retirement income (P 5,796,750 )
Recognized actuarial gains on defined benefit assets ( 506,755) ( 6,303,505)
513,953,206

Other Transactions During the Year
Dividends declared (P 109,292,520 )

Retained Earnings Restricted for Treasury Shares ( 115,614,380 ) (

224,906,900 )

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for

Dividend Declaration at End of Year P

527,720,852




SOLIDGROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Schedule J - Financial Soundness Indicators

FORMULA DECEMBER 31, 2012 DECEMBER 31, 2011
Liquidity Ratios

Current ratio Current Assets 3.14:1 2.47:1

Current Liabilities

Cash + Marketable Securities + Accounts
Acid Test ratio Receivable + Other Liquid Assets 1.93:1 1.31:1
Current Liabilities

Solvency Ratios

Total Liabilites (excluding advances

Debt to Equity ratio from related parties) 0.33:1 0.36:1
Total Equity
Gearing Ratio Financial Debt 0.06:1 0.09:1

Total Equity + Financial Debt

Asset-toEquity Ratios Total Assets 1.33:1 1.37:1
Total Equity
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio EBIT 225.64:1 70.91:1

Interest Expense
Profitability Ratios

Operating Margin Operating Profit 28% 16%

Total Revenues

Net Profit Margin Net Income after Tax 25% 10%

Total Revenues

Return on Total Assets Net Income after Tax 10 4%

Average Total Assets

Return on Equity Net Income after Tax 13.00 5%

Total Equity



SOLID GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations
Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2012

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted A dlj;)tte d Not Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements v
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and Qualitative Characteristics v
Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards v
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters v
P Amendment to PERS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PEFRS 7 Disclosures for
FRS 1 o v
. First-time Adopters
(Revised) - - - - -
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time
Adopters v
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
Share-based Payment v
PFRS 2 Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions v
:)Ifeliissz d) Business Combinations v
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts : : v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts v
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations v
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources v
Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets** v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date
and Transition** 4
PFRS 7 Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets** v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures* (effective January 1, 2015) v
PFRS 8 Operating Segments v
Financial Instruments (effective January 1, 2015) v
PFRS 9 Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures* (effective January 1, 2015) v
PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements* (effective January 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities* (effective Janunary 1, 2013) v
PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities* (¢ffective January 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities* (¢ffective January 1, 2013) v
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v




Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)

Presentation of Financial Statements v
PAS1 Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations v
(Revised) |Arising on Liquidation**
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income v
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS7 Statement of Cash Flows v
PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors v
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes , v
Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets v
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures v
AS 1
fResvisge dy Employee Benefits* (effective January 1, 2013) v
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance v
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 .
(Revised) Borrowing Costs v
Al
fResvizsi d) Related Party Disclosures v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retitement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements v
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment in Subsidiary, Jointly v
Controlled Entity or Associate
PAS 27
(Amended) Separate Financial Statements* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended): Investment Entities* (effective Jannary 1, 2013) v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures* (¢ffective Janunary 1, 2013) v
(Amended) S s ssociates J s* (effective 1,
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
Financial Instruments: Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations v
PAS 32 Arising on Liquidation**
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues** v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities* (¢ffective v

\January 1, 2014)




PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement v
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities 4
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup
‘Transactions** 4
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option v
PAS 39 Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts** v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets** v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets — Effective Date]
and Transition** 4
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Detivatives** v
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items** v
PAS 40 Investment Property v
PAS 41 Agriculture
Philippine Intetpretations - International Financial Reporting Intetpretations Committee (IFRIC)
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities** v
IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease v
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental v
Rehabilitation Funds**
IFRIC 6 Liab?lities Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic v
Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives** v
IFRIC 9 e . . P
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives** v
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
IFRIC 14 their Interaction _ A _ 4
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC - 14, Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement and their Interaction 4
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners** v
IFRIC 18 ‘Transfers of Assets from Customers** v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments** v
IFRIC 20  (Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine* (¢ffective January 1, 2013)




Philippine Intetpretations - Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v

SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities v

SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 v

SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers v

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives ** v

SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders** v

SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease v

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services** v

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs** v

* These standards will be effective for periods subsequent to 2012 and are not eatly adopted by the Company.

** These standards have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements but the Company has no significant transactions covered
in both years presented.




Solid Group Inc. and Subsidiaries
hedule L - Congl Mabbi

Solid Group, Inc (SGI)

Omni Solid Services, Inc. Solid Group Technologics ) A ) o Precos Inc.
(0SSt Conp, (SGTC) Zen Towers (Zen) Solid Broadband Corp. (SBC) Solid Video Corp. (SVC) Kita Corporation (Kita) (Precos)
Solid Manila Cotporation Solid Manila Finance, Inc. ) ) My Solid Tech & Devices - -
b Brilliant Reach Limited (BRL
(SMC) (SMET) Solid Electronics Corp. (SEC) B rilliant Reach Limited (BRL)
75% 73%
. Phil-Nanning Consortium
Skyworld Corporation (Sky) Casa Bocobo Hotel, Inc. ' g
o . (CBHY) Interstar Holdings Corp. Inc.(PNCI)
£5% 22.5% 51%
Guanxi Fil-Dragon Real
Slarworl’:IOCorlzora;i;n (Star) L;gul:m I};;;srx;z;;‘l tlx;ius;,r‘i; ., tfﬁ‘;" (F;‘_‘
40% ctober ark (LIP) *October 37.5% Dragon)

Legend:

__ 100% ownership
Less than 100%
ownership




